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Message from the Chairman

) 22

OVERVIEW

The year under review was a challenging one for the
Company, due to the uncertainties of the world economy with
the ongoing pandemic and an ongoing war, which are still
affecting both local and international businesses. The ongoing war in particular has caused a steep
rise in the energy and raw material costs, which is affecting various sectors across the industry.

However with the anticipation of the Government’s announcement of declaring Covid 19 as an
endemic disease along with its gradual relaxation of various restrictions, the economy is gradually
opening up with a brighter prospect. And this has reflected with the ongoing improvement of the
Company’s businesses in various sectors.

Since the gradual opening of the country, IMPACT Exhibition and Convention center has quickly
regained bookings of major exhibitions, meetings and entertainment events. As of today, IMPACT has
already booked with more than 450 events until the end of the fiscal year 2023. Some of the major
events such as the Bangkok International Motor Show 2022, Thaifex Anuga Asia 2022, Architect Expo
2022, Money Expo 2022 and OTOP Midyear 2022 to name a few, has seen tremendous amount of
interests from visitors of both business and public sectors.

Retail businesses of the Company such as the Cosmo bazaar and Beehive lifestyle mall have

also regained shoppers and rental income to a level almost similar to that of pre Covid years.

OPERATIONS

With the anticipation of a better economy as the Thai Government is gradually opening up the
country, the Company has planned a few new projects in the upcoming year while still remaining
vigilant due to the uncertain world economy.

One of the projects the Company has announced earlier is the Len6tre Culinary Arts School, one
of the most prestigious Culinary Arts schools with worldwide recognition. It is due to open in the third
quarter of the financial year and is expected to attract over 1500 students to enroll in the first year and
up to 3000 students in the subsequent 2- 10 years. Courses are offered in both short recreational
classes and longer intensive professional trainings. Professional students enrolled can achieve
Boulangerie Advanced training, pastry chef diploma and cuisine chef diploma ranging from a 13 to 25
weeks intensive training programs. The Lendtre Culinary Art School can also add value to the catering
business of the IMPACT Exhibition and Convention center. Once fully operated, it might also spin off to

the housing demands in the vicinity.
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The Company is also launching a new condominium, the Mori Condominium in the heart of Muang
Thong Thani. Its location is perfect being next to the St. Francis Xavier International School with easy
access to the Chaengwattana-KlongPrapa road, Cosmo Bazaar shopping mall and Kasikorn bank
headquarters, all being 5 to 10 minutes” walk away. It is also only about 1 Km away from the future pink
line Bangkok Mass Transit System (BTS) station and 500 meters from the IMPACT exhibition and Convention
center. With 1040 residential units and 19 shop units, Mori Condominium comes with an attractive
starting price of 849,000 baht for a one bedroom unit. The Company is anticipating Mori Condominium
to be competitive and hopefully will receive a lot of interest from the potential home buyers.

While the Mass Rapid Transit Authority of Thailand (MRTA) has already approved the BTS pink
line into Muang Thong Thani, The Company is also in the final stages of finalizing the Agreement with
the Northern Bangkok Monorail Company Limited (NBM) group in constructing the BTS pink line into
Muang Thong Thani with two stations. The construction is expected to start in June 2022 and operate
within 3 years.

The Company has also initiated a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) program in supporting
the organic farmers in Chiangmai on growing environmentally sustainable produce. Dubbed as the
IMPACT Farm, the Company is committed to purchase these produce from the certified organic farmers

and use them in the Company’s group restaurants and the future Lenétre Culinary Arts School.

APPRECIATION
Finally, | would like to thank most sincerely for all the support and confidence extended to the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2022. | look forward to reporting further developments and

improvements in the coming year.

Sui Hung Kanjanapas
Chairman
15 June 2022
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Business
Highlights

2022 2021 percent
Baht million Baht million  Increase (Decrease)

Highlights of the Financial Statement (Baht million)
Total recurring revenue 1,990 3,117 (36.2)
Other revenue 1,927 1,231 56.5
Net profit (loss)

Parent’s company interest 572 (801) -

Minority interest 80 223 (64.1)
Total assets 63,463 62,879 0.9
Total liabilities 10,684 10,208 47
Shareholders’ equity 44,664 44,598 0.1
Shareholders’ equity including minority interest 52,779 52,670 0.2
Adjusted shareholders’ equity 49,106 48,632 1.0
Per Share Data (Baht)
Earnings (loss) per share 0.033 (0.046) -
Net asset value per share 257 257 -
Adjusted net asset value per share 2.83 2.80 1.1
Dividend per share * 0.03 0.03 -
Market share price as at 31 March 1.02 1.18 (13.6)
Shares Related Data (Shares)
Numbers of paid-up capital 17,374,401,054 17,374,401,054 -
Numbers of treasury shares 21,775,900 21,775,900 -
Numbers of issued shares after treasury shares 17,352,625,154 17,352,625,154 -

* Subject to Annual General Meeting (AGM) approval
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Part 1 53

Business Operation and Operating Results

Organizational structure and operation of the group of companies

Policy and business overview
Goals, Visions, and Strategies of the Business Operation of the Group of Companies
The Company has a goal to become one of the leaders in the real estate business in Thailand with modern
innovation starting by the transforming Muang Thong Thani to be the center of the modernity with a full-house
servcie including the exhibition, convention, and hotels at the IMPACT Muang Thong Thani. The Company
focused in developing and providing the services resulting in Bangkok Land to receive utmost recognition.
Long-term goals, Bangkok Land is committed to offering the highest quality available in all its projects
by embracing the latest technological advances and designs by implementing best practices to ensure
maximum benefits to all parties involved including its shareholders, customer, or all of our employees. We
focus on adding value to the various projects including residential, commercial, and retail space to respond to

the demands that surpass expectations perfectly and so becoming the permanent business partner.

Business Operation Policies of Subsidiaries
The Company has a clear work separation within the Group. The 10 subsidiaries consisting of real estate

business, exhibition business, convention and hotel business, retail, building management, and other businesses.

Investment in Subsidiary Policy

Company has a policy to invest in real estate development business for sale, rent, and related and
supported business with the main business of Company which mostly are consisted of business operation
Muang Thong Thani Chaengwattana such as providing good exhibition area, convention center, food and
beverage, hotel, retail within the Company’s projects, real estate project management, and utilities service
management. This will have to pass the consideration from the Board of Director, and the Board of Director

will stipulate the significant policies and control the business operation of the subsidiaries.

Governance

At present, the Company holds shares in the 97-100 percent ratio of the most of the subsidiaries. The
governance of such subsidiaries is under the supervision of the Board of Directors except for the RMI and
IMPACT Growth Real Estate Investment Trust that has IMPACT holding 50 percent of the trust unit with RMI
as the trust manager acting as the property manager appointed by the trustee, Kasikorn Asset Management

Co., Ltd. and IMPACT as the property manager appointed by trustee.

Material Changes and Developments

Bangkok Land Public Company Limited was founded on 19 April 1973 having the Kanjanapas family
group and the Mahadumrongkul family group as major shareholders and continue to be the major
shareholders until the present. The Company has the main objective in the land development in the suburban
area for habitations and commercialization. The securities of the Company have been listed in the Stock
Exchange of Thailand on 5 February 1992 with the initial registered capital of Baht 200,000,000.
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In between the year 2018 until 14 June 2022 which is the latest book closing date, the Company has

the following material changes and developments concerning shareholding structure and the increase of

capital as follows:

Shareholding Ratio (Percentage)

Shareholder June 2022 | June 2021 | June 2020 | June 2019 | June 2018

1. Kanjanapas group 27.92 27.86 28.41 26.56 26.44
2. Mahadumrongkul group 3.01 3.01 3.01 2.89 2.88
Totaling of the 2 groups 30.93 30.87 31.42 29.45 29.32
Others 69.07 69.13 68.58 70.55 70.68
Total 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Paid up capital (Baht Million) 17,374.40 17,374.40 17,374.40 18,596.57 18,596.22

Equity Instrument or Debt Instrument Offering

- None -

Obligation Promised by the Company in Disclosure Form

- None -

Name and the Registered Office

Company Name
Nature of Business

Registered Office

Registration Number
Telephone

Facsimile

Website

Numbers of paid-up shares

Bangkok Land Public Company Limited

Real Estate

47/569-576 Moo 3, 10th Floor, New Geneva
Building, Popular 3 Road, Tambol Bannmai
Amphur Pakkred, Nonthaburi 11120, Thailand
0107536001222

66-2-5044949

66-2-5044986

www.bangkokland.co.th

www.impact.co.th

17,374,401,054 ordinary shares at Baht 1 per shares par value
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Nature of Business Operation
Revenue Structure
2022 2021 2020
Business Operated by Baht mn.| percent |Baht mn.| percent |Baht mn.| percent
Real Estate BLAND, BAIC, Spc 659 26.1 1,409 375 3,517 418
Exhibition, Impact, REITs 1,436 56.9 1,855 493 4,307 51.1
Convention & Hotel
Retalil Agency 306 121 346 9.2 434 52
Building MSM, MBS, RMI 121 48 149 4.0 164 1.9
Management Cayman, Spooner
Others
Total Revenue 2,522 100.0 3,759 100.0 8,422 100.0

Product Information

The business operation of the Group Company is divided into 4 segments according to the revenue
structure which are real estate, and exhibition, convention & hotel which 2 of these businesses are the main
business whereby as of 31 March 2022, 2021, and 2020 can generate revenue up to 83.1 percent, 86.8
percent, and 92.9 percent respectively. For the supplementing business which includes retail, building
management and others which the Company operates with an objective to provide comfort to customers
residing in the projects developed by the Company only, as well as a trust manager service business with the
objectives to manage the properties of the trust only. The Company has no objective to emphasize on gaining

the revenue from this supplementing business.

Real Estate
Nature of the Product or Service
The Company divided the types of the project development for real estate into 2 groups according to

the objectives for the use of the lands of the targeted customers as follows:

Residential Products in this type includes single houses, townhouses, and condominiums with an
emphasis on a design to maximize the usable area and to be in a good environment suitable
for residence.

Commercial Products in this type includes shop-houses, high rise office buildings, shopping complex,

community and retail malls with an emphasis on the having a location that is suitable for

trading business and located in the community area.

Since the economic crisis in the year 1998, the Company faced financial difficulties causing the
Company to halt a development of certain projects from all of the projects of the Company totalling of 29
projects. Later in the year 2009/2010, the Company had developed new project which was 32 units of
commercial building having a total value of Baht 277 million and can close the sale within the same 1-year
cycle. In the year 2010/2011, the Company developed another commercial project having 33 units with a total
value of Baht 392 million and can close the sale within the first trimester of the next financial year. In the year
2011/2012, the Company developed 2 new projects which are the residential townhouses having 29 units with

BANGKOK LAND | ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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the total value of Baht 152 million and can close the sale in the third trimester of the next financial year, and

a residential condominium having 149 units with the total value of Baht 337 million. From the success of this

project, the Company launched phase 2 for another 298 units totalling to 447 units having the value of Baht

1,111 million where in the year 2021/2022 there were a reservation with the total value of Baht 809 million. In

the year 2015/2016, the Company developed another project which was a townhouses project for residential

use for another 55 units having the total value of Baht 331 million where in the year 2021/2022, there are
reservation orders with the total worth of Baht 331 million. Combined there are 34 projects consisting of:

- The projects that were halted due to the result of the economic crisis: 16 projects (within this amount
there are 2 projects which were never announced to the public).

- The projects that have been sold and transferred the ownership: 14 projects consisting of 3
commercial building projects, 1 industrial building project, 1 office building project, 3 townhouses
projects, 3 single houses and developed lands projects, and 3 condominium projects.

- Projects that are in between the sale and the transferring of ownership phrase: 4 projects.

For the projects that are in between the sale and the transfer of the ownership, they are the projects
that are still in the sale process continuously until the present. There are 4 of them which are mostly
located in the suburb area outside Bangkok which includes the areas in Nonthaburi province
(Muang Thong Thani), Srinakarin road, and Bangna-Trat road consisting of:

- Projects in the residential group in an amount of 4 projects (including 3 condominium projects, 1

townhouses project)

Table Showing the Status of the Projects that are still in the Sale Process Continuously as of 31 March 2022

Types of Projects Between the Sale and Transfer of Ownership
Residential
- Condominium 3
- Townhouses 1
Total Residential Area 4
Total Projects that are still in the Sale 4
Process Continuously
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Marketing and Competition
Highlights in Terms of Marketing used in Competition

Company remains being advantaged as the Company brought developing city-planning principles to
use. The Company’s projects which include the condominium, commercial buildings, utility systems,
entertainments, and retails. The Company has no direct competition in the same area (Muang Thong Thani)
that develop projects having city-like character. In addition, the location of the projects is located in areas

with highways resulting in convenient transportation and not being far from the Bangkok’s hub.

Distribution Channels
At the present, the Company operates the sales of the Company’s projects via sale offices located
within the projects. The Company has also set up booths in exhibition events for products relating to real

estates for the publicity and sell the remaining projects.

Character of the Customers and the Customer’s Relation with the Company and Subsidiary

The Company has its utmost intention and dedication to provide the service and create good customer
relation by taking the benefits and satisfactory of the customer as priority which results in the customer
having the confidence in the Company’s projects and the recommends new customers. The Company has

customers of diverse occupation and income level.

Industry and Competition Situation
Market for Residences in the year 2021

Market for the residences in the overall picture in the year 2021 from the overall numbers of houses
registered as a developed land specifically, the numbers of the registered house is a total of 58,657 unit,

decreases 35.3 percent compared to the year 2020 that had 90,613 unit.

Comparative information for Residences Registration Increase Categorized
by the Operation Type between the Year 2019-2021

Unit : House
Category 2019 2020 2021
Built 20,127 21,427 19,166
percent Change 0.6 percent 6.5 percent -10.6 percent
Developed 98,557 90,613 58,657
percent Change -11.1 percent -8.1 percent -35.3 percent
Total 118,684 112,040 77,823
percent Change -9.3 percent -5.6 percent -30.5 percent

Source: Government Housing Bank

Additional registered house specifically for the developed type in the year 2021 when compared to the year

2020 categorized based on the residences that have been developed, have the following material changes:

- Single houses: in the year 2021, there were 9,827 houses, an 8.5 percent decrease when compared to

the year 2020 that had 10,736 houses.
- Twin houses: in the year 2021, there were 2,845 houses, a 12.2percent increase when compared to the
year 2020 that had 2,536 houses
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- Townhouses and commercial buildings: in the year 2021, there were 12,392 houses, a 24.5 percent

decrease when compared to the year 2020 that had 16,424 houses.

- Condominium: in the year 2021, there were 33,593 houses, a 44.9 percent decrease when compared to
the year 2020 that had 60,917 houses.

Comparative information for Residences Registration Increase Categorized
by the Developed Type between the Year 2019-2021

Unit : House
Categorized by the Developed Type 2019 2020 2021
Single House 13,552 10,736 9,827
percent Change -12.9 percent -20.8 percent -8.5 percent
Twin House 3,024 2,536 2,845
percent Change 43.9 percent -16.1 percent 12.2 percent
Townhouses and Commercial Buildings 21,274 16,424 12,392
percent Change 6.1 percent -22.8 percent -24.5 percent
Condominium 60,707 60,917 33,593
percent Change -17.0 percent 1.5 percent -44.9 percent
Total 98,557 90,613 58,657
percent Change -11.1 percent -8.1 percent -35.3 percent

Source: Government Housing Bank

The change in the residence market in the year 2021 has following material factors:

The spread of the COVID-19 pandemic which still impacts many business sectors in both Thailand and

foreign countries. The expansion of the local economy in the year 2021 according to the information of

the Office of the National Economic and Social Development has grown by 1.6 percent when

compared to the year 2020 that has a negative growth at 6.2 percent.

Inflation rate in the year 2021 was on average at 1.2 percent when compared to the year 2020 that

had the average at the negative rate of 0.8 percent.

Interest rate in the year 2021

o The policies’ interest rate has not been changed by staying in the stable rate which was at 0.5
percent per annum.

. Interest rate for the MLR loan of the 5 major commercial banks were stable at the rate of 5.25
percent per annum.

The oil price in the global market in the year 2021 had increased from the year 2020 significantly.

The price of the construction materials in the year 2021 overall had increased from the year 2020

where the average CMI in the year 2021 was at 113.1 which was an increase of 8 percent from the

year 2020 where the average was at 104.7.

Market Projection of Residences in the year 2022

The residences market in the year 2022, when consider only for the market in the developed type, for

on-land projects, there is a good projection from the year 2021 at the estimated of 10-15 percent. For

condominium market, there is a slight decline in projection continuing from the year 2021. There is a growth

projection for the house additionally registered for all types of development at the rate of 10-12 percent.
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Product or Service Procurement
Character of the Product Acquisition

The Company hired a contractor to construct projects of the Company and having Bouygues Thai
Limited as the main contractor. As most of the projects developed by the Company have high values and
require new construction techniques; therefore, there is a need to use large contractor. Nonetheless, in the
process of the selecting the contractor for each project, the Company has considered the list of other

contractors to compare the price, quality of the construction, and the ability to manage large-scale projects.

Information Relating to Raw Materials

Basic raw materials are lands and construction equipment. Currently, the Company and the subsidiaries
have immovable properties for investment which are large lands and lake in Muang Thong Thani at the
estimated of 342.2 Rai, other lands in Muang Thong Thani at the estimated of 100.0 Rai, and the lands near
the New Petchburi Road at the estimated of 8.8 Rai. If the Company does not purchase additional lands, the
Company projects that these lands can accommodate development projects for another 8-10 years. For the
construction equipment, mostly the contractor hired by the Company will be the party responsible for its

sourcing. The Company has therefore no risk in the price’s volatility of the construction equipment.

Impacts to the Environment

Resulting from the policies of the Company which is to develop the lands to be a “mini city”, therefore
a utility system and environment and scenery preservation system are the integral part of every project of the
Company that has already been prepared. The Company also appoints the subsidiaries of the Company in

the management and building service business segment to be the service provider after the sale as well.
Works that has not been Delivered

As of 31 March 2022, the Company has 4 projects of condominium and townhouses which have been

reserved but have not yet been delivered totaling to Baht 17 million in value.
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Convention and Exhibition Center and Hotel Business .

Industry Situation and Competition

The Meeting, Convention, and Exhibition that is considered as part of the MICE industry that is being
supported continously by the Thai government in the past several years. At present, MICE includes 4 main
businesses, the term stands for Meeting, Incentive travel, Convention, and Exhibition.

The goal of the plan to improve and develop the industry of the year 2019 - 2023 is to develop and
implement the standard of convention and exhibition venue throughout MICE industry in the country, which an
aim to be the international standard MICE hub of Asia by focusing on increasing the numbers of the location
that can host MICE according to the standards in both MICE cities and subsidiary cities according to the

government’s policies.

Global economic outlook 2022

The International Monetary Fund (IMF) released its World Economic Outlook (19 April 2022), downgrading
its prediction for global economic growth this year and next to 3.6 percent from the previous expectations 0.8
percent in January 2022. It was primarily due to the protracted war crisis between Russia and Ukraine, as
well as the fact that inflation is a dangerous risk factor that threatens many countries around the world.

This war has been compared by the IMF to an earthquake wave with tremors that extend over a huge
area where it impacts the world economy at large, and the effect is prolonged. The financial industry, as well
as the market and trade, had to come to a halt. This represents a considerable reduction in the growth
forecast from 6.1 percent in 2021.

Meanwhile, the world economy still has negative factors from the decline of the Chinese economy. As
the world’s second largest economy faces a new wave of coronavirus outbreaks. China has imposed
lockdowns in major cities that are vital to the Chinese economy. This brought China’s manufacturing industry,
as well as the rest of the world’s, to a halt. Furthermore, the war has caused several countries’ already high
inflation rates to soar much higher. Due to an imbalance in products demand and supply that persisted
during the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak.

According to the IMF’s projection, Europe would be the region most affected by the war because it
directly relies on Russian energy. The European economy is forecasted to contract by 2.8 percent this year, while
the US economy, the world’s largest, is expected to grow by 3.7 percent this year and 2.3 percent next year.

The IMF predicts that China’s economy would grow at 4.4 percent this year, much below the
government’s 5.5 percent forecast.

For the Russian economy, it is expected to decline by 8.5 percent this year and 2.3 percent next year
because of US and Western sanctions. Meanwhile, the Ukrainian economy is expected to collapse by up to
35 percent.

Meanwhile, the IMF estimates that developed economies inflation this year would average 5.7 percent
while the inflation in emerging and developing economies inflation will average 8.7 percent. In addition, the
IMF has downgraded its prediction for Asia’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth to 4.9 percent from 5.4
percent projection in January, warning that Asian economies are in recession due to the effects of the
Ukrainian war, rising product costs, and the slowdown of the Chinese economy.

In addition, other important factors, like new ripples of the COVID-19 outbreak and a faster-than-
expected increase in US interest rates, also has an impact on Asian economic growth.

Despite a recession of Chinese economy, Asia’s inflation rate continues to rise. This pressure has
caused the Asian economy to stall and may result in slower growth than expected. Asia’s inflation rate is

expected to reach 3.4 percent this year, up from projection at the rate of 2.4 percent in January.
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Thailand economic outlook 2022
Siam Commercial Bank’s Economic Intelligence Center or EIC downgraded the 2022 economic growth

projection to 2.7 percent from 3.2 percent (March 29, 2022) on the effects of the war between Russia and
Ukraine. This has caused the price of energy and commodities to rise sharply. The full-year average Thai
headline inflation will accelerate to a 14-year high at 4.9percent, while domestic spending will recover at a
slower pace than previously estimated. In particular, consumption is likely to be affected by lower household
purchasing power following rising energy and food prices. As from the recovery of labor wages that are expected
to increase slowly, not keeping up with the cost of living while the acceleration in pent-up demand depending
on the adjustment of consumer behavior towards the COVID-19 outbreak and the relaxation of government
control measures are mostly concentrated in high-income households. Business sectors will be pressured by
higher costs and lower profit margins. There is a tendency to gradually adjust the prices of general products
in order to pass higher costs to more consumers and delay investment due to higher uncertainties.

For the tourism sector, tourist acceptance measures of the government have gradually eased coupled
with the gradual opening of travel in many countries in Asia. It will compensate for the slowdown of Russian
and European tourists affected by the Russo-Ukraine war as well as the impact of the increased travel costs.
Thus, there will be approximately 5.7 million foreign tourists entering Thailand this year, slight decrease from
the previous estimate of 5.9 million.

For the rest of the year, the Thai economy will confront considerable challenges, including:

1. Oil prices may rise and stay at high levels longer than expected due to the Russo-Ukraine war factors
causing an economic recession coupled with high inflation (stagflation) that is more intense and
prolonged.

2. Supply disruption in the manufacturing and transportation sectors, both from China’s Zero COVID
policy and economic sanctions against Russia, may cause to slow down the global economy more
than expected and affect to Thai exports.

3. Tight monetary policy of the world’s major central banks, particularly the US Federal Reserve (Fed),
may tighten and turbulent global financial conditions.

4. The recovery of international tourists has been delayed due to the impact of the war and the new
ripples of the COVID-19 outbreak.

5. Economic scars are exacerbated by the impact of rising living costs, which may affect the ability of the
larger household sector to pay debts.

Furthermore, the Kasikorn Research Center (25 March 2022) reduced the projection of the Thai

economy in the year 2022 3.7 percent to 2.5 percent due to the impacts from the Russia-Ukraine crisis.

MICE Industry

Throughout fiscal year 2021 (October 2020 - September 2021), the world was challenged by the
ongoing outbreak of COVID-19, due largely to new virus variants, which have created a global public health
crisis. The continuous spread of COVID-19 has produced long-term and adverse socio-economic impacts,
which have strongly impacted on the MICE industry. The major factors affecting the MICE industry include
travel restrictions between countries and lockdown measures that have been periodically implemented by
many countries. Since the MICE industry is closely related to the tourism sector, travel restrictions between
countries, mandatory vaccination for entry enforced by many countries and implementation of lockdown
measures to control the spread of COVID-19 have produced severe effects on the MICE industry, especially

revenue loss from international MICE travelers. Moreover, the enforcement of social distancing has caused a
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change in the way MICE events are organized globally, leading to hybrid and online events, which do not
generate economic income of the equal value compared to the normal way of event organization. Therefore,
the possible ways that could accelerate the recovery of the global MICE industry are vaccine passports, FLa
vaccination of people around the world and vaccine efficiency. B
The Global Business Travel Association (GBTA) anticipates the global MICE industry would take five
years or after the year 2024 to recover. The average growth of the world’s MICE industry was down by 0.4
percent per year. The two regions most severely affected by the spread of COVID-19 were Western Europe
and North America, where MICE industry growth has decreased annually on average by 4.9 percent and 5.7
percent respectively. However, the MICE industry’s growth for countries in the Middle East and Africa (MEA),
together with the countries in the Asia-Pacific (APAC) region, have shown a positive signal. The average
expenditure increase in the MICE industry of countries in the Middle East and Africa was 4.3 percent, while the
average expenditure increase of countries in the Asia-Pacific region was 3.7 percent. Besides, the travel rate of
international MICE travelers to Asia Pacific region has gradually improved since the previous spread of COVID-19.
The Thai MICE industry is one of the main industries to be affected by the long-term spread of
COVID-19 in its every wave. Throughout fiscal year 2021, a total of 3,563,747 MICE travelers visited Thailand,
which is a reduction by 66 percent compared to the previous year. The revenue generated from MICE travelers
was Baht 7,662 million, which is a reduction by 87 percent compared to the previous year. The disruption of
MICE events had a strong impact on the country’s economy, directly impacting on the MICE industry’s
economic activities and indirectly impacting on other industries which provide a supply chain for the MICE
industry, together with other continuous impacts produced by every economic activity of the MICE industry.
The total value generated by the organization of MICE events in Thailand was Baht 33,230 million, generating
overall added value of Baht 29,749 million. The organization of MICE events also generated employment for
46,718 persons throughout the year and tax revenues of Baht 2,089 million to the government.
However, it is expected that investment in the MICE Industry will continue to slow down for the next 2-
3 years. Both domestic and international MICE travelers will recover in 2023, representing 50 percent and
increase to 70 percent in 2024. In terms of domestic MICE industry, most of which this year has adapted to
almost 100 percent online platforms, so it is expected to recover faster than international MICE. This year, it is
expected to recover at 35 percent. It is likely to grow at 60 percent and 80 percent in 2022 and 2023,
respectively. In 2024, it will return to normal 100 percent and by 2025 it will grow to 110 percent. (Thailand

Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization))

Business Competition of Convention and Exhibition Center

According to TCEB, there are 9 main convention and exhibition centers in Thailand. The total exhibition
space is 231,487 square meters. IMPACT’s space is accounted for around 50 percent of total space, 4 of the
convention centers are located in Bangkok. However, Centara Grand and Bangkok Convention Centre at
Central World does not have the same target market as other since it focuses on convention, meeting and
seminar, while others are focusing on convention and exhibition. Other 5 convention and exhibition centers
are located in other areas i.e. the International Convention and Exhibition Center Commemorating His
Majesty’s 7" Cycle Birthday Anniversary at Chiang Mai, The 60th Anniversary of His Majesty the King's
Accession to the Throne International Convention Center at Prince of Songkla University, Khon Kaen
International Convention and Exhibition Center, Pattaya Exhibition and Convention Hall (PEACH), and

Nongnooch Pattaya International Convention and Exhibition Center.
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Table 1 Exhibition space as of March 2022

Venue Hall area Number of
(sq.m.) meeting room
IMPACT Exhibition and Convention Center 122,165 55
(2 Ballrooms)
Bangkok International Trade & Exhibition Center (BITEC) 58,150 28
(2 Ballrooms)
Royal Paragon Hall 7,100 6
Centara Grand and Bangkok Convention Centre at Central World 6,540 15
(1 Ballroom)
International Convention and Exhibition Center Commemorating 11,340 29
His Majesty’s 7" Cycle Birthday Anniversary at Chiang Mai
Khon Kaen International Convention and Exhibition Center 7,510 7
Pattaya Exhibition and Convention Hall (PEACH) 7,000 18
The 60" Anniversary of His Majesty the King’s Accession to the 5,922 12
Throne International Convention Center at Prince of Songkla University
Nongnooch Pattaya International Convention and Exhibition Center 5,760 2
Total 231,487

Source: RMI Company Limited, information as of March 2022

The Competition between the business operators in the countries are not severe as the business
operators has different sizes and locations. The customers can thus choose the service as appropriate to
their character. In this regard, IMPACT can be considered as the leader in the market in terms of income and
the size where the Company expects to have 70.14 percent income share of the industry, and the secondary
is Bangkok International Trade & Exhibition Center which have the market share at around 26.74 percent
(Queen Sirikit National Convention Center has been closed for construction since April 2019). The income of
this business stems from providing location service in the modern standard as well as the facilities and the
full-house service to the customer to be the location service for the public and private sector and the
individuals in the exhibition center for goods or the conference hall and other activities such as music
performance and other entertainment activities such as feast hosting, reception, and examination location.

In this regard, there is also a business operation under the name Impact Novotel Hotel/IBIS Bangkok Impact
Hotel, and other restaurants including food sale establishment to facilitate and accommodate the various
groups of customers of the Company who use the service both the event organizer and the event attendants.

The Company projects good business growth where in this year the Company received reservation for

the exhibition in every month already, but there are still certain capacities to receive additional reservation.

Characteristics of the Customers and the Distribution Channels

The customers of the Company are the estimated of 25 percent a public sectors and 60 percent are
foreigners where 15 percent of which are foreign organizers. Most of the local customers have good relations
for a long period of time. When there is an event that is suitable for area and location of IMPACT, customers would

choose to use the service of the Company which can accommodate the car parking for around 16,500 cars.
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The Company have the sale department that liaise with organizer in the foreign countries to offer
service. For most customers in Thailand are well connected as there are not many organizers. In terms of price,
most of the business operators have a similar pricing with an exception being Queen Sirikit National Convention b

Center have a little higher pricing than other business operators as it is located in the heart of the city.

Procurement of Products or Services
As it is a business offering location services, the sourcing of location for the customer depends on the

reservation volume of each year which the customers must inquire and make an advance reservation.

Assets used in Business Undertaking
Assets that are significant to the Group Company can be divided into 3 important groups as follows:

1. Investment lands or investment property means assets that the Company has for the developing
projects that can generate income for the Company long term. Therefore, the Company does not
allocate this part of the asset for sale.

Assets used for the developing projects for sale (Development Property or Land Bank)

3. Fixed Assets includes lands, buildings, and equipment.
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Shareholding Structure of the Group Company

Shareholding Structure of the Group Company

The Company has 6 subsidiaries that the Company directly holds shares in, and 4 subsidiaries which

the Company both directly and indirectly holds shares (Details as appeared in the Corporate Structure).

Corporate Structure as of 31 March 2022

Bangkok Land Public Company Limited

Real Estate Exhibition, Building _
Retail Others
Convention & Hotel Management
100% 100% 97% 99.3% 100%
4 4 N\ 4 4
) ) Impact Exhibition Muang Thong Bangkok Land Bangkok Land
Sinpornchai .
Management Services and Agency Company (Cayman lIslands)
Company Limited Management
—| Company Limited . Limited B Limited
(“Spc”) Company Limited
(“Impact”) (“MSM”) (“Agency”) (“Cayman”)
& G J G
100%* 100%** 97% 100%
4 4 N\ 4 4
Bangkok Airport Muang Thong
RMI Company Spooner Limited
Industry Company Building Services
Limited (“Spooner”)
Limited —| Company Limited
(“RMI”)
(HBAIC") (“MBS”)
- J . J . .
50%**

Ve

G

Impact Growth
Real Estate
Investment Trust

(“REITs”)

* 60 percent owned by Bangkok Land & 40 percent owned by Sinpornchai Ltd

** holds by IMPACT
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LI
Information of the Subsidiary with More Than 10 Percent Shares
Subsidiaries Equity Address Principle Issued
Interest Acitivities Capital
Impact Exhibition 100% 47/569-576 Moo 3, 10/F Bangkokland Building, Exhibition, convention | 12,952,714,100
Management Company Popular Road 3, Bannmai, Pakkred, Nonthaburi & hotel
Limited 11120 Tel. (02) 980 5500, Fax. (02) 504 4445
Bangkok Airport Industry 100% 47/569-576 Moo 3, 10/F New Geneva Building Property development| 5,320,000,000
Company Limited Popular Road 3, Bannmai, Pakkred, Nonthaburi 11120
[Note (2)] Tel. (02) 504 4949, Fax. (02) 504 4982
Snpornchai Company 100% | 4747/569-576 Moo 3, 10/F New Geneva Building [Property development| 1,180,000,000
Limited Popular Road 3, Bannmai, Pakkred, Nonthaburi 11120
Tel. (02) 504 4949, Fax. (02) 504 4982
Bangkok Land Agency 99.3% | 47/563-564 Moo 3, 9/F New Geneva Building Retail 100,000,000
Company Limited Popular Road 3, Bannmai, Pakkred, Nonthaburi 11120
Tel. (02) 503 5040, Fax. (02) 503 5064
Muang Thong Services 97% 47/567-568, Moo 3, 9/F New Geneva Building Infrastructure 25,000,000
and Management Popular Road 3, Bannmai Pakkred, Nonthaburi 11120, management
Company Limited Tel. (02) 980 5500, Fax. (02) 503 4784
Muang Thong Building 97% 47/567-568, Moo 3, 9/F New Geneva Building Building Management | 12,500,000
Services Company Limited Popular Road 3, Bannmai Pakkred, Nonthaburi 11120,
Tel. (02) 980 5500, Fax. (02) 503 4784
Bangkok Land (Cayman 100% | G/F, Caledonian House Mary Street, P.O. Issuer of USD & 10,000
Islands) Limited Box 1043 Cayman lIslands Tel. (345) 949 0050 CHF Bonds Us$
[incorporated in Cayman
Islands]
Spooner Limited 100% | 27/F Stelux House 698 Prince Edward Road Dormant HKS$ 2
[incorporated in East San Po King, Hong Kong
Hong Kong]
RMI Company Limited 100% | 47/569-576 Moo 3, 10/F New Geneva Building REIT management 10,000,000
Popular Road 3, Bannmai Pakkred, Nonthaburi 11120,
Tel. (02) 833 5576
Impact Growth Real Estate| 50% 47/569-576 Moo 3, 10/F New Geneva Building Real Estate 15,714,500,000
Investment Trust Popular Road 3, Bannmai Pakkred, Nonthaburi 11120, Investment Trust
Tel. (02) 833 4455

Notes : (1)  Unless otherwise stated, issued capital of all subsidiaries are in Thai Baht.

(2) 60 percent owned by Bangkok Land Public Co. Ltd. & 40 percent owned by Sinpornchai Ltd.
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10 percent of the shares with voting rights of such Company

- None -

Relationships with the major shareholders

- None -

Shareholders

People who may have conflict of interest holding shares in subsidiaries combined together exceeding

Details of the 10 largest shareholders of the Company as of 14 June 2022 are listed below.

Numbers of Percent to
Rank Name Shares(shares) paid-up capital
1 The Inheritance of Mr. Anant Kanjanapas by
Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas 4,230,756,460 2435
2 Thai NVDR Company Limited 796,205,891 4.58
3 Mr. Jean-Marie Verbrugghe 447,080,000 257
4 Mr. Chanya Mahadamrongkul 429,345,680 247
5 Mr. Sui Pang Kanjanapas 386,900,010 223
6 South East Asia UK (Type C) Nomimees Limited 363,910,104 2.09
7 The Inheritance of Mr. Veraphan Teepsuwan 350,000,200 2.01
8 Mr. Prateep Tangmatitham 284,894,800 1.64
9 Bangkok Land (Cayman Islands) Limited 212,096,990 1.22
10 Jirawud Kuvanant 206,996,700 1.19
Total 10 major shareholders 7,708,186,835 44 .37
Total minority shareholders 9,666,214,219 55.63
Total 17,374,401,054 100.00
Kanjanapas Group
No. Name Numbers of Shares Percentage
1. The Inheritance of Mr. Anant Kanjanapas by
Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas 4,230,756,460 2435
2. Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas 386,900,010 223
3. Bangkok Land (Cayman Islands) Limited* 212,096,990 1.22
4. Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas 15,200,010 0.09
5. Dr. Pornhatai Kanjanapas 6,730,000 0.04
6. Mrs. Sopee Kanjanapas 10 0.00
Total Kanjanapas 4,851,683,480 27.92

* Shares in Bangkok Land (Cayman Islands) Limited in an amount of 212.10 million shares is owned by YEE HING Co.,Ltd.
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Mahadamrongkul Group :
No. Name Numbers of Shares Percentage N
1. Mr. Chanya Mahadamrongkul 429,345,680 247 ¥
2. Mr. Pasit Mahadamrongkul 63,835,030 0.37
3. Mr. Krin Mahadamrongkul 29,339,000 017
4. Mrs. Ornwadee Mahadamrongkul 207,000 0.00
5. Mrs. Wandee Mahadamrongkul 85,000 0.00
6. Mr. Direk Mahadamrongkul 36,570 0.00
7. Miss Sarinya Mahadamrongkul 2,224 0.00
8. Miss Wanida Mahadamrongkul 1,000 0.00
9. Miss Veena Mahadamrongkul 1,000 0.00
10. Mr. Purit Mahadamrongkul 10 0.00

Total of Mahadamrongkul Group 522,852,514 3.01

Registered and Paid-up Capital
The Company has a registered capital of Baht 26,295,658,054 million, and paid-up capital of Baht
17,374,401,054 million which can be divided to 17,374,401,054 ordinary shares with Baht 1 par value.

Other Types of Shares

- None -

Issuance of Other Securities

- None -

Dividend Policies

The Company has a policy to pay an annual dividend of not more than 50 percent of its net profit
after tax and legal reserves. In recommending dividend payments, the Board of Directors will take into
consideration the Company and the Group’s consolidated operating results, financial position, liquidity, future
business plans and other management related factors. The distribution of the mentioned dividend will be
subjected to the approval of the Board of Directors and an approval resolution from the Shareholders’
Meeting.

Subsidiaries of the Company do not set dividend payment policies based on a percentage of net profit
after tax. Dividend will be decided by each of the subsidiary’s Board of Directors on a case-by-case basis,
and in determining the amount of payment, operating results, financial position, liquidity, future business plans

and other management related factors will be taken into consideration.
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Report of the Risk Management Committee

Dear Shareholders

The Risk Management Committee of Bangkok Land Public Company Limited consists of 3 members,
two of whom are independent directors. The Risk Management Committee has the duty and responsibility as
prescribed in the Charter of the Risk Management Committee such as proposing policies and guideline for
the management of the Company’s risk, assessing strategic risk and following up on action plan to reduce

the risk to an acceptable level.

As of 30 May 2022, which is the date this report is issued, the Risk Management Committee consists of:

1. Mr. Jakkapan Panomouppatham Chairman of Risk Management Committee
2. Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas Risk Management Committee
3. Mr. Supavat Saicheua Risk Management Committee

During the fiscal year ended on 31 March 2022, the Risk Management Committee held a total of 1

meeting whereby the details of the meeting attendance by each Risk Management Committee member are as
follows:

Risk Management Committee Member Number of Meeting Attended/
Total Number of Meeting

1. Mr. Jakkapan Panomouppatham 11

2. Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas 11

3. Mr. Supavat Saicheua 11

During the previous fiscal year ending on 31 March 2022, the world economy was under the risk
caused by economic volatility as a result of the spread of Covid-19, and several industries were greatly

affected including the various businesses of the Company. The works performed by the Risk Management
Committee can be summarized as follows:

1.
2.

Assessing strategic risk and following up on action plan to reduce the risk to an acceptable level
Reporting to the Board of Directors about the risk, management of material risk and areas
which require improvement and amendment

On behalf of the Risk Management Committee

i VA

(Mr. Jakapan Panomouppatham)
Chairman of Risk Management Committee

30 May 2022
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Risk Management
Risk Management Policy

The Company has a Risk Management Committee to supervise in various aspects of risk for the
Company by stipulating each department to supervise, follow, and assess the risk that has an impact on
achieving the vision, objectives, or strategies in the business operation of the Company for the Company to

have the least business operating risk.

Risk Factors for the Business Operation of the Company
Demand risk

Market demand is particular important for Bangkok Land’s real estate business. A benefit shortfall may
result from lower projection compared to the actual demands, which will in turn cause financial and other
distress for the Company. Since the root cause of demand shortfalls is from planning overestimation, the
Group adopts a prudent approach in its project development planning which includes detailed consideration

of benefit shortfall analysis and close follow-ups on cost overruns.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from failed internal processes, which includes frauds,
workplace safety, product defects, assets damages, system failure, data entry, accounting error and
mandatory reporting. The Company’s management adopts a proactive approach and closely involved in the
day-to-day operation of the business. Internal controls are also in place to detect and safeguard operational

risk wherever appropriate.

Currency risk

On 5 February 2021, The Court of First Instance has rendered a judgment for the Company to repay
the Exchangeable Bonds and related indebtedness in the amount of USD 28.36 million and GBP 1.87 million,
including interest until the date of the completion of the payment. The following analysis illustrates the effect

on profit for a one percent change in exchange rate of Baht against USD and GBP.

Exchangeable Bonds in the USD Currency

Amount Profit effect
(Baht million) of 1 percent rate

Change
Principal debt together with the interest 949 9.49
USD 28.36 million
Other expenses in an amount of GBP 1.87 million 83 0.83
New interest as of 31 March 2022 68 0.68
Total 1,100 11.00
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Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk due to the impact of rate changes on interest bearing debts

with floating interest rates. The following analysis illustrates the effect on profit per year of a one percent

interest rate change.

Long-term loan

Provision for loss on pending lawsuits

Fixed rate interest
(Baht million)

527

Loan interest rate
(Baht million)

3,871

Profit effect
of 1 percent
change in interest

rate (Baht million)

38.71

Risks from liquidity

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising fund to meet its commitments

and operating requirements. Liquidity risk may arise from situations in which the Group cannot find customers

or buyers of its products or assets on a timely basis at times of poor market liquidity. The Group takes a

conscientious approach when deciding its sources and applications of funds to ensure sufficient liquidity to

meet its obligations.
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Business Sustainability Development b4
Policies and Goals for the Sustainability Management Y
The Board of Director intends to manage the organization efficiently and achieve the objectives and -"'-"

believes that by maintaining a high standard of business ethics and by following good corporate governance
practices will provide a strong background for the long-term success of the Group. The qualifications of the
good corporate governance consist of:

- Honesty,

- Transparency,

- Independence,

- Responsibilities to the duties,

- Fairness, and

- Social responsibilities.

This corporate governance principle has reflected the values, guidelines, and direction that will help
boost the confidence in business enabling competition with ethics, international standard, legal compliance,
and in accordance with the regulation on the good corporate governance under the SET’s regulations and the

guidelines of the SEC.

Management of Impacts on the Related Persons in Business Circle
Equal Treatment of Shareholders

The Board of Directors acknowledges that it is its duty to maintain an equal treatment to all groups of
shareholders of the Company, individual or institutional. Basic rights of shareholders are outlined under the
previous section - “Right of Shareholders”.

To protect the equitable rights of all shareholders, the Group Company prohibits directors, and staff to
use inside information acquired at work conflict for personal benefits. Directors and all employees are not
allowed to conduct a connected transaction that may have of interest with the Company and its subsidiaries.
If it is necessary, for the benefit of the Group, to conduct a connected transaction, it must comply with all the

SET rules, procedures and disclosure of connected transaction by a listed company.

Stakeholders in the Supply Chain Analysis

The Board of Directors understands the importance of fair treatment to all stakeholders such as
customers, employees, suppliers, shareholders, investors, creditors, community, the government, competitors
and external auditors. Company respects the rights of all stakeholders and provides channels for stakeholders
to communicate with the Group Company for unfair treatment and misconduct complaints. Procedures and

practice on treatment of major groups of stakeholders are summarized next.

Shareholders

The Company strictly adheres to the practice of treating all shareholders equally. Details of shareholders
equal rights are disclosed in previous sections on “Rights of Shareholders” and “Equitable Treatment of
Shareholders”. All businesses of the Group are operated with honesty, prudent financial management and

good business ethics as to ensure that the shareholders continue to receive the highest benefits.
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Customers

The Company appreciates the correlation between the success of its business and customers’
satisfaction. The Group Company provides its customers high standard products as well as services at fair
and competitive prices and provides the best service to the customers of the Company including executing
its commitments according to the agreement with its best efforts.

Employees

Company recognizes the contribution of employees for the success of the Company. It is the Group
Company’s policy to treat all staff members fairly in relation to remuneration, welfare, training, and discipline.
Company adopts a decentralized policy on matter concerning staff welfare and development. Individual
companies within the group are given flexibilities to set their own detailed schemes according to the need
and specific working conditions of each entity.

The Group Company encourages employees to attend various work related outside courses. Selected
employees are eligible to attend workshops and seminars presented by experts and academics to strengthen
effectiveness and teamwork whereby the average training hours for the executives who is not a director is 12
hours for this year (especially for the people responsible for the supervising an accounting process, the
“accountant”, has received a training to further develop the accounting knowledge for no less than 6 hours a
year). Company also provides in-house work-related training programs, talks and activities at regular intervals
on selected functional areas with the aim to assist professional development of individual employees and to
strengthen the general work performance of the staff.

The Group Company pays proper attention on the general well-being of its employees. Individual
companies within the Group organizes their own recreational events and activities with the aim to help
balancing work and leisure of the workforce. Company also employs appropriate safety measures in all its
work places to prevent accidents, injuries and other related health issues.

Creditors
Company’s policy is to equally and fairly treat its creditors and lenders, all creditors will be treated
fairly and equally in accordance with agreed terms and conditions.

Suppliers

The Group adheres to the policy of equitable treatment to all suppliers and honors all commitments as
stipulated in agreements with suppliers. Company also avoids choosing suppliers with conflict of interest to
connected persons of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Competitors

The Company respects fair and ethical competition practices in treating its competitors. The Company
never uses any unethical and fraudulent means in acquiring trade and related secrets as well as businesses
from its competitors.

Community, Social, and Environment

Company cares about the society and the environment which is a basis to be a good corporate
citizen. The Company promotes the use of alternative energy through its operation, and all its project layout,
construction and landscaping designs meets high standards of environmental protection. The Group Company
installs effective waste management, sewerage systems and flooding controls in all its housing and investment
property projects. The Muang Thong Thani housing estate and IMPACT exhibition facilities are good examples
to display the high standard of practices adopted by Bangkok Land on its commitment to good
environmental care and protection.
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Intellectual Properties or Copyright
The Company has a policy to comply with the laws relating to not violating the intellectual property
rights or the copyrights including not supporting the employees does any acts which is a violation of the

intellectual property rights of others without permission.

Measures to Inform Intel and Informer Protection Mechanism

The Company has a policy to protect every group of stakeholders by stipulating measures to inform
intel and informer protection mechanism. There is a measure to keep the information of the informer
confidential by submitting such matter directly to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee via post-delivery at

the Company’s address

Sustainability Management in terms of Environment
Policies and Guidelines relating to Environment

As the Company committed to be a good corporate citizen, the Company cares about the society and
the environment. Bangkok Land promotes the conservation of energy within its operation, and all its project
layout, construction and landscaping designs meet high standards of environmental protection. The Group
Company installs effective waste management, sewerage systems and flooding controls in all its housing and
investment property projects. The Muang Thong Thani housing estate and IMPACT exhibition facilities are
good examples to display the high standard of practices adopted by Bangkok Land on its commitment to

good environmental care and protection.

Result from the Environmental Operation
The reduction of energy use in the organization
Resulting from the global warming crisis which is becoming more pressing day by day whether warmer
climate or irregularities in season change which impacts the livelihoods and higher energy costs. Impact
Exhibition Management Company Limited thus launched programs to reduce energy usage in the areas for
conference, seminars, exhibition, and catering as well as instill the values for everyone in the organization to
be concerned and partake in the reducing the use of energy, reducing the impacts from global warming, and
complying with the laws by continuously plan for changes such as switching to LED lights which save the
energy and the change the air curtain which is an equipment help prevent air inside from going outside to
preserve the temperature inside to conserve the energy and the BBP usage control project.
Summary Report on the Energy Conservation Operation in the year 2021
- IMPACT sets a goal to the reduce energy usage by 4 percent from the year 2020, and actually
reduced by 16.57 percent.
- Reduce the use of the electricity energy equal to 2,944,242.16 kWh.
- Cut the expenses in the estimated of Baht 10,775,926.31.
- Comparable to the reduction of energy usage of 2 story houses having 16 Square wa usage area in an

amount of 7,361 houses which is equal to reduction of greenhouse gas of 5,248,203.49 Kilo Carbon.

Installing of Solar Cell, Using Clean Energy, and Reducing the Greenhouse Gas Emission

Working to support the use of the solar cell system in the form of solar rooftop which converts natural
energy such as sunlight to electricity which save energy related expenses and does not cause air pollution
which may be caused by electricity generating process. The solar cell system can be used sustainably as it is

an energy channeled from the sunlight directly which is infinite.
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Solar Cell Installation in Various Areas
- IMPACT CHALLENGER, IMPACT FORUM building, IMPACT IN DOOR PARKING 3 car parking building
Having generating capacity at 1,062.84 kW by Impact Exhibition Management Company Limited
- COSMO BAZAAR Phase 1, COSMO BAZAAR Phase 2 (installation in process)
Having generating capacity at 969.84 kWP by Bangkok Land Agency Company Limited
- COSMO OFFICE PARK (installation in process)
Having generating capacity at 165.24 kWP by Bangkok Airport Industry Company Limited
- BEEHIVE LIFESTYLE MALL (installation in process)
Having generating capacity at 369 kWP by Bangkok Land Public Company Limited

Waste Sorting

Impact Exhibition Management Company Limited, the operator of the IMPACT Exhibition and
Convention Center has changed the trashcan system from single trashcan to waste sorting trashcan with
systematic sorting using the 4R principles which are reuse, repair/recover, reduce, and recycle for taking
contaminated waste to be managed correctly without further contaminating water source or soil, and bring
uncontaminated waste to further utilize to maximize the benefit, reduce impacts on the environment, support

public image, and align with the sustainability practice.

Summary of the amount of “recycle trash” received from sorting in the exhibition buildings in the year 2021
- Plastic bottles in total of 398 kg
- Paper box in total of 927 kg

Waste Water Management in Muang Thong Thani Area

As the area in Muang Thong Thani is large comprising of residential building group, offices, exhibition
halls, and retail shops, there is a design to install the central waste water management before being released
to the nature to create balance to the ecosystem and not impacting the environment and complying with the
laws which the waste water to be released from the projects to the nature must pass waste water treatment
to be in the standards as prescribed by the law.
- Maximum waste water management is at 7,500 cubic meters per day.

- In the year 2021, there were waste water treated in an amount of 561,250 cubic meter.

Reduction of Plastic Use

In the present, there are many uses of plastic in daily life causing many plastics wastes on a daily
basis as well. It is well known that plastic waste is difficult to decompose or eliminate which results in
environmental impacts and pollution problems which leads to global warming. Impact Exhibition Management
Company Limited who sets goal to sustainable development realizes the changes in global environment and
global warming and has campaigned to the mitigate global warming by supporting to reduce the use plastic
such as by replacing plastic bag with cloth bag, not giving out straws in restaurant, replacing the food
container to bio-degradable container including utensils used for food consumption such as container, food
box, straws, glass, spoon and forks, and napkin.
- There are 40 types of the bio-degradable food containers in use

- This covers the entire catering process and restaurant groups within the IMPACT chain.
Level 2 Electric Car Charging Station Service
Impact Exhibition Management Company Limited sees the importance of electric cars which is an

innovation that cares for the earth and thus open 8 level 2 electric car charging stations together with the
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having 8 electric cars ready to rent to provide electric car charging stations and car-sharing service to the
customers who participates in the event or use other services in the center which is part of IMPACT’s
ambitions to develop and move the business forward by adhering to sustainable development to respond to h -

the customer’s wants together with taking care of the environment.

The 8 level 2 electric car charging stations are:

1. The Portal Lifestyle Complex Indoor car parking building
3. P3 indoor car-parking building
5. Beehive Lifestyle Mall Novotel Bangkok Impact
7. ibis Bangkok IMPACT Cosmo Walk

- The charging of electricity charges only Baht 50 per hour via application Evolt.

The Challenger Building

® o K~ DN

- For the 8 electricity cars for rent, those who want to use the service can reserve the car via application Haup.

Bicycle Patrol

The executives of the Impact Exhibition Management Company Limited has a policy to make IMPACT
Muang Thong Thani a safe space and thus appoint the City Management which is the agency responsible for the
inspection of the traffic and safety around Muang Thong Thani. In this regard, to be aligned with the
environmental policies and help reduce environmental pollution, the patrol working group thus use the bicycle as
the vehicle to perform the patrolling work in many areas instead of cars and motorcycles as it has more mobility

due to the lessor speed. This also helps reduce the use of fossil energy and air pollution from such energy.

IMPACT Loves the Earth: Pass on the Clear Plastic Bottles to Recycle

As the executives of the Impact Exhibition Management Company Limited were informed about the
amount of clear plastic bottles in the IMPACT Exhibition and Convention Center that were trashed, they
appointed the operational team to set up a management to solve such problem according to the Corporate
Social Responsibilities and environmental protection by set up a collection point and separate between the
bottle and the caps for an easier recycling process. This is also an activity for the employee to realize and

jointly conserve the environment thereby reducing the trash-related problems in the society.

IMPACT to Use Automatic Food Decomposer to Convert Waster to Fertilizer

As it is well known that the other than being a location and facility for the hosting of activities, IMPACT
also offers food and beverage services. In each of the event, there will have food waste from the preparation
and dining. IMPACT viewed that those food waste are in fact resources which can be transformed for value
and thus use technologies to transform such waste into fertilizer for the organic vegetables’ farms and others.
Moreover, this technology helps reduce environmental problem by reducing greenhouse gas which is the
cause of the global warming crisis by 315 CO2ep per day or 115 tons per year. The food waste can be
converted to the 20 kilograms of fertilizer per day or 7,300 kilograms per year which is equal to growing of
28 trees a year or 10,220 trees per year. All of this support the operational policies that aims to achieve

sustainable development.

Hotel Sustainable Project by Novotel Bangkok Impact

NOVOTEL BANGKOK IMPACT within the Bangkok Land Group sees the importance in sustainability
and to reduce the impacts the business operation has on the environment by providing service and choose a
product that is environment-friendly together with the direction for energy conservation and trash reduction to
protect the earth by considering economic, social, and environmental factor to be the core of business

operation responsibly to the employees, community, and the surroundings through the followings:
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Effective Waste Management
The hotel has a waste sorting system and waste sorting room for plastic bottles and paper box for
further recycling.

The use of Biodegradable Product or Packaging

The hotel uses the bag that helps save the earth and is environmentally-friendly. In each instance,
there would always be an inquiry upon the customers if they would like a plastic bag to reduce the use of
resources. Furthermore, the products used in the hotel are products derived from the nature in an
environmentally-friendly packaging and naturally decomposable.

“We say No to Straw” Projects
This is a reduction of straw usage in hotels in every time a beverage is served unless requested by the
customer in which the straw used will biodegradable which is environmentally-friendly.

Works towards the Reduction of Resources Use for only Necessities
The hotel campaigns for the travelers to reduce the change in bedsheets or towels every day to conserve
energy from washing of such bedsheets or towels whereby the hotel will provide the sign on the bed.
Replacing All Plastic Water Bottles to Glass Bottles in the Guest Room

Economic Operating Result
Supporting of the Employment of the People within the Community and Students

Impact Exhibition Management Company Limited supports the hiring of people with the community
continuously to generate income and employment for the people in the nearby community creating good
relations between the Company and the community and also providing revenue for the students by hiring
them during the holidays including providing income for the students interning at the Impact Exhibition
Management Company Limited to provide the support for daily expenses of the students.

(In the year 2021, there were daily 5,109 daily workers accounting to 63,675 working hours)

IMPACT Farm Project

This project comes from the love and care for the health in which the IMPACT Farm is ready provide
organic fruits and vegetables to the market and consumers as well as to use in food preparation to the
customers of the restaurant in the IMPACT Group and IMPACT catering which can be considered as providing
revenue-generating assistance to the farmers by purchasing the organic fruits and vegetables from farmers in the
local farmers under the new economy theory group in Chiangmai in total of 69 farmers. Initially, the first launch
products are comprised of lime, salad vegetables, local vegetables including bananas, rose apple, and guava.

The purchase was made in a market price to provide the support for the farmers to generate the income
within the community and that there would be enough organic goods for the customer’s demands. Although the
costs become higher, and the profits reduce, from the long-distance shipment, but above all, and more important
than the business, is the true consideration for making people to have good health, good quality of life, and live
happily for themselves, the family and the customers to have organic food to consume. The farmers would have
income and encouragement to continue farming organically. The environment is protected by the people in the
community. This small starting point would lead to the bigger picture in the future for sustainability.

The 50 Rai Banana Farm Project

With an objective of the executives to convert 50 Rai empty lands near the Muang Thong Thani Lake
to a utilized land, there is a proposed project to grow bananas on the lands whereby the operating team
manages the project by transforming the lands for agricultural uses. The project team assists in the banana’s
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plantation by selecting 2 banana variations from Nakhornnayok province which are Pisang Awak banana and
Cavendish banana. Both are low-cost, easy to maintain, and fast to agriculture. The project of growing more
than 10,000 bananas not only will create utilization of the land, but also once ready to cultivate it will help 'I- .
reduce the cost of the IMPACT kitchen which will have fruits readily available to serve the customers in s
catering and other services as well as sharing with employees and communities as appropriate.

Organic Farming for IMPACT’s Restaurant

The executives of the Impact Exhibition Management Company Limited has policy to use the empty
lands near the Muang Thong Thani Lake to grow vegetables for the IMPACT’s restaurant group which will be
a reduction of costs to purchase the raw materials such as fresh vegetables to cook for the customers. This
project is operated by the city management. In the initial phrase, there will be an agriculture of the vegetables
as ordered by the restaurant in Thonglor which will be the normal vegetables in cooking such as morning
glory, kale, guisha, aubergine, basil, and coriander. Later, kos lettuce has been started planting. When the
vegetables are fully grown, they will be cultivated and deliver to the cooking team and the restaurant in the

group by the operating team to cook for the customers.

Social Operating Result
IMPACT Muang Thong Thani offers 100,000-square-meter Challenger halls to Ministry of Public Health
without rents

Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas, Chief Executive Officer of Bangkok Land Public Company Limited Group,
shares his concerns over a new wave of the virus outbreak that not only affects every walk of life and the
nation as a whole but also exacerbates shortages of hospital beds and intends to give support to the
government and COVID-19 patients.

Thus, he offers IMPACT Challenger boasting upwards of 100,000 square meters for help Ministry of
Public Health to consider as a field hospital location to care for the COVID-19 patients without rents and
become the largest field hospital in Thailand and expected to be able to accommodate up to 5,200 patients
with its large size. After the Cabinet approves to make the Challenger a field hospital, the Challenger has
been cleaned and adjust the location as well as hand the location over to the Ministry of Public Health
supervision for disease control standards. In this regard, there are all equipment including HVAC systems,
wastewater treatment, fast, reliable internet connections, and CCTV systems as well as an installation of
internet signals with cooperation from other private sector which is a full-house facilitation with a hope to help

the society, the nation, and the public health safety of the people.

IMPACT Speed Park Donates Proceeds to the Pakkred Home for Boys in Nonthaburi

Impact Exhibition Management Company Limited by IMPACT Speed Park join in a donation from selling of
go-kart purchase on Valentine’s Day to the Pakkred Home for Boys in Nonthaburi with its operators to join in the
handover of proceeds. This CSR activity is one of the true intentions of all IMPACT staff from all departments, to carry

on contributing corporate social responsibility in the future under the “IMPACT Touching Heart Sharing” project.

The members of the Nonthaburi Children’s Home express gratitude for IMPACT’'s members
Impact Exhibition Management Company Limited led by the representative from the Corporate
Communications team, donated all necessary items which were donated from employees to the Nonthaburi

Children’s Home. With the cooperation between the management and staff members, there were many items donated.
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IMPACT donated old calendars to produce braille materials for the blind

Impact Exhibition Management Company Limited and companies within the Bangkok Land Group
made a donation of more than 1,000 old calendars to the Educational Technology for the Blind Center in
Nonthaburi to produce braille studying materials for the blind. Corporate Communications team travelled to
handover over 1,000 old calendars to the Educational Technology for the Blind Center in Nonthaburi to
commence the production of braille studying materials.

IMPACT donates new and used items to Baan Nokkamin Foundation

Employees of the Impact Exhibition Management Company Limited and companies within the Bangkok
Land Group handed in all donated goods for second-handed and new items to Baan Nokkamin Foundation.
The foundation has brought a car to carry them and said that they would be sent to Leuua-Kor Project where
new items will be given away while used items that are in good condition will be sold to raise money where
50 percent of the earnings will be given to Baan Nokkamin Foundation for children’s expenses, another 20
percent will be given to Christian association, and the remaining 30 percent will be donated to Leuua-Kor
Project to support the operation of the Kids-Gym to support sport activities for children in the community
and further management in the Leuua-Kor Project.

IMPACT supports gifts for Children’s Day

Impact Exhibition Management Company Limited by Corporate Communications Department
represented the Company to deliver baked goods from IMPACT Kitchen to 4 educational institutes and
schools in Nonthaburi and Bangkok, including Klong Klua School, Jatujak Youth Center, Donmuang Youth
Center, and Suan Oy Youth Center to celebrate the annual National Children’s Day for the year 2022.

Donation of old towels, pillow sheets, and bedsheets for dogs and cats’ medical aids

Another benefits that many might not know is that the towels, bedsheets, and pillow case that are no
longer in use can help for stray dogs and cats in their recovery after surgery and other medical needs. Impact
Exhibition Management Company Limited by Corporate Communications Department invite everyone to make
merit by donating old towels, old pillow sheets, and old bedsheets for dogs’ and cats’ surgical operations and
wound dressings for “Soi Dog Foundation” www.soidog.org which is located at No. 167/9 Moo 4 Soi Mai
khao 10, Sub-district Mai Khao, District Tlang, Phuket.

IMPACT Appreciates Your Good Deed: IMPACT members to donate old lottery tickets

Impact Exhibition Management Company Limited by the Real Estate Department has prepared drop off
locations to drop off old lottery tickets for children with special needs at Huay Mu Temple in Ratchaburi
province to make funeral flowers, hats, and vest.

Blood Donation Service Point

Impact Exhibition Management Company Limited by human Resources together with the Thai Red
Cross arranged for the blood donation activities continuously for 4 times a year by inviting the employees of
IMPACT and the companies within the Group as well as the general public to join in blood donation which
have been met with good response as a providing of assistance for the people in the society.

At Muang Thong Thani, we never leave anyone behind

Based on the spread of the Covid-19 that is still alarming and the infected numbers remains high, for the
safety and the prevention of the spread in the Muang Thong Thani area, Muang Thong Services and
Management Company Limited (MSM), a company in the Bangkok Land Group, as the manager of the Popular
Condominium in collaboration between The Ministry of Public Health on providing free COVID-19 tests for the
condominium’s residents with the employees of the MSM provides convenience for every resident.
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Nonthaburi Vaccination Site ready to open at IMPACT

Impact Exhibition Management Company Limited realized the prevention and immunity building to
prevent the spread of the COVID-19 as important, it is thus welcome and collaborated with the Nonthaburi
province by providing the support in a form of IMPACT Exhibition and Convention Center and the IMPACT
Arena for the Nonthaburi Provincial Public Health Office for the opening of the Nonthaburi Vaccination Site for
the students and the public under the campaign Nont Prompt, Nont Students, and Nont Kids.

The granting of rights and equality for people with disability

Muang Thong Services and Management Company Limited sees the importance of the rights, freedom,
and human dignity of the people with disability and thus intend to and support a hiring of people with
disability and providing assistance needed for this type of employees specifically, and the exhibition centers
have been designed to accommodate the people with disability to be the connecting point allowing the
people with disability to enter into the society, connection, education, occupation, access to news and
livelihood of an able person.

- In the year 2020, there are a hiring of 14 disabled people.

- In the year 2021, there are a hiring of 12 disabled people

Internship Programs

Muang Thong Services and Management Company Limited by the human resources welcomes
students from Chiangmai University, Kasetsart University, and Bansomdejchaopraya Rajabhat University to
intern and learn under the project “Kla MICE” with an objective to allow students from various institutions to
learn and have a hands-on experience to be the next generation personnel in the MICE industry.

Community Dog Project Muang Thong Thani

Stray dog problem remains a problem that is still yield an effect on the society and the communities nearby.
IMPACT Exhibition MuangThong Thani thus organized a community dog Muang Thong Thani project with a
support from the Bangkok Land Public Company Limited, IMPACT Exhibition Management Company Limited,
SOS Animal Thailand Foundation, Department of Livestock Development, and Pakkred City Municipality
Nonthaburi province to reduce complaints resulting from problems arising from dogs which is a guideline to
sustainably solve the problems in the area using the community model where every sector has a chance to
handle the living, feeding, castrating, giving rabies vaccines to the dogs in the Muang Thong Thani area.

The handling of the dogs under this project is in according to the laws relating to animal protection
where all of the dogs will receive a rabies vaccination, fleas control, collar, and shirts according to its
behaviors which includes red collar and shirt means that the dog is moody, fearful, and should not be pet;
the yellow shirt and collar means that they are cautious and can only be pet by the people they are familiar
with; and the green shirt and collar means that they are friendly to everyone. There are currently 70 dogs in
the project which includes 23 dogs in each IMPACT’s building combined, 40-50 dogs residing in the Popular
Condominium. There are plans to expand the project to the areas around the Muang Thong Thani.

- In the year 2021, the goal is to reduce the complaint about stray dogs within the Muang Thong

Thani area to not exceeding 5 times, there were 2 complaints made.

- The total castration of dogs were 25 dogs.

- The total rabies vaccination were 53 dogs

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Policies and Guidelines for Corporate Social Responsibility

At the time of making this report, no written procedure manual has been prepared at the time of
preparing this report although there has been a continuous policies’ implementation. In view of the Group’s
organization structure and nature of its current business, the Board of Directors believes that the current
arrangement is appropriate and adequate.
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Total Profits and Loss

Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Baht Million 2022 2021 Percent  Percent 2021 Percent
Business Segment
- Real Estate 659 1,409 -53.2 343 401 -14.5
- Exhibition, Convention & Hotel 1,436 1,855 -22.6 (547) 69 -
- Retall 306 346 -11.6 79 87 -9.2
- Others 121 149 -18.8 66 70 -5.7
- Intercompany elimination (532) (642) -174 (45) (504) -91.1
Operating Result 1,990 3,117 -36.2 (104) 123 -
Manufacturing Overhead Cost for shares (289) (336) -14.0
Profits (Loss) from the operating result (393) (213) 84.5
Special Interests
- Net borrowing cost (101) (95) 6.3
- Profit from evaluation of investment 1,819 1,090 66.9

property

- loss from a litigation case (83) (1,032) -92.0
Profits (Loss) before tax 1,242 (250) -
Income tax (590) (328) 79.9
Profits (Loss) for the year 652 (578) -
Non-controlling interests (80) (223) -64.1
Profits (Loss) which is the equity 572 (801) -

of the company’s shareholders

Overall

For the year end on 31 March 2021, the Group Company had a combined income from the normal

operation equal to Baht 1,990 million (year 2021 -Baht 3,117 million) decrease by million 1,127 million which

is a decreased by 36.2 percent.

The Group Company makes loss from the normal business operation equal to Baht 393 million (year

2021 - Baht 213 million loss) an increase of Baht 180 million which is an equal to 84.5 percent.

The Group Company makes net profits for the large company for Baht 572 million (year 2021 - Baht

801 million loss) which is an increase of Baht 1,373 million.
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Real Estate
Baht million 2022 2021 Change in percent
Income 659 1,409 -53.2
Cost of Sale (246) (908) -729
Primary Profits 413 501 -17.6
Other Income 9 53 -83.0
422 554 -23.8
Selling and administrative expenses (79) (153) -48.4
Business profits 343 401 -145
Gross margin 62.7 percent 35.6 percent 271

The Company has an income from sale equal to Baht 659 million (year 2021 - Baht 1,409 million),
which is a decrease of Baht 750 million equal to a reduction of 53.2 percent whereby there were a reduction
of land transfer for Baht 717 million, condominium reduction by Baht 22 million, townhouses reduction by
Baht 5 million, and income from the rent and service reduction by Baht 6 million.

The Company has a gross profits rate from a sale equal to 62.7 percent (year 2021 - 35.6 percent) which
is an increase of 27.1 percent from the lands that has a reduced in the transferring rate as well as a reduced
in income from rents and service fees causing the reduced gross profits in an amount of Baht 88 million.

The Company has an expense in the sale and management equal to Baht 79 million (year 2021 - Baht
153 million) which is reduced by Baht 74 million equal to a reduction of 48.4 percent reduction with a
reduction of the specific business tax from the transfer of the lands in an amount of Baht 28 million,
condominium and townhouses reduced by Baht 1 million.

The Company has a profit from the normal business operation equal to Baht 343 million (year 2021 -

Baht 401 million) which is a reduction by Baht 58 million which is equal to a reduction by 14.5 percent.

Exhibition, Convention & Hotel

Baht million 2022 2021 Change in percent
Income 1,436 1,855 -22.6
Cost of sale (1,376) (1,342) 25
Primary Profits 60 513 -88.3
Other Income 207 415 -50.1
267 928 -71.2
Selling and administrative expenses (814) (859) -52
Business profits (547) 69 -
Gross profits margin 4.2 percent 27.7 percent -23.5
Exhibition area utilization rate 33.4 percent 27.0 percent 6.4
Customer’s satisfaction rate 95.1 percent 93.3 percent 1.8
Rents/Square meter/day (Baht) rate 32.10 66.71 -51.9
Hotel's utilization rate 38.7 percent 16.2 percent 22.6
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IMPACT has an income derived from the main 3 business segments which are exhibition and
convention is 61.8 percent (year 2021 - 74.1 percent), food and beverage 22.1 percent (year 2021 - 184
percent), and hotel business rate 16.2 percent (year 2021 - 7.4 percent).

Utilization rate of the area is increased 6.4 percent to 33.4 percent (year 2021 - 27.0 percent) resulting:

IMPACT has an income from offering service to be the exhibition and convention equal to Baht 887
million (year 2021 - 1,375 million) which is a reduction by Baht 488 million which is equal to 35.5 percent
reduction.

IMPACT has an income from the selling of food and beverage equal to Baht 317 million (year 2021 -
Bath 342 million) which is reduced by Baht 25 million which is equal to 7.3 percent reduction.

IMPACT has an income from hotel business equal to the Baht 232 million (year 2021 - Baht 138
million) which is an increased by Baht 94 million which is equal to an increase of 68.1 percent.

In overall, IMPACT has an income from the rents and service fees equal to Baht 1,436 million (Year
2021 - Baht 1,855 million) reduced by Baht 419 million which is equal to a reduction of 22.6 percent.

IMPACT has a gross profit margin from the rents and service fees equal to 4.2 percent (year 2021 -
27.7 percent) a reduction of 23.5 percent from the rent income and service fees that is reduced caused the
gross profit margin to reduce in an amount of Baht 453 million.

IMPACT has a selling and administrative expenses in an amount of Baht 814 million (year 2021 - Baht
859 million) a reduction of Baht 45 million which is equal to a reduction of 5.2 percent.
IMPACT has a loss from the normal business operation equal to Baht 547 million from (Year 2021 -

Baht 69 million profit) which is a reduction of Baht 616 million.

Retail Business and Building Management Service

Utilities and Building
Retail Business Management and Others

Change in Change in

Baht million 2022 2021 Percentage 2022 2021 Percentage
Income 306 346 -11.6 121 149 -18.8
Cost of sale (185) (227) -185 (39) (43) -93
Primary Profits 121 119 1.7 82 106 -22.6
Other Income 10 6 66.7 34 10 240.0
131 125 48 116 116 -
Selling and administrative expenses (52) (38) 36.8 (50) (46) 8.7
Business profits 79 87 -92 66 70 -5.7
Gross profits margin 39.5% 34.4% 5.1 67.8% 71.1% -3.4

Retail, building management, and trust manager business are not the main business of the Company.
They are created to be additional services to the real estate projects of the Group Company in Muang Thong
Thani. The operating result between the years still have no material change compared to the previous year.

Overall, the Group Company reports profits from business operation in an amount of Baht 79 million
which comes from retail business, and the profits in an amount of Baht 66 million from the utilities and

building management business and others.
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Extraordinary Item -
Group Company has a profits from the valuation of immovable properties for investment in an amount er-.
A

of Baht 1,813 million (Year 2021 - Baht 1,090 million), loss from being filed a litigation case against in an
amount of Baht 83 million (Year 2021 - Baht 1,032 million), and the net cost from loan in amount of Baht 101
million (Year 2021 - Baht 95 million)

Income Tax

Group Company has an income tax expense equal to Baht 590 million. The same period of the last
year the Company had an income tax expense in an amount of Baht 328 million which is an increase of Baht
262 million from the profits from the valuation of the investment in real estate and the normal operation of the

Company.

Net asset value per share

One of the normal criteria used to assess the basic values of a company is by calculation of the total
net amount of the assets of the company. Using this method, the total adjusted net asset value per share of
the Bangkok Land and subsidiaries as of 31 March 2022 was at Baht 2.83 (Year 2021 - Baht 2.80) showing
an increased in value of 1.1 percent (year 2021 - 1.8 decrease) per asset value per share after adjustment of

the Company.

Adjusted Net Asset Value Per Share

Baht Million 2022 2021

Total shareholders’ equity 52,779 52,670
Minority Interest (8,115) (8,072)
Deferred tax on revaluation surplus of property, plant & equipment 936 945
Deferred tax on revaluation surplus of investment properties 3,506 3,089
Adjusted shareholders’ equity 49,106 48,632
Issued shares (million shares) 17,374 17,374
Value per share (Baht) 2.83 2.80
Value per share premium/(discount) 1.1 (1.8)
Closing market price per share (Baht) - last trading day of March 1.02 1.18
Increase price of shares/(decrease) in percentage (13.6) 43.9

Assets

Total assets of the Group increased 0.9 percent to Baht 63,463 million (2021 - Baht 63,879million).
Key components of assets comprised “lands, plant and equipment” (22.7 percent), “Inventory” (1.4
percent), “investment real estate” (64.3 percent) as well as cash and cash equivalents, other current financial

assets plus account receivable and other receivable, net (8.6 percent), details of which are summarized next.

Inventory
Inventory remained broadly unchanged compared to last year. The inventory increases by 26.9 percent

to Baht 914 million (2021 - Baht 720 million) most comes from transfer real estate for investment.
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Land, plant and equipment
Cash out flow to purchase, building construction and equipment for the total year was Baht 158
million, most comes from the construction of Lenotre-Culinary Arts School building interior systems and
structure including equipment and decorations, and the construction of infrastructure in Muang Thong Thani.
After deducting the total amount of depreciation charges of Baht 526 million, reported net book value
of land, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2022 decreased 1.9 percent to Baht 14,389 million (2021 - Baht
14,674 million).

Investment property

Cash out flow to purchase, building construction for the total year was Baht 4 million, the new
valuation in the last quarter resulted in a surplus of Baht 1,819 million.

All real estate valuation was performed by an independent third party professional appraiser approved
by the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

The total investment real estate increased by 3.4 percent to Baht 40,826 million (2021 - Baht 39,468
million) with a total evaluation surplus of Baht 1,819 million (2021 - Baht 1,090 million) recognized as other

revenue in the consolidated financial statement of the Company.

Liquidity

Cash flow from operating activities is of Baht 293 million in positive primarily resulting from profits
before income tax expense of Baht 1,242 million deducting net adjustments to reconcile profit before income
expense Baht 716 million and the effect of decreasing in the change in net working capital of Baht 233
million.

Cash flow from investing activities plus of Baht 288 million primarily resulting from decreasing of other
current financial assets of Baht 437 million, capital expenditure of Baht 162 million, and Baht 13 million from
the others.

Cash flow from financing activities is at negative Baht 683 million primarily resulting from cash paid for
dividend payment in an amount of Baht 521 million, dividend payment of subsidiaries of Baht 37 million,
interest payment for bank loan of Baht 113 million, Baht 4 million from repayment of long-term loan and Baht
8 million from repayment for lease liabilities.

In effect, Bangkok Land’s consolidated statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
recorded a net decrease of Baht 102 million in cash and cash equivalent to Baht 4,224 million (2021 - Baht
4,326 million).

Liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities as at 31 March 2022 increased 4.7 percent to Baht 10,684 million
compared to Baht 10,208 million in the previous year. This increased in the Group’s total liabilities to equity
ratio to 0.24 times from 0.23 times a year ago.

Consolidated net total liabilities (net of cash, cash equivalent, and net other current financial assets) as
at 31 March 2022 was Baht 5,375 million compared to Baht 4,361 million in previous year. This decreased the

Group’s net total liabilities to equity ratio to 0.12 times from 0.10 times a year ago.
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The following table presents a summary of the Group’s total liabilities as at 31 March 2022.

Baht Million Total Interest-bearing Non-Interest-
Debt bearing Debt
Long Term Loans 3,871 3,871 -
Deferred Tax 4,164 - 4,164
Projection for liabilities on pending lawsuits 1,118 527 591
Other Liabilities & Accruals 1,531 - 1,531
Total Liabilities 10,684 4,398 6,286

Shareholders’ Equity

Shareholders’ equity increased 0.1 percent to Baht 44,664 million (year 2021- Baht 44,599 million)

which is a result of the consolidated net profits after tax of Baht 572 million for the year ended 31 March

2022 and dividend payment.

Commitment and Contingent Liabilities

There were no other major commitment and contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2022 which might

materially affect the financial position of the Group Company.
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General Information and Other Material Facts

General Information

Share Registrar Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited
The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building
93, 14" Floor, Rachadapisek Road, Dindaeng, Bangkok 10400
Telephone: 66-2-0099000 Facsimile: 66-2-0099992

Auditors Miss Kannika Wipanurat
CPA Registration Number 7305
Karin Audit Company Limited
72 CAT Telecom Tower, 24" Floor
Charoen Krung Road, Bangrak, Bangkok 10500
Telephone: 66-2-1054661 Facsimile: 66-2-0263760

Legal Advisors Siam Premier International Law Office Limited
26" Floor, The Offices at Central World
999/9 Rama | Road, Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330
Telephone: 66-2-6461888 Facsimile: 66-2-6461919

Appraiser Tap Valuation Company Limited
74, Soi Nakniwas 6, Nak Niwat, Lat Phrao, Lat Phrao, Bangkok
Telephone: 66-2105-4781 Facsimile: 66-2539-7339

The Valuation & Consultants Co., Ltd.
719 KPN Building, Rama IX Rd, Bang Kapi, Huai Khwang, Bangkok 10310
Telephone: 66-2717-0801-8 Facsimile: 66-2717-0800

Other Material Information

- None -

Legal Dispute

The Company has a pending litigation case which was brought by a trustee of the exchangeable
debentures in the USD currency, an individual and a subsidiary were sued for a breach of contract. There are
total of 3 entities sued which can be divided to the original debt sued in an amount of Baht 1,047 million
(Baht 1,047 million, Baht - million, and Baht - million), and reserved interest in an amount Baht 68 million
(Baht 68 million, Baht - million, and Baht - million) according to the complaint which the Court of First
Instance had rendered its decision which includes 1 trustee to submit a counter-claim on 14 June 2019.
Central Intellectual Property and International Trade Court rendered a judgement on 5 February 2021 that the
Company and Bangkok Land (Cayman Islands) Limited shall jointly be liable to repay the debt of the

outstanding debentures together with the interest calculable until the date of the filing of the counter-claim
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which is equal to the principal and interest in an amount equal to USD 28 million and other outstanding
expenses together with their interests calculable until the date of the counter-claim in an amount equal to
GBP 2 million as well as the interest until the date of payment completion combined with the fees and
attorney fees. Another individual sued the Company in both civil and criminal case for the violation of the
Securities and Exchange Act and fraud. This case is pending for the examination at the criminal court. The
civil court is temporarily suspended to wait for the result of the criminal case. The Company’s lawyer is of
opinion that the Company is not the offender or the committed the tort as alleged by the plaintiff, and a
subsidiary is sued for breach of contract. This case is pending for witness examination in the Court of the
First Instance.

The debt that the Group Company must repay under the complaint and the decision as mentioned is
in total of 1 case (not including 1 individual and subsidiary as mentioned). The interest calculation until 31
March 2022 is equal to Baht 68 million totaling the debt and interest to Baht 1,115 million which can be
categorized by the status in each court as follows:

Court of First Instance Court of Appeal Supreme Court Total
Plaintiff case | Total Debt with | case | Total Debt with | case | Total Debt with | case | Total Debt with
Interest Interest Interest Interest
(Baht Million) (Baht Million) (Baht Million) (Baht Million)
Trustee - - 1 1,115 - - 1 1,115
Total - - 1 1,115 - - 1 1,115

Subsidiary Market

- None -

Frequent Contact Financial Institution

- None -
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Part 2

Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Policies

The Company realizes the importance of the principles and procedures concerning the good corporate
governance. The Board of Director believes that the preservation of the ethical standards in business
operation. The compliance to the good corporate governance will help to be the basis of the business
operation of the Group Company to be secured and successful in the long term.

The Group Company accepts the policies for the good corporate governance and that it is sufficient.
Between the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has accepted all guideline according to the
SEC and the SET’s stipulation to adapt in the business operation of the Company except for the following:

The Chairman of the Board of Director is not an independent director as the Company deems that
Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas is a person with knowledge, capacities, experience, and leadership skills to lead the
Company to achieve the objectives of the organization and thus a person with the capacities to be the chairman
of the Board. However, the Company has operated the business based on good corporate governance, and
the composition of the Board of Directors are well balanced as appropriate. The various operations are in

accordance of the rules and regulations of the Company and under the supervision of the Board of Directors.

Rights of the Shareholders
The Board of Director realized that it is the duty of all directors to protect the rights of all shareholders.

The Company has a policy to ensure that the all shareholders receive the following rights:

1. Purchase, sale, or transfer of shares;

2. Profit sharing in the Company;

3. To receive the news and information of the Company sufficiently, timely, and according to the normal
practices; and

4. Have access to vote in a Shareholders’ Meeting as stipulated in the laws relating to Public Company and
the various regulations such as the appointment or the revocation of the director of the Company, an
appointment of the auditor, a dividend distribution, and an amendment of the Company’s articles of

associations.

The procedures and the regulations for the Shareholders’ Meeting shall be according to the guideline as
approved by the SET for each shareholder to have enough time to consider and for the equal facilitation for
each and every shareholder. The Company delivered an invitation to the shareholders for 14 days in advance
and disclose the complete form of the invitation on the Company’s website for no less than 14 days in advance
of the Meeting’s date where the Meeting’s invitation will specify the date, time, and the location of the Meeting,
as well as the Meeting’s agenda and the documents relating to such Meeting completely within the invitation.
The shareholders who are unable to attend themselves can appoint other persons or the independent director
of the Company to be the proxy for the Meeting. The Company provides an explanation for the steps and
procedures for voting for the shareholders during the proceedings of the Meeting, and the voting ballot cards

are used to ensure voting transparency and to be collected as evidence for reference in the future.
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The latest General Shareholders’ Meeting was hosted on 22 July 2021 at 14:00 by an E-Meeting at the
at Boardroom 1, 10th floor Bangkokland building 47/569-576, Moo 3, Popular Road, Bannmai Sub-district,
Pakkred District, Nonthaburi Province. There were 8 directors attending. Within this amount, there were 5 of 'I- ,
the Chief Executive Officer and independent directors attending as well. The invitation together with the R
supplementing documents for the Meeting was delivered to the Company’s shareholders more than 14 days
prior to the Meeting. The Company also published the same set of the invitation on the newspaper for 3 days
prior to the Meeting where the all of the documents were made in both Thai and English.

On the Shareholders’ Meeting date, there were 78 shareholders who attend the Meeting themselves
and in proxy which is equal to 7,640,175,524 shares or 44.0289 percent of all the issued and paid-up shares
in the Company which is in an amount of 17,352,625,154 shares (after deducting the treasury stock shares of
the Company). Karin Audit Company Limited, the Company’s auditor, and Siam Premier International Law
Office Limited, the Company’s legal advisor, are invited to attend the Meeting to assist the Board of Directors
respond to the shareholders’ inquiries.

During the Meeting, every shareholder received an opportunity to express an opinion and inquire about
any matters relating to the operation of the Company from the Board of Directors equally. Every matter
inquired by the shareholders would receive a clear response from the Board of Directors. The inquiries and
the response relating to the business operation of the Company will also be recorded in the Shareholders’

Meeting Minutes as well.

Equal Treatment to Shareholders

The Board of Directors acknowledges that it is its duty to maintain an equal treatment to all groups of
shareholders of the Company, individual or institutional. Basic rights of shareholders are outlined under the
previous section - “Right of Shareholders”.

To protect the equality of all shareholders, the Company prohibits directors, and staff to use inside
information acquired at work conflict for personal benefits. Directors and all employees are not allowed to
conduct a connected transaction that may have of interest with the Company and its subsidiaries. If it is
necessary, for the benefit of the Group Company, to conduct a connected transaction, it must comply with all

the SET rules, procedures and disclosure of connected transaction by a listed company.

Role of Stakeholders

The Board of Directors understands the importance of fair treatment to all stakeholders such as
customers, employees, suppliers, shareholders, investors, creditors, community, the government, competitors
and external auditors. Bangkok Land respects the rights of all stakeholders and provides channels for
stakeholders to communicate with the Group Company for unfair treatment and misconduct complaints.
Procedures and practice on treatment of major groups of stakeholders are summarized next.

Shareholders

The Company strictly adheres to the practice of treating all shareholders equally. Details of shareholders
equal rights are disclosed in previous sections on “Rights of Shareholders” and “Equal Treatment of Shareholders”.
All businesses of the Group Company are operated with honesty, prudent financial management and good
business ethics to ensure that the shareholders will receive the most benefits continuously.

Customers

Bangkok Land appreciates the correlation between the success of its business and customers’
satisfaction. The Group Company provides its customers high standard products as well as services at fair
and competitive prices, and provides the best service to the customers of the Company including executing
its commitments according to the agreement with its best efforts.
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Employees

Bangkok Land recognizes the contribution of employees for the success of the Company. It is the
Group Company’s policy to treat all staff members fairly in relation to remuneration, welfare, training and
discipline. Company adopts a decentralized policy on matter concerning staff welfare and development.
Individual companies within the group are given flexibilities to set their own detailed schemes according to
the need and specific working conditions of each entity.

The Group encourages employees to attend various work related outside courses. Selected employees
are eligible to attend workshops and seminars presented by experts and academics to strengthen
effectiveness and teamwork, with average of 12 hours of training hours for the executives who are not the
director for this year. The Company also provides in-house work-related training programs, talks and activities
at regular intervals on selected functional areas with the aim to assist professional development of individual
employees and to strengthen the general work performance of the staff.

The Group pays proper attention on the general well-being of its employees. Individual companies
within the group organize their own recreational events and activities with the aim to help balancing work and
leisure of the workforce. Bangkok Land also employs appropriate safety measures in all its work places to
prevent accidents, injuries and other related health issues.

Creditors
Bangkok Land’s policy is to equally and fairly treat its creditors and lenders, all creditors will be treated

fairly and equally in accordance with agreed terms and conditions.

Suppliers
The Group Company adheres to the policy of equitable treatment to all suppliers and honors all
commitments as stipulated in agreements with suppliers. Company also avoids choosing suppliers to may

have a conflict of interest with the connected persons with the Company.

Competitors
Bangkok Land respects fair and ethical competition practices in treating its competitors. The Group
Company never uses any unethical and fraudulent means in acquiring trade and related secrets as well as

businesses from its competitors.

Disclosure and Transparency

The Company has a policy to make disclosure of all important information relevant to the Company,
both financial and non-financial, correctly, accurately, on a timely basis and transparently through easy-to-
access channels that are trustworthy.

Information relevant to the Company includes annual and quarterly reports, press releases and
published announcements. This information will be disclosed at the specified time through different channels.
The Company still publicizes news on both of the Company’s websites which are: www.bangkokland.co.th
and www.impact.co.th offering investors and customer timely access to the Group’s financial and business
information. Both of these websites will be updated and improved on a continuing basis in this year and
going forward.

After quarterly results to be announced, the Company also maintains regular dialogue with investors
and analysts to keep them informed on the Group Company’s developments. Any party who is interested in

the Company’s information can contact investor relation at Tel. 66-2-5044949 (ext.1022) or Fax. 66-2-5044986.
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Material Change and Development of Policies, Guidelines, and Corporate Governance .
System in the past year _

.

Informations on the material change and development regarding the consideration of Policy, Guidelines,
and Corporate Governance System or the Charter of the Committee in the past year in accordance with the
development and implantation of the Corporate Governance Standards of the Company which complies with

the Good Corporate Governance of the Registered Company in 2017 Code with the following details

Prevention of Conflict of Interest
The Company applies the regulations prescribed by the SET. In conducting connected transaction, the
management must first present to the Audit Committee for consideration before presenting for approval from

the Board of Director in accordance with the Good Corporate Governance.

Internal Information Supervision

The Company has the followings Policy and Guidelines;

1. Informing all executives to acknowledge and understand the duty to report the holding of the
Company’s securities and penalties under the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (1992) and the
SET regulations.

2. Requiring all executives to report the change in holding securities to the SEC in accordance with the
Section 59 Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (1992) and to send a copy of the report to the

Company on the same day the report to the SEC was delivered.

There has been a circulation of notice to the all directors and executives to inform them of the use of
internal information that is material to change of the price of the security. The shares trading must be
prohibited for one month, and there shall not be a disclosure of such information to any third party before

informing the SET of such information to announce to the public.

Anti-Corruption
The Company has disclosed the process to prevent the business of the Company and subsidiaries

from being involved in any corruption with approved policies as follows;

1. The Company, directors, executives, employees, and the subsidiaries shall not ask, take, gives bribery
or take part of, or accept actions that is relating to corruption both directly or indirectly.

2. The Company and subsidiaries must have internal audit including all prohibitions in operating the work
to comply with the policies at least once a year.

3. The company must consider the policies as well as the prohibitions in its operation to comply with

nature of the Company’s business as well as rules, regulations, and laws.

Moreover, the Company has declared a good faith intention to join organizations in joint cooperation of
the Thai private sector for the anti-Corruptions projects and join the Pact Network as a member to prevent

dishonesty and corruptions in the society.
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Corporate Governance Structure and Material Facts related to the Board,
Subcommittees, Executives, Employees, and Others

Corporate Governance Structure

[ Board of Directors

N\ g N\
[ Chief Executive Audit Commitee
J A J
s N
Internal Audit
N\ J
Business Project Land Marketing Finance and
Development Management Management Administration

Information on the Board of Directors

The structure of the Company’s Directors as of 31 March 2022 consists of 5 groups: Board of
Directors, Audit Committee, Executives Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and Risk
Management Committee.

The Company has 8 Directors consist of 2 management directors, 1 non-management director, and 5
independent directors who do not have management position. The Board of Director believe that the balance
between the management directors and non-management directors is sufficient to conduct an audit and
protect the interest of all shareholders of all the Companies.

Non-management directors are from many backgrounds in different fields and have professional
expertise. All directors show the vision and participation in the Board of Director’'s meeting independently as
well as taking part in making business strategic decisions and the business operation.

The Company has 5 independent directors. At least one of the five directors has a specialty in
accounting and finance that is appropriate and sufficient. Requirements of all the independent director

complies with the recommendation of independent assessment as prescribed by the SEC and SET.
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Names and Position of the Board of Directors as of 31 March 2022

Name Position

1. Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chairman of the
Nominations and Remuneration Committee
2. Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chairman, Nominations and

Remuneration Committee, and Risk Management Committee

Mr. Burin Wongsanguan Non-Management Director
4. Mr. Prasan Hokchoon Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
5. Mr. Supavat Saicheua Independent Director, Audit Committee,

and Risk Management Committee

6. Mr. Siriwat Likitnuruk Independent Director and Audit Committee
Mr. Panya Boonyapiwat Independent Director
8. Mr, Jakapan Panomouppatham Independent Director, Nominations and Remuneration

Committee, and Chairman of the Risk Management Committee

Directors’ Scope of Authority

Signing authority of the Directors is governed by clause 25 of the Company’s Article of Association. To
bind the Company, it requires the following signatures. “Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas, Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas,
Mr. Burin Wongsanguan, two of these three directors jointly sign and the company’s seal be affixed.”

During the year of this report, the Board of Directors has organzied 4 meetings. In those meetings,
Directors will consider and set out the strategy in operating the business. While also conduct adequate
checks and approves Financial Statements quarterly and yearly as well as other important matters and
operating the business of the Company in general.

Apart from the general meeting, the Chairman also attends meeting with director who is not in a
management and independent director who is not in the management to consider the Company’s matter and
the business. Non-management director has freedom to call meetings among the non-management director
without the management’s involvement.

All Directors has no limitations in contacting the Company’s Secretary who can assure that there has
been an actions done to comply with the result of the Meeting and correctly according to the regulations.
Moreover, Informations relating to the meetings can also be questioned. All Directors can ask for the progress
or ask the Board of Directors to approves hiring professional independent consultants as well.

In all of the Board of Directors meeting, a notice will be sent 7 days in advance and if needed all

Directors can propose new agenda in the meeting freely.

Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
Total Liability

The Board of Director has the responsibility for management of the Group Company, which includes
formulating business strategies, reviewing and approving the use of projections and the duties in the
Company’s operation, setting financial targets, ensuring proper risk management, and directing as well as
supervising the Group Company’s affairs and operations.

The Board of Director produces policy for decision-making and delegates the day-to-day management

and operation to the management of the Company. The directors who are the management, which is led by
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the Chief Executive, are closely involved in the daily operation of the Company. The directors who are the
management regularly review and ensure that an effective system of internal control exists to safeguard all

interest of the Company seriously.

Role on Corporate Governance

The Board of Director is committed to good corporate governance and set out as a policy to follow
and implement principles and recommendations as detailed in “The Principles of Good Governance for Listed
Companies” published by the SET on 2017.

Business Operation

The Board of Directors requires all employees of the Company to conduct business in a professional,
ethical, and fair manner. The Company requires all group companies to comply with all laws, and specific
industry rules, regulations and practices. Employees must perform their duties with care and honesty without
violating any laws and other normal practices for the employees of the Company which is a regulations,
guidelines, and discipline which should be practicable and as set out in the staff handbooks of each

individual company in the Group.

Conflict of Interests

The Board of Directors understands that it is its duty to consider the issue of conflict of interest in all
transactions of the Company. There is a clear guideline on the approval of transactions involving conflict of
interest with connected persons.

In case of a potential conflict of interest involving a shareholder or a director, the Company has a
policy to arrange meetings in which independent director and the director who is not in the management with
no conflict of interest to jointly attend and discuss the matter. A director who and/or person connected to
such a director has potential conflict of interest in any transaction shall not be entitled to vote. The Board of
Director also monitors proper compliance of all requirements regarding criteria, procedures and disclosure
under the rules of the SET.

During the year ended 31 March 2022 there was no contract, arrangement or transaction that demands

the Board’s consideration on the issue of conflict of interest.

Internal Control

The Board of Director has responsibility for maintaining an effective and adequate internal control system
to safeguard the Company’s assets and shareholders’ interest. The system includes a well-defined organizational
structure, proper segregation of duties and effective check and balance procedures wherever appropriate.

The Company has an internal audit department; it reports directly to the Audit Committee and
performs independent regular financial as well as operational reviews to monitor the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group Company. Audit reports are prepared with analysis of weaknesses and
recommendations for improvement, and these reports are reviewed by the Audit Committee. Recommended

actions will be considered and implemented as and when there has been a thorough consideration.

Risk Management Policy

The Board of Director understands the importance of risk management and is constantly in alert of
possible threats that may affect the business of the Company. Measures are in place to access and manage
risk factors, internal and external, through the work of the Audit Committee and the internal audit department.
The directors who are the management also involve closely in the day-to-day management of the Group

Company and review regularly all risk factors affecting its performance and development.
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Meetings of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors meets from time to time and has a policy for holding at least 4 meetings per year.
There were 4 board meetings during the year under review. In each meeting, the directors discussed 'I- .
and formulated company strategies; the directors also reviewed and approved quarter and annual results as 2
well as other significant issues and general operation of the Group Company.
Other than regular meetings, the Chairman also meets with directors who are in the management and
independent directors who are not in the management to discuss particular corporate and business matters.
Directors who are not in the management are free to arrange meetings among themselves without
involvement of the management team.
All Directors have unrestricted access to the Company Secretary who is in charge for ensuring that
meeting procedures and regulations are properly followed. They also have access to relevant information in
respect of the meetings. They can also ask for further information or request the Board to approve in
retaining independent professional advisors, if necessary.
There has been a 7 day advance notice of the Meeting of the Board of Directors served to all

directors, and all directors are free to include matters in the meeting agenda.

Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer
Subjected to the Resolutions of the Board of Directors Meeting No. 15/2549 on 23 June 2006 which

gives the Chief Executive Officer an authority as required by the Board of Directors which is under the rules

and regulations, and the Articles of Associations of the Company regarding the operation of business in
general. This includes:

1. Being a manager and control the operation relating to the business in general and manage the normal
work of the Company to comply with the business policy, goals, and action plan that the Board of
Director has approved.

2. Approval of the operation cost, sales and managing cost, and investment cost must comply with the
budget approved by the Board of Directors and is under the scope of approval of not more than Baht
100,000,000. This does not include borrowing and guarantees (including lending)

3. Has the authority to consider approving the employment, transfer, and termination of the employees
with lower rank than the Chief Executive Officer.

4, Has the authority to appoint or assign one person or more to work on his behalf as appropriate and
can cancel, change, edit such authorization

5. Has the authority to act and represent the Company to outsiders in related business and will benefits
the Company.

6. Manage the work of employees to work with ethics, comply with the laws, good morals towards the
shareholders, customers, employees, and related persons

7. Perform any other duties that was assigned by the Board of Director.

In this regard, duties in foregoing paragraph must comply with the laws, regulations, and the Company’s
Article of Associations. However, such authorization does not include authority in which will grant the Chief
Executive Officers authority to approve transactions that the Chief Executive Officers or persons whom has
conflicts, stakes, or possible conflict of interest in any other manner with the Company or the subsidiaries
except it is a normal transaction and comply with the general trading terms and conditions as prescribed by
the Board of Directors and/or fix the amount to be subjected to the rules conditions and prescribing
procedure regarding the connected transactions and received transaction or paid transaction in which

valuable properties of the Company registered as prescribed by the SET rules or as notified by the SEC.
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Informations on the sub-committees

The Board of Directors has established 4 sub-committees to help follow and govern the operation

closely and report to the Board of Directors regularly. Board of Directors has set out the duties and

responsibilities of the sub-committees clearly as follows:

Audit Committee consists of 3 Directors as Follows:

Name Position
1. Mr. Prasan Hokchoon Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Mr. Supavat Saicheua Audit Committee
3. Mr. Siriwat Likithuruk Audit Committee

Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reports to the Board of Directors, and its duties and responsibilities are

summarized next.

1)
2)

4)

5)

6)

Review the accuracy and adequacy of the Company’s financial reports.

Review the Company’s internal control system and internal audit system to ensure that they are

suitable and efficient, and determine the internal audit unit's independence as well as approve the

appointment, transfer, and dismissal of the chief of an internal audit unit or any unit being responsible

for the Company’s internal audit.

Review compliance with the Securities and Exchange Acts, regulation of the SET and any other

relevant law.

Consider, select, and nominate an independent person as the Company’s auditor and to propose such

person’s remuneration as well as attend a non-management meeting with the auditor at least once a

year.

Review connected transactions, or transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests as to ensure that

the Company complies with all related laws and regulations of the SET. In this regard, it is done to

ensure that such transaction is reasonable and benefits the Company the most.

Prepare and disclose in the Company’s annual report an audit committee’s report which must be

signed by the Audit Committee’s Chairman and consists of at least the following information:

- an opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the Company’s financial report;

- an opinion on the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system;

- an opinion on the compliance with SEC’s and SET’s laws and regulation and other laws relevant
to the Company’s business;

- an opinion on the suitability of an auditor;

- an opinion on transactions that may lead to conflicts of interest;

- the number of audit committee meetings and the attendance of such meetings by each
committee member;

- an opinion or overview comment on issues that have arisen as the audit committee performed
its duties as defined in the committee’s charter; and

- any other matters which should be made available to shareholders and general investors within
the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors of the Company with the consent of the

Audit Committee.
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Management Committee Consists of 2 Directors as Follows: ;

T

Name Position N '

1. Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas Chaiman oty
2. Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas Chief Executive and Vice Chairman

Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of the Management Committee

Management Committee has the authority and duty to manage the day-to-day work. However, the
approving of transactions which may have conflict, stake, or conflict of interest in a manner with the
Company or the subsidiaries must be present to the audit committee at the board meeting to consider
approving such transaction everytime.
Nominations and Remunerations Committee Consists of 3 Directors as Follows:

Name Position
1. Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas Chairman
2. Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas Nominations and Remunerations Committee
3. Mr. Jakapan Panomouppatham Nominations and Remunerations Committee

Scope of Authority, Duty, and Responsibility of the Nominations and Remunerations Committee

1) To select and nominate a person to fill such vacancy or appointment of directors (in the event that a
vacancy occurs among the Board of Directors or that the Board of Directors deems it appropriate to
appoint the additional director), including to nominate the high-level management, and to determine the
transparent rules and procedures for nomination process and propose the same to the Board of
Directors’ meetings;

2) To consider and nominate an appropriate person for sub-committees and/or other sub-management (if
any) to the Board of Directors for appointment as it deems appropriate;

3) To determine fair and reasonable remuneration for Board of Directors, sub-committees and propose the
same for consideration and approval of the Board of Directors’ meetings and/or the shareholders’
meetings;

4) To make suggestions, on a yearly basis, to the Board of Directors about the remuneration structure and
composition;

5) To report to the Board of Directors on the performance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and to prepare the Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s Report, signed by the Chairman of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, for disclosure in the Company’s Annual Report; and

6) To perform such other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors.

Risk Management Committee Consists of 3 Directors as Follows:

Name Position
1. Mr. Jakapan Panomouppatham Chairman
2. Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas Risk Management Committee
3. Mr. Supavat Saicheua Risk Management Committee

Scope of Authority, Duty, and Responsibility of the Risk Management Committee

1) To review and propose policies on and guidelines for the Company’s risk management and propose the
same for the Board of Directors’ consideration and approval in terms of the overall risk management.

2) To assess the risks in strategic terms and to monitor and supervise the implementation of operation
plans to minimize the risks to an acceptable level.
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4)

5)

7)

8)

To monitor and assess the outcome of the risk management and to oversee the Company’s
implementation of the risk management policy to ensure continuous compliance with the principles of
good corporate governance.

To review the risk management summary ensuring from the following up of the risk minimizing plans to
ensure sufficient and acceptable risk management.

To consult with the Audit Committee about high-risk activities and assign the internal auditor the task
of reviewing and assessing those activities to ensure that the Company’s internal audit is appropriate
to risk management.

To report, on a yearly basis, to the Board of Directors about the risks of the Company, the risk
management and what needs to be improved or rectified in regard to the risks and so as to be in line
with the policies and the strategic goals previously determined.

To give advice and make suggestions to any team and/or task force involving in risk management and
to consider suitable approaches to the improvement of the Company’s risk management; and.

To perform such other duties relating to the risk management as assigned by the Board of Directors.

The executives and/or teams and/or task force related to the risk management and/or internal auditor

and/or auditor must report or suggest relevant information and documents to the Risk Management

Committee to support the operation of the Risk Management Committee in achieving assigned duties.

Informations on the Executives

Executive Officers and Senior Executive Officers as of 31 March 2022

Name Position
1. Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas Chairman
2. Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas Chief Executive Officers and Vice Chairman
3. Miss Kunwadee Jintavorn Project Director
4. Mr. Bawornpat Kosiyakul Land Manager
5. Miss Ampornprapa Wongsaroj Legal and Compliance Manager
6. Mrs. Pornthip Suwannadisai Sales Manager
7. Miss Auskoon Srisruyanont Financial Manager
8. Mr. Chamras Hongpaisan Accounting Manager
9. Mrs. Jongjira Chaemkrajrai Investors Relations Manager
10. Mr. Prapan Ruangvatasin IT Manager
11. Mr. Theerasak Bhaksakunee * Human Resource Manager

Notes : on 1 July 2021 and 1 January 2022, two managers have retired from the manager position, namely, Mrs. Panicha

Sakornnavin (the manager of human resource department) and Mr. Prawet lamsamut (the manager of the legal
department) respectively. * Appointed on 1 July 2021

Since the chairman of the board and the manager are the same person, or are in the same family, or

the chairman is a member of the directors in the management or the working group or was appointed to be

responsible for managing the board; and the chairman is not an independent director, the Company has set

the policy to weight balance the power in accordance with the principle of good management between the

board of directors and the management division.

1.
2.

To increase the proportion of the independent directors for more than half; or
To appoint an independent director to participate in the consideration of setting the agenda for the

board’s meeting.
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Directors’ Remuneration

(1) Cash Remuneration

Directors’ Remuneration

The Company compensated its directors in the form of an annual fee based on meeting attendance

(AGM included). Payment of fees is normally made in the following financial year after the annual general

meeting of such a year is finished. The remuneration is approved at a shareholders’ meeting each year. The

remuneration comes in the form of annual remuneration. The details for 2021 and 2020 are as follows.

Board of Directors

2021 2020
Annual remuneration Meeting Amount Meeting Amount
Attendance (Baht million) attendance (Baht million)
1. Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas 100% 0.91 100% 0.91
2. Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas 100% 0.91 100% 0.91
3. Mr. Burin Wongsanguan 100% 0.91 100% 0.91
4. Mr. Prasan Hokchoon 100% 0.91 100% 0.91
5. Mr. Supavat Saicheua 100% 0.91 100% 0.91
6. Mr. Siriwat Likitnuruk 100% 0.91 100% 0.91
7. Mr. Panya Boonyapiwat 100% 0.91 100% 0.91
8. Mr. Jakapan anomouppatham 100% 0.91 75% 0.68
Total 7.28 7.05
Audit Committee
2021 2020
Annual remuneration Meeting Amount Meeting Amount
Attendance (Baht million) attendance (Baht million)
1. Mr. Prasan Hokchoon 100% 0.18 100% 0.18
2. Mr. Supavat Saicheua 100% 0.09 100% 0.09
3. Mr. Siriwat Likitnuruk 100% 0.09 100% 0.09
Total 0.36 0.36
Senior Management’s Remuneration
2022 2021
Salary Travel & Bonus Meeting Amount Meeting Amount
Attendance (Baht million) attendance (Baht million)
- Directors in the Management 2 4.05 3 4.41
- Senior Management 11 13.70 10 13.45
Total 13 17.75 13 17.86

) Non-Cash Remuneration

-None-
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Information for Employees
As of 31 March 2022, the Group Company’s business has numbers of employees and the
remuneration for in the form of monthly salary, bonus, and other compensation which can be divided by

business groups as follows:

Business Groups (Million Baht)
Numbers of Persons Amount
1. Real estate 61 26
2. Exhibition, Convention & Hotel 1,241 530
3.  Retail business 86 35
4.  Building Management 120 42
Total 1,508 633

Other Important Information
List of persons who are directly responsible for accounting supervision, Company’s Secretary,

controllers and supervisors of internal audits hired from outside, and head of the company’s compliance

department
Responsibilities Responsible Persons
Person who are directly responsible for accounting supervision Mr. Chamras Hongpaisan
Company secretary Mr. Prawet lamsamut
Controllers of internal audits hired from outside Mr. Udom Tangmanaskul
Supervisors of internal audits hired from outside Mrs. Petchmanee Thonpub
Head of the Company’s Compliance Department Miss Ampornprapa Wongsaroj

Head of Investor Relations

The Company has assigned Mrs. Jongjira Chaemkrajrai, Manager of Investor Relations Department, to
distribute company information to investors both as shareholders and those who interested in holding shares
in the future. For those who are interested in the Company’s information, you can contact the Company’s
Investor Relations at 66-2504-4949 (internal number 1022) or by fax at 66-2504-4986.

Remuneration of Auditor

The remuneration of auditors of the Group Company, for the year ended 31 March 2022, comprised
the accounts Baht 4.26 million, financial third quarter revision fees was Baht 0.97 million, totaling Baht 7.17
million which related parties to the auditor and audit company, Karin Audit Company Limited is not an

individual or entity related with the Company.

Non-Audit Fee

- None-

Personnel Assigned to be an Agent in Thailand and Local Contact Information in case of Foreign Companies

-None -
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The Report on Significant Performance in Corporate Governance

Summary of the Performance of the Board of Directors in the Past Year

Recruiting, Developing, and Evaluating the Performance of the Board of Directors

The Company'’s Articles of Association states that at each General Meeting of Shareholders, one-third of

the directors who have been in office the longest shall be retired. If the number of directors is not a multiple of

three, then the number of directors who must retire by rotation is closest to one-third. Directors who have

retired from office have the right to be re-elected in the general meeting of shareholders of the Company.

Articles of Association governs the Board of Directors has the power to appoint a person with

appropriate qualifications to be a director of the Company to replace the vacant position.

Definition of Independent Director

Number of Independent Director shall be no less than one third (1/3) of total number of Directors but in

any case, shall not be less than 3 directors. All independent directors must possess qualifications as follows:

1.

Holding shares not exceeding one (1) percent of the total number of voting shares of the Company, its
parent company, subsidiary, affiliate or juristic person which may have conflicts of interest, including
the shares held by related persons of the independent director;

Neither being nor having been an executive director, employee, staff, or advisor who receives salary, or
a controlling person of the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, affiliate, same-level subsidiary or
juristic person who may have conflicts of interest unless the foregoing status has ended not less than
two years prior to the date of appointment;

Not being a person related by blood or registration under laws, such as father, mother, spouse, sibling,
and child, including spouse of the children, executives, major shareholders, controlling persons, or
persons to be nominated as executive or controlling persons of the Company or its subsidiary;

Not having a business relationship with the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, affiliate or juristic
person who may have conflicts of interest, the manner which may interfere with his independent
judgement, and neither being nor having been a major shareholder, non-independent director or
executive of any person having business relationship with the Company, its parent company,
subsidiary, affiliate or juristic person who may have conflicts of interest unless the foregoing
relationship has ended not less than two years prior to the date of appointment;

The term ‘business relationship’ aforementioned includes any normal business transaction, rental
or lease of immovable property, transaction relating to assets or services or grant or receipt of financial
assistance through receiving or extending loans, guarantee, providing assets as collateral, including any
other similar actions, which the value of transaction is more than Baht 20 Million or more than 3 percent
of net tangible assets, whichever is lower. The value of transaction shall be calculated according to the
calculation method for value of connected transactions under the Notification of the Board of Governors
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand Re: Disclosure of Information and Act of Listed Companies
Concerning the Connected Transactions. According to the regulation, the transactions occurred within a
year of proceeding transaction shall be included in the calculation of value of transactions
Neither being nor having been an auditor of the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, affiliated or
juristic person who may have conflicts of interest, and not being a major shareholder, non-independent
director, executive or partner of an audit firm which employs auditors of the Company, its parent
company, subsidiary, affiliate or juristic person who may have conflicts of interest unless the foregoing

relationship has ended not less than two years from the date of appointment;
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Neither being nor having been any professional advisor including legal advisor or financial advisor who

receives an annual service fee exceeding Baht 2 Million from the Company, its parent company,
subsidiary, affiliate or juristic person who may have conflicts of interest, and neither being nor having
been a major shareholder, non-independent director, executive or partner of the professional advisor
unless the foregoing relationship has ended not less than two years from the date of appointment;

7. Not being a director who has been appointed as a representative of the Company’s director, major
shareholder or shareholders who are related to the Company’s major shareholder;

8. Not operate any business which has the same nature as and is in competition with the business of the
Company or its subsidiary or being a substantial partner in a partnership or being a director who has
part in the management, or being an employee or an officer or a consultant under the pay-roll or
holding shares in exceed of 1 percent of the total voting shares of another company which has the
same nature as and is in competition with the business of the Company or its subsidiary.

9. Not having any characteristics which make him incapable of expressing independent opinions with

regard to the Company’s business affairs.

Director Appointment, Re-Election and Removal

The Company’s Article of Association provides that at each Annual General Meeting, one-third of the
directors who have held office for the longest term shall retire. If the number is not a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to one-third shall retire from office. Retiring directors shall be eligible for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Board is empowered under the Article of Association to appoint qualified person as a director to
fill a casual vacancy.

For the year 2022, the Company has directors retiring according to the agenda 1 in 3 of all directors,
namely Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas, Chairman of the Board, Mr.Jakapan Panomouppatham, Independent Director,
and Mr. Supavat Saichuea, Independent Director. In terms of consideration of independent director selection, the
Board of Director has considered that the independent directors who are nominated for another term are fully

qualified in accordance with the relevant rules and are able to express their independent opinions.

The Board Meeting Attendance

The Board meeting attendance held in the financial year ended 31 march 2022 is set out below

Directors Meeting attend / Total

Directors who are in the management

Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas 4/4
Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas 4/4
Director who is not in the management

Mr. Burin Wongsanguan 4/4
Independent directors

Mr. Prasan Hokchoon 4/4
Mr. Supavat Saicheua 4/4
Mr. Siriwat Likitnuruk 4/4
Mr. Panya Boonyapiwat 4/4
Mr. Jakapan Panomouppatham 4/4
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The Ordinary and Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting attendance of directors held in the financial year , ‘?_"
ended 31 March 2022 is set out below :
.

Directors Meeting attend / Total

Directors who are in the management

Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas 2/2
Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas 2/2
Director who is not in the management

Mr. Burin Wongsanguan 2/2
Independent directors

Mr. Prasan Hokchoon 2/2
Mr. Supavat Saicheua 2/2
Mr. Siriwat Likitnuruk 2/2
Mr. Panya Boonyapiwat 2/2
Mr. Jakapan Panomouppatham 2/2

Subsidiary Supervision
At present, the Company holds shares in the 97-100 percent ratio of the most of the subsidiaries. The
governance of such subsidiaries are under the supervision of the Board of Directors except for the RMI and

IMPACT Growth Real Estate Investment Trust that has trustee’s supervision.

The Report on the Performance of the Audit Committee in the Past Year
The Audit Committee Meetings Attendance
The Audit Committee meetings attendance held in the financial ended 31 March 2022. The attendance

of each member is set out below:

Directors Meeting attend / Total
Mr. Prasan Hokchoon 4/4
Mr. Supavat Saicheua 4/4
Mr. Siriwat Likitnuruk 4/4

The Result on the Performance of the Audit Committee
Summary of work performed by the audit committee in the past year is as follows:

1) Review the accuracy and adequacy with punctuality to disclose of the Company’s financial reports.

2) Consider the importance risk, review and evaluate the Company’s internal audit system as well as take
in to account of the independently of the Company’s internal audit system.

3) Consider and evaluate the compliance report of the internal audit system in every quarter including
consider and approval the internal audit plan.

4) Review the Company’s conduct according to the law and any other relevant law related to business.

5) Consider and disclose connected transactions, or transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests as
to ensure that the Company complies with the law and the law relating to security and exchange.

6) Consider, select and propose the appointment of auditors of the Company and its subsidiaries
including considering the appropriateness of the audit fees including attending the meeting with the

auditor there is no management to attend the meeting 4 times a year to listen to opinions, important
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notes, and suggestions to present to the Board of Directors for acknowledgment and review in
accordance with the issues suggested by the auditors.
7) The Audit Committee annually assesses itself.

8) Prepare a report of the Audit Committee.

Summary of the Performance of Other Sub-Committees

Management Committee
The Attendance Meeting of Management Committee
The Management Committee meeting attendance held in the financial year ended 31 March 2022. The

attendance is set out below:

Directors Meeting attend / Total
Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas 8/8
Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas 8/8

The Result the Management Committee Performance

Summary of work performed by the Executive Committee in the past year is as follows:

Manage the matters related to the normal business operation of the Company, in this regard, the
approval of any case having a conflict of interest or having related issues or any having stakes in any other
characters with the Company and its subsidiaries must be proposed to the Audit Committee meeting and the

Board of Directors meeting in order to consider and approve such transactions every time.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Meeting Attendance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting attendance held in the financial year ended 31

March 2022. The attendance is set out below:

Directors Meeting attend / Total
Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas 11
Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas 11
Mr. Jakapan Panomouppatham 11

The Report on the Performance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
A summary of the work that the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has performed in the past

year is as follows:

1) Consider nominating new directors to replace those who retire according to the agenda and proposed
to the Board of Directors’ meeting for consideration before presenting to the 50th Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders

2) Consider and determine the amount of remuneration for directors of the sub-committees for operations
in the accounting period ending March 31, 2023 and proposed to the Board of Directors’ meeting for
consideration before presenting to the 50th Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

3) Prepare a report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
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Risk Management Committee
The Meeting Attendance of Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Committee meeting attendance held in the financial year ended 31 March 2022.

The attendance is set out below:

Directors Meeting attend / Total
Mr. Jakapan Panomouppatham 11
Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas 11
Mr. Supavat Saicheua 11

The Report on the Performance of the Risk Management Committee
A summary of the work that the Risk management committee has performed in the Past year is as

follows:

1) Follow up and monitor strategic risk factors, risk of operations, financial risk, compliance and legal
risks, and reported the risk management results to the Board of Directors.

2) Follow up and supervise the operations of working groups and consulting companies on the protection
of personal data (PDPA)

3) Prepare a report of the Risk Management Committee
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Internal Control and Related Party Transactions

Internal Control

The Board of Director has responsibility for maintaining an effective and adequate internal control
system to safeguard the Group Company’s assets and shareholders’ interest. The system includes a well-
defined organizational structure, proper segregation of duties and effective check and balance procedures
wherever appropriate.

The Company has an internal audit department; it reports directly to the Audit Committee and
performs independent regular financial as well as operational reviews to monitor the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group Company. Audit reports are prepared with analysis of weaknesses and
recommendations for improvement, and these reports are reviewed by the Audit Committee. Recommended
actions will be considered and implemented as and when considered appropriate.

The Company has established sufficient and appropriate internal control system and sufficient personnel
to operate effectively as well as monitor and supervise the operations of the subsidiaries to ensure that they
can protect the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries from the wrongful use by directors or executives.

Fundamental Methods for Internal Control Consist of

1. A proper separation of duties

The company values the check and balance system within the organization by separating duty
and responsibility into 4 main duties as follows
- Duty to approve, responsible by the Chief Executive Officer under the authority to approve to

the amount of no more than THB 100,000,000, however, this does not include the loan and the

suretyship.

- Duty to record the list of accounts, responsible by the accounting department and the duty to
disclose the information, responsible by the working group of the Chief Executive Officer.
However, the accounting manager and the financial manager must not be the same person,
which leads to the check and balance to a certain degree.

- Duty to maintain property under the type of townhouse, building, condominium, responsible by
the project management division. The property under the type of land is responsible by the land
working division.

- Duty to audit, responsible by the audit committees, who are third persons and are independent
from the company.

Furthermore, for tasks related to sale and transfer of the ownership of each projects, the
company has separated tasks with the conflict of interest from each other in order to balance and
check the operation between each other; consisting of the sale division; the purchase division; the
contracting division; the financial division; the accounting division; the debt expedite division; the debtor
division; the monitoring task to ensure that the ownership is transferred when the customer pay the
last instalment, in which the sale and the purchase division belonging to the marketing field,
contracting division, financial division, accounting division, debt expedite division, debtor belong to the
financial and administrative field.

2. There is an exercise of the power to consider together, the decision to invest in all large projects shall
be under the responsibility of the Board of Directors.

3. Not operating the business with the related business without the right legal basis and the transparent
account. If there is a connected transaction, the Company shall consider the benefit of the Company
and shareholder as the main concern and shall comply with the regulation of SET, including
announcements or regulations of any relevant organisation.

4. Normal general meetings of the managers shall have reports consistently to make sure that each
decision to operate the business is appropriate and can be checked immediately.

BANGKOK LAND | ANNUAL REPORT 2022




PR S RN y  F T Sy
_ n“.“. ; . T
i, LY L] . T

In addition, the Board of Directors has set an additional policy that in the event that the Company has
significant changes which may affect the Company’s operations or has a significant value transaction. The
Company’s directors may have a resolution to require the Company to recruit independent experts to give opinions.
The opinions or suggestions of the experts will be reported to the Audit Committee of the company. Moreover, the
Board also jointly prepared a form to assess the adequacy of the internal control system of the company to review
the adequacy and efficiency of the internal control system of the organization in 5 parts on a yearly basis as follows:

1. Organization and environment

2. Risk Management

3. Operational control of the management
4. Information and communication systems
5. Tracking system

However, the Company will operate the internal control at present and in the future rigorously as well
as reviewing other internal control systems continuously and focusing on cooperating with the auditor’s
recommendations, and providing a standard practice for further operations.

In the annual audit, which ended on 31 March 2022, no issues that the auditor recommended the
Company to improve.

The Board of Director understands the importance of risk management and is constantly on alert of
possible threats that may affect the business of the Company. Measures are in place to access and manage
risk factors, internal and external, through the work of the Audit Committee and the internal audit department.
The directors who are the managers also involve closely in the day-to-day management of the Company and
review regularly all risk factors affecting its performance and development.

Related Transactions

In the normal course of business, the Group Company may occasionally need to conduct transactions
with related parties.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group disclosed details of transactions with related parties
under the 5th Remark of the Notes to Financial Statements. These transactions comprised those between the
Company and its fully owned subsidiaries and those between fellow subsidiaries within Bangkok Land Group.

The Audit Committee have reviewed all connected party transactions and confirmed that these
transactions were entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries in the normal course of business of the
Group, under normal commercial terms, and is profited within the interest of the Group and its shareholders.

The external auditor of the Company also reviewed all connected party transactions and has the
opinion that these transactions that were disclosed in the financial statement of the year ended 31 March
2022 were proper and fairly disclosed in the financial statements of the Company.

During the year, the Company did not conduct any connected party transactions which were subject to
the disclosure requirements under the rules of SET.

Policy and Projection of future Related Transaction

In the future, if the Group Company may occasionally need to conduct transactions with person with
conflict of interest, in case of extending loans or grant of financial assistance, the value of transaction must
not be greater than the value of equity interest of the person. The approval of related transaction must strictly
follow up the procedures of regulations or rules of SEC and SET. The guidelines for related transactions as
stipulated by the SET including notifications and related rules must be strictly complied. Market share price is
taken into consideration for pricing, determining the amount of remuneration or charge for connected
transaction between the Group Company and persons with conflict of interest. Reasonability of transaction
and the interest of the Group Company are also taken into the consideration. The details of the related
transaction will be shown on the Notes to Financial Statements.

BANGKOK LAND | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

65




Part 3

Financial Statements

(Financial Statement of the year ended 31 March 2022 attached)
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BANGKOK LAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Independent Auditor's Report
To The Sharcholders of Bangkok Land Public Company Limited

Oplnbon

I have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bangkok Land Public Company Liméted and its subsidiaries, the Group
which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as ot March 31, 2022, and the relased
consolidated and separate statements of comprehensive income, changes in sharchobders® equity and cash lows for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated and notes 1o the separate financial staiements, including & summary of significant

accounting policies.

I my apinion, the consolidated and separste financial stalements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Bangkok Land Public Company Limited and its subsidiarics as at March 31, 2022, their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Basks for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under those standards are further
deseribed in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial stalements section of
my report. | am independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountanls as ssued by
the Federation of Accounting Professions thal is relevant to my audil of the consolidated and separate financial statements,
and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilitics in accordance with the Code. | believe that the audit evidence 1 have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit mattcrs are those matiers (hat, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my audit of the consolidated
and separate financial statements of the cumment year. These matters were addressed in the context of my audit of the consolidated and
separnte financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and | do not provide a separale opinion

on these mallers
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Valuatlon of Investments Propertics

As discussed in Motes 10 10 the financial statements, the Group had investments properties presented in the consolidated and
separale staterments financial position as at March 31, 2022, at their fair value of Baht 40,826 million and Baht 12,458 million,
the fair value of these invesimenls properties based on the value appraised by an independent appraiser the measurement of
fair value was based on the assumptions and judgerment of both the management and an independent appraiser, | identified

the measurement of investment properties to be an area significantly impacting the financial slatements.

Risk Responses of Auditor

I gain an understanding of the caleulation of fair value of investmenis properties by making enquiry of responsible executives
and gaining an undersianding of the operation of controls designed by the Group. | considered the extent and objectives of
the assessment of fir value by the independent appraiser and assessed the technigues and models used by the independent
appraiser 1o measure the fair value, as specified in the appraisal report prepared by the appraiser, by comparing them
b pvy knowledge and past experience regarding the valuation of the same or similar assets. | alge considered the consislency
of the application of such techniquees and models, and assessed the competence and in dependence of the independent
appraiser by checking publicly available data. In addition, 1 reviewed the data and key nssumptions used in the measurement
of Fair value by comparing the estimated operating results with the Group®s sciual operating resulis io evaluate the judgement
of the Group in terms of estimating operating resulls, and testing the calculation of fair valwe which was based on the above
madels and assumplions.

Pending Lawsuits
As discussed in Motes 30c) to the financial statements, the Group had pending lawsuits in the Commercial Count in London,
England, in order to the Group (o pay the debis and other relaied debis amounting (o LIST 34.21 million.

Risk Responses of Audifor
I request the confirmation replies from the Group's lawyers and the Group's lawyers have sent their opinions fo me.

In addition, | assessed the competence of the Group's lawyers, 1 also reviewed ihe disclosure of information in the notes. fo
the financial staterments,
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Emphasis of Matier

I draw attention to Nate 30ic) The financinl statements. On July 23, 2018, The Company filed a lawsuil againsi Deutsche
Trustee Co.,Lid and ils partisans 1o prosecute in 8 court of Thailand, a civil lawsuil was filed against the Central Intelleciual
Property and International Trade, claiming damages of Bahl 625.61 million. On February 5, 2021, the Count has rendered 2
judgment for the Company 1o repay the outstanding amount incurred under the USD Bonds, including interesis, in the amount
of USD 28,360,689 46 and the default interest at the ric of 4.5 percentage per annum caleulated from the principle amount of
USD 13,379,000 as from the date of the Trustee's counter-claim undil the date of the completion of the payment. In addition,
the Company shall also make payment of the expenses incurred from the operation as a trustee and other expenses of the
Trusiee, inchuling imerests, in the amount of GBP 1,868.885,65 ogether with the default interest at ihe rate of 2 percenlage:
higher than the interest rale of West Bank calculated from the principle smount of GBP 1,798,034.17 as from the date of the
Trustee's counter-claim until the date of the completion of the payment and the Company has already recorded provision for
loss on pending lawsuits in the financial sistements for the year. However, the aforementioned case is nol final and the
Company had exercised its right to appeal in accordance with the law. The case is currently under consideration in the appeal
level, On May 25, 2022, the Company has entered into a guarantes agreement with the Court and used securities a8 land and condominium
title deeds of the Group as collateral for suspension of enforcement during the consideration of the Coart of Appeal for
Specialized Cases, The Court set the date for the consideration of collaleral for stay of exceution during the appeal on June 10
2022, My opinion is not modified in respect of this maiter,

Ovther Matter

The financial sttements of Bangkok Land Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated and
separale siatements of financial position and as & March 31, 2021 and the related consolidated and scparale slatements aoff
comprehensive income, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for the year then ended, presented herewith for
comparative purpose were audited by another auditor in my firm whose repon daied on May 28, 2021 and expressed an

unualified opinion on those fmancinl staterment.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the information inchaded in annual
report of the Group, but does nol include the financial statements and my awditor's repart thereon. The annual repor
of the Croup is expecied 10 be made available 1o me afier the date of this suditor’s report.

My opinion on the fmancinl stalements does not cover the other information and | do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thercon.
In connection with my audit of the Minancial statements, nry responsibility is to read the other information and, in deing so,

consider whether the ather information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in
ihve audit or stherwise appears o be materinlly misstaed,

When | read the annual report of the Growp, if | conclude that there is a material missiatement therein, 1 am required 1o

communicate the matter to those charged with governance for correction of the misstatement,

Responsibilitics of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and Separate Financial
Stafements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management defermines is necessary 1o
enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstalement, whether due

1o frawd or emor.

In prepasing the consolidated and separate financinl sitements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability
o contine s a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of sccounting unless management ither intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative
but to dio 30,

Those charged with govemance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s linancial reparting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

My ohjectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial stalements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whethier due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Thai Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered malerial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence

the cconomie decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidaled and separate financial siatements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audil, 1 alse :

®  [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive (o those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal contral,

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the Group's internal control.

® [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by management,

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. |11 conclude thal a malerial unceriainly exists, | am required (o draw
altention in my auditor’s report 1o the related disclosures in the financial statements and separaie or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to madify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

® [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidaled and separate financial statements, including
the disclozsures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements répresent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presemation,
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&  (Obain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entitics or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements. | am responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit, | remain solely responsible for my audit opinion,

I communicate with those charged with goverance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and liming of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 1 identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemnance, | determine those matters thal were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated and scparate financial stalements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters,
| describe these matters in my auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosuwre about the matter or when,
in exiremely rare circumstances, | determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected ta outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Ms. Kanntka Wipanurat

(Ms. Kannika Wipanurat)
Certificd Public Accountant (Thailand)
Registration Mo, 7305

Karin Audit Company Limited

Bangkok, Thailand
Muy 30, 2022
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BANGKOK LAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash cquivalenis
Trade and caher cisrenl reeelvables - et

Invenlorics

&hort - lenm loans i eelaiod paries - net

Curreni tay assels

(her curmment financial assels

(aher curmeil assels

Tial cumenl assets

Nan - currenl assEls

[mvesimenis in subsidiaries

Imvestment property

Property, plani and equipment - net

D ferred tax assels

(ther now - curmen] asscis

Todal non = current asseds

TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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{Unit ; Beht)
Consodiduied Sepambe
financial staleasents finmncial stabements

Nuodes 2022 201 2002 Fiird]
4,224 440,954 4, 526,376,302 2031,933,129 2,575.59%0,190
51.6 141,801,928 206,757,838 35285 812 3,520,710,983
T DH3.991.534 T20002 559 545,830,750 720,012,559
54 - - 3,531.504,077 3,728,606,591
13,572,141 16 E1E 7Y % =
F | CfE, 522 912 1,520,272 540 504 B53, 18R 500,875,500
55035.188 70,772,700 073 566 T G20 64
(%A 2T AT 6852031 353 10,137.937.422 11,07 524, 650
' o 11,137,586, 908 10,0157 586 S0
1o 40 826,358,570 19,467, 778,611 12,458, 135,600 1,712.547,01%
1] 14,339 182 554 14,674.277,733 23582067 o 4T4 976
53,12 T560.044 4 564,710 4 164 RES 544 542
7 340,797,531 J40.840, 100 = *
13 1,359,53).338 1,489,347 062 1,.2:45.974,095 1 314,395,650
57,028 433247 55.066,500.215 25,081 883,533 24,762, 548,859
63,462,707 504 61 378, 540,467 :uw.m_.ii 32537579




BANGKOK LAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONT.)

AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

{Unit: Bah}
Consolidabed Sepamile
financinl statements Minancial statensents
Mobes 2022 2021 2022 2021
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current linldiities
Trade and ofher current payables 5.6, 14 790,034 434 751,217,671 23,565,203 716,731,685
Current porticn of leng - term loans 57,16 1 872,000,000 4,750,000 1 AT 000,000 1,400, 000,000
Lease fiabilities, nel of current portion 5519 12,238.370 5,209,171 2218167 2,132,608
Current provisions for employes benefit 1% 39,706,786 34,517,980 17,647 902 19,275,934
Provision for boss on pending lawsuits Aich 118,060,455 1.033,257,297 996,315,334 905,792,903
Current income tax payable 227,129,161 231,568,601 210,811,321 213,488,563
CHbser caurvent liabilities 15 279,611 482 296,632,804 113,166,970 114,436,528
Total cument linbilities 4,347,780, 588 2,357,753,524 1,563,725.307 3,435,858,511
Non - curvent liabilities
Lang - term loans 57,16 1,908,973,667 3,870,286,547 5,250,000,000 6,650,000,000
Lease liabilities 55,19 55,714,237 15355229 1,307,526 4,525,693
Deferred tax liabilities 17 4,163 526498 3,832 285 200 T18,710,95% 551115422
Mon - current provisions for employee benefit 1] 102,133,939 113 668489 13,800,240 13,226,702
Othier - mon current labilites 15415277 18,702,080 -
Todal mon - current linbilifies 6,335,763,618 7,850,301 225 5,984 918,565 7.125,527.827
Total liabdlities 10,683, 544,206 10,208,054,749 9,548 644,262 10,661,386,338
Sharcholders' equity
Share capital
Authorized share capital
26,295,658,054 common shares of Baht | par value 26,295,658,054 26,295,658.054 26,295,658,054 26,205,658,054
Lasued ard fully paid - up share
17.374.401,084 common shares of Baht 1 par value 17374 401,054 17.374 401 054 17,374,401 054 17.374.401,054
Treasury stock 0 (18,926,720} (15,926,720) (18,926,720) (18,926,720)
Premium on share capital 1.995,51 5,325 1,995,515,325 1,995,515,325 1.995,515,325
Retained enmings
- Approprinted for legal reserve 1.015,047,648 439,160,658 1.015,047,648 930,160,658
- Appropriated for ireasury stock reserve 18,926,720 18,926,720 18,926,720 18,926,720
~ Unappropriated 10,039,126,986 9,905 §03,308 5.285212,688 4,364,910,204
Ohber components of shancholders® equity 14,239 6440,000 14,320,579, 362 - § -
Total sharchokders' equity of the Company 44,663,731,013 44,598 450, 107 25.671,176,715 24,673,987,241
Meon - controlling interests B,115,432,675 8,072,026,011 - -
Total sharehalders' equity 52,779,163 658 52,670,485,718 25670176713 24,673,987,241
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 63,462,707 504 62,578, 540467 35,219,820,977 35,335,373,579

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BANGKOK LAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

{Uinit : Bahi}
Coasalidaled Separale
fimamcial stabemends Mimancial stalemenls
Holes 2002 2021 2022 2021
Revenues fram sales 56628606 1,302,4%5,488 185053, 707 929,300,593
Revenues from rental and service 51 1 463 525,696 1,804, 158,410 B6,940, 666 87,354,229
Total revenues 1 990,454,302 3,116,643 B8 271,994,372 1. 016458,322
Coss of salos (577.616,300) 1,294,200, 170) (154,456,947} (513,452.730)
Costs of rental and services {547 076,846} 1,108,634, 800) (57,060,225} (55,009.917)
Total costs {1.524,693 4461 (202835060 (21 1527,172) (BB AGT64T)
Gross prodlt {loss) 465,760, B56 13,807 538 60,467,201 148,195,675
Pralil on exchange mig, nel 158,507 - - -
Dividend income 51 + 18,954,350 124441 500
Gain on revaluation af imvestmen! property 1B 8, 724 ILOR028, 129 47,198,557 503,087,243
CHber revenues n 107,706,352 141,194,379 1361, 108,568 1AM 492,530
Profit (boss) before expenses 2,302 64 459 1544, 930,406 1IET,T28.746 2,208,187,248
Bellitig expenses (14, 145,700} (7,907, 268) (701 467) (1. 944,172
Adminisimtive expenses L] (A65,457, 1500 614709310 (292,169,821} (410,515,786}
Management bengfil copense Fo (T3.M0.521) (78,888 544) (17,734.851) (17,862,163}
Loss on peniing lswsuiiz Hic) (83,061,600} (103 1,533,004 (83,0060, 500) (909,792,903}
Tatal expendes (1.036,5606,273) (2.079,805, 16T (393,647,930 (1,340,115,00%)
Profit {bexe) from operabing sctivities 1,156,088, 186 (134.874.761) 1554, 040,807 £68,072 225
Finance cosls (114,095,571) (1154077540 (2242150 (E78.616)
Frofif {lsss) before Inceme tax expense 1M1 .952.615 {250,282, 515) 1393.816.592 £67, 790,609
Ircoene tax expeanes 5 (585,593.883) (327,697 326) (M6,076.759) (166,799,592}
Frafi {loss) far the year 651,998,732 {577,980.401) 15307,739,803 T00,554.017
Other comprehensive incone (exprie)
Camgpanimis of ofleer cemprelsensive nconse
ibvnt wlll mod be rechxssified to prodlt o loss subsequently

Gairs (oss) on revaluation of employes benefie 14,288,004 19,010,985)
Other esmprehensive Incone (expenae) for ihe year - net of tax T4ZRR.004 19.010,585) 3
Total comprehensive [ncome (expense) Nor the year f666, 286,146 (586,991,386} 1.587.739,803 T00.9M.017
Profit (loss) attrfbwiable bo ©
Oramers of the parent 70,530,621 (800,232, 304) 1,517.739,603 00,994,007
‘Mo - controlling imicrests B0465,111 223,350,997 -

651,598,732 (ATT.980,401) 1.517,739,603 00,994,007
Tutal campreliensdve Ingomae (expense) for the year

aktribudatibe to :

Cmners of the parent SBSE21,635 (BI04, 383) 1,507,739.803 00994007
Maon - controlling interesis B04E5111 223,350,997 « -

666,186,746 (586,991 386) 1,517, 735,803 00,504,017
Earnings (loss) per thare
Basic esrnings (loss) per share (Bahi) n 0,033 {0.046) 0087 0040

(2022 : 17,353 millon shares)
(2020 ¢ 17,365 million shares}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BANGKOK LAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
{Uinit : Bahi}
Consolidated Separme
fisansial satements financial stwcrments
2022 1] 02z 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Profin floss) before inceme inx expense 1,241 552615 230,252,505} 1,598 416392 B6:7, 791,609
Adjustment for !
Finance cos 1 14,095,571 115,807,754 224215 iThG16
Inlerest incoane {13,333,995) (19,550,526 {16, TE4, 092} (49,063,324}
Trade sl other current receivables (incresse] decresse 66,617,661 3FTALS 18,470,534 167,076,978
Inventorics (increase | decrense 149 221,648 11,019,743 154,078,750 BIIE19.743
[Hheer current assets {intTease) decrease 14,837,510 14,488,751 17,655,500 1,235,700
Cither mon - corrent awsets {increns) decrene (1,462,677} {164,537 L.TT9.BE (039,171
Teade and other current payubles incremse (decrease) #7,0 16,763 (210,542 468) 4EREN 51T 5,755,142
(tiver cumren] |Eabililbes ncresse (decrease) (17,020.321) {40,575,133) 449414 (34,580, TM)
Cither non - cunrent Rabilitles incresse (decraase) (3,285.804) {3,021 ,828) =
Deprociation and amortimtion B39, 504,065 (45 298 204 101,937,105 101,800,142
Provisions for employes besdi I DISETY 22,930,762 B7.732 a3 812
Proviskon for loss on pending lavwsiiin B4, 403,159 1,001, 534,024 £4,803,159 D, THL S04
Asiization of with balding tax 1,667,030 B43,034 - =
{Prafit) boss on sale and write off of ixed assols 41EID (794 65T) . -
{Gains) loes on revalwation of (nvesionesd property {1, 819,068,724) 1, OR0 928, 159) (B4T,19E,587) (393,037,243}
{Profii) loss on sale of imestimenl progeny - {3, 500,000) - 13, S00,000)
[iteverse) enpecied credit Joss 1,671,751 26,124,986 410,020) TE4E003
{iGRaln} logs for give on debi Forgiveness from subsidiary 2 = (13400000000 (13460000000
Rental déseonnt froan lessor {1,616,409) - 7 =
Tioial sl jusenents io reconcile profit (loss) {715,852,606) 1,338,147.397 {1.TT7,174,825) (17,540,278}
et cash provided by (used in) operaihag aciivitles 526, 1 60,009 1,087,864, EED 06,640, 767 830,253,331
Diividend income = (18954390} (32,461 300
Cush recieved from refundable withhaldisg ta 58,908,560 12,178,230 -
Ircoene x paid {280, 308,030 (330,209,386} (217817963 {240,005 068)
Caihy paid for emplovee benefits (11.500,608) {1 408,071} (12,0050 42,9000
Met cush pravided by (wsed Im) operating nctivities 293,260,934 TH5425 664 (120,173,701} £77,719,563

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONT.)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

BANGKOK LAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income received
{Increase} docrease in other currend finanginl asscls
Proceeds From dividend income
Cash pald for loans to related parties
Proveeds from loans to relaicd parties
Procoeds from disposal of asscls
Proceeds from disposal of investment property
Cash paid for purchase of fixed awscts
Cash paigl for purchase off investment property
Met eash provied by (use in) lnvesting metivities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash pasd for treasary stock
Cash paid for boag = teom loans
Caush pakd for leass liabilities
Drividend pryment of subsidiaries
Drividend payment
Inierest expense
et cash provied by (used in) Mnancing nctivities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents af beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at ending of the yenr

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flews Informatian :

i. Cash ond cash equivabents coniprised of ;
Cash on hand
Undeposited cheques
Saving sccoumbs
Current sccount
Fixed deposals
Tualal

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

BANGKOK LAND | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

{Unit ; Bakt)
Consolidated Scparube
finamcial stntemenis financis statements
2022 0zl 22 2021
13,333,905 19,590,526 5,683 649 9,240,933
436,750,068 913,332,934 {3,977, 885) 1,073,553,806
- 18,554,390 50,000,540
= (12,598 326} Znanaamn
- 150,000,000 vy
1,423,004 £
15,000, 000 * 15,000,000
(157.857.545) (108 248,502) {36,747,976) (5,006,024)
(4428885} (B1,685,4T1) - (6, 420,000)
BT, T9T634 T5R.E12,581 102,013,792 1,224,971 426
= (14,232.439) - (14,232,439}
(4, D62,851) (4,363 877) ] =
(8,537,294) {5, 1 80,058) {2,356,523) (2,142,566}
(37,058 447T) (274,215,716) =
{520,550,329) (347,165,563} (520,550,329) (347,165,361}
{112,784,965) (i14.661,761} - *
(652,993,910 6) (759, 828,254) (522.907,152) (363,540,368)
{101,935, 34%) 734,409,991 (542,067.061) 1,439,170,621
4,326,376, 302 1,571,966,311 2,575,990,190 1136815 569
A 234 440,954 4,326,376,302 2.033.923,120 2,575,900,190
11 2T0657 Il B, 652 1,704,785 1,798, 144
6,263,356 4285273 4.470,300
3,803, 317.958 4.284,701,709 210,530,986 2,557,128 468
50,524,521 23,852 009 15,654,580 15554404
352655082 2650659 1512068 1,509,084
4,234 440,754 4. 326,576,302 2033925129 L.575.9%0,190




BANGKOK LAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2022

1.1

1.2

General nformatkon

Company information

Bangkok Land Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is incorporated and domiciled in Thailand. The Company is
listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

The address of its registered office is 47/569 - 576 Moo 3, 10th Floor, New Geneva Industry Condominium, Popular 3
Road, Tamibol Bannmai, Amphur Pakkred, Monthabar,

The principal business of the Company and its subsidiaries {“the Group™) comprise of real estate development, exhibition
anad comvention, food and beverage amd investment in holel,

Coronavirus disease 2019 pandemb:

The Coronavins discase 2019 pandemic is confinuing to evolve, resulling I an economic slowdown, and adversely
impacting most businesses and indusisies in terms of supply chains, consumer sperding. limited or suspended production,
operational delsys, and more,

This situation affects the Group business activities which impact service income, the operating results, and cash flows al
Fw:i..m&ilmuﬂmhmhhmm.h&mpmhwwulmuﬂﬁsuq:.'l'hl:i'um’l

maragement has continuously manitored ongoing developments and assessed the fmancial impact in repeet of the valuation
of assets, provisions, and contingent liabilities, and will record ithe impact when it i possible 1o do s,

Basls for preparation af the comsolidated financial statement

financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Bangkok Land Public Company Limited and s subsidiaries,
by eliminating intercompany balances and unrealized gain and loss,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2022

BANGKOK LAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

il

The Company's subsidiarics included in the consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2022 and 2021 comprise the

following :

Direct investment :

Sinpornchai Company Limited

Bangkok Land (Cayman Islands)
Company Limited

Muang Thong Services and
Management Company Limited

Muang Theng Building Services
Company Limited

Impact Exhibition Management
Company Limited

Spooner Limited

DHrect and indirect investment :

Bangkok Land Agency Company Limited
Bangkok Airport Industry Company Limited

RMI Company Limited

Impact Growth Real Estate Investment Trust

Except for the Bangkok Land (Cayman Islinds) Company Limited, which is incorporated in Cayman Islands, and Spooner
Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong, all subsidiarics are incorporated in Thailand.

Percentage of holding
Principal business 2022 2021

Property development 100,00 100.00
Financing 100,00 100.00
Praject management

service 97.00 97.00
Building maintenance

service 97.00 97.00
Exhibition convention &

hotel 100.00 100.00
Dormant 100.00 100,00
Property renting 99.30 9930
Property development 100,00 100.00
REIT manager 100.00 100,00
Real Estate Investment Trust 50.00 50.00

Basis for preparation of the financial statements and significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of the financial statement

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai generally accepted accounting principles under the
Accounting Act B.E. 2543, being those Thai Financial Reporting Standards issued under the Accounting Profession Act
B.E 2547, and the financial reporting requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities and

Exchange Act.

'TI'H:[hmchlsmmmﬂshmebmWﬂuﬁaﬂmﬁﬂwﬂlmﬂmﬁmmm:udiaahmdh[hnmlm

policies below.
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BANGKOK LAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2022

33

33

The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with Thai generally accepted accounting principles requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or arcas
where assumplions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

An English version of the financial statements has been prepared from the statutory financial statements that arc in the Thai

language. In the event of a conflict or a difference in interpretation between the two languages, the Thai language
statutory financial statements shall prevail.

Mew Mnancial reporting standards

New financial reporting standarvds that became effective In the current year

During the year, the Group has adopted the revised financial reporting standards and interpretations which are cffective
for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2021. These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignmenl
with the comesponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed towards
clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for users of the standards.

The adoption of these financial reporting standands does not have any significant impact on the Group's financial

statements.
Financial reporting standards that will become effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2022

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised financial reporting standards, which are effective
for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2022, These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignmend
with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed towards
clarifying accounting treatment and, for some standards, providing temporary reliefs or lemporary excmplions for
LSETS.

The manngement of the Group believes that adoption of these amendments will not have any significant imipact on the Group's

Mnancial statements.
Significant accounting policies

Forelgn eurrency transaciions

Transactions in foreign currencics throughout the periods are recorded in Baht at rates prevailing al the dates of
transactions. Outstanding assets and liabilities denominated in forcign currencics al the statements of financial position
statements of financial position date are translated into Baht at the prevailing bank rates as of that date. Gains and

losses arising from the translations are credited or charged to current operations,
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BANGKOK LAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2022

3i3

Revenue recognition

Property development busingss

Revenues from sales of land and houses and sales of residential condominium are recognized at a point in time as
income when ownership of the asset has been iransfierved to the buyer.

Reiail business
Sales of goods arc recognized when the company has tranfered the control of the goods of ownership have passed to
the eustomers, with revenue being recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects lo

be entitled in exchange for tranferring goods. Sales are the nvoiced value, excluding value added tax, of goods
supplied after deducting discounts,

Property rental business

Rental income is recognized on an accrual basis by the siraight - line method over the term of the lease,

Services business

Services income is recognized when the service has been provided lo customers by considering the success stage of

the work in determining the liming of delivery of controls (o assess whether income is recognized at cerlain mes or

aver a period of time.

Barter income arises from the cxchange of different goods or service for other goods or service, which s recognized al
fair value of those goods or service in exchange.

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.
Dividend incomes are recognized when the company has the right 1o receive dividends.
Real estate development cost

Real estate development cost is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, Costs include cosl of land, land
development, construction costs, infrastruciure, project management fec and related borrowing cost.

Infrastructure for public use is depreciated on a straight line method over 20 years, and such depreciation is charged to
cost of sales.

BANGKOK LAND | ANNUAL REPORT 2022




BANGKOK LAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2022

334

335

3346

337

Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of the statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and ot banks and deposits at financial institutions with

original maturity of three monihs or less.

Cash restricted in use is shown as other non = current assets,
Trade receivables

Accounts receivable are presented af net realizable value.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
signilicant financing components, when they are recognised al its present value.

The Group applies the TFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a simplified
approach, which requires expected lifetime losses 1o be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade reccivables have been grouped based on the days past due, The cxpected loss
rales are based on the payment profiles and the corresponding historical credit losses which are adjusted 1o reflect, the
historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors. The impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss
within adminisirative expenses,

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost net of allowance for decline in value (if any),

Invesimeni properiy

Investment property comprises kand held for capital appreciation rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business.

Investmenl property is stated at fair value, representing open market value determined by independent valuation and
the Group’s directors. Changes in the fair value of investment property, net of deferred income tax, is included in the

statement of comprehensive income for the period in which it arises.

Fair value is determined using open market value determined by independent valuers who are approved by the Stock
Exchange of Thailand.
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BANGKOK LAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2022

kB

Property, plants and eculpment

Land are stated at revalue amount {market approach) less provision for impairment of assets (iF any). Buildings are
stated at the revalued amount {replacement cost approach) less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment
of assets {if any). Equipment is stated af cost less relevant accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment of
nssets (il any],

Revabuations are performed by independent professional appraisers, which the Company has the palicy for the independent
professional appraisers will be requested to perform the appraisal for the said assets at sulficient regularity (o ensure
that the book value of these assels does not differ materially from their fair values at the balance sheet date. Increase
from appraisal value will be recorded in the shareholders’ exquity under “Surplus on revaluation of assets”, and
decrease from cost recorded as loss from decrease in revaluation of assets in the statements of comprehensive income.,
Increase in revaluation of building and machines will be amortized in accordance 1o the remaining usciul life of those

azsels.

Deprectation is calculated on the sirsight line method to writc off the cost of each asscl, excep! fior land which is
considersd fo have an indefinite life, 1o its residual value over the estimated usefil lives as follows :

Exhibition Hall and Convention Centers - siruciure 50 years
Exhibition Hall and Convention Centers - building improvement 20 years
Buildings and other construciions 20 years
Other Mxed assets 3 - 5 years

The depreciation as calculated above are recorded ns follows :
- The depreciation for those caleulated from the cosl value is included in the calculation of the operating result,
= The deprecistion fior the revaluatbon surplus is written o7 1o the surphus on revaluation of asscts in the shancholders® equity,

When an asset is retired, the asset and the related accumulated depreciation are written off from the accounts, and any

gain or loss from retirement of the asset is recognised in the stntement of comprehensive ncoime.
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BANGKOK LAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2022

1an

Leases

Lense - where the Groip is e lessee

Mamphmnrumlhﬁupmﬂuﬂw:m1nwmh.nlﬂltﬂmil.u’m=|:mlu'
the contract conveys he right to contral the use of an identified nsset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group applicd a single recognition and measurensent approach for all leases, except for short = term leases and

leases of haw - value assets. Al the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date ihe underlying asset is available for

use), the Group recognises right-of-use assels representing the right to use underlying assets and lease liabilities based

on lease paymenis.

Right-of-use assels

The Group recognises ﬁﬂmfwwmmﬂ:mmumduurhlm. Right-of-use sssels are
measured af cost, less any necumilated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilitics, The cost of right-of-use assels includes the amount of lexse liabilities recognised through
inJHu.I.mmﬂﬁﬁﬂdhﬂmﬂm,ammwmnwmﬂtwm
less any lease incentives recsived.

Lease liahilitles

Al the comemencement date o the Temse, the Group recognises leass liabilities measumed ot the present value of the lease
payments 1o be made over the lease term, discounied by the interest mie implicit in the lease or the Group's
incremental barmowing rate. Afler the commencement date, the amount of leass liahilitics i increased io reflect
the aceretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying anvunt of lease
liabilitics is remeasured il there is a moedification or resssessment.

€1 Short - term beases and Leases of low = value asscts

P:yﬂmtumdn-hsulhi.hauiluummnl' {2 months of less al ilse commencemeni daie, or ore leases of
low - walee nisels, are recognised as expenses on w straight - line basis over the lease wenm,

BANGKOK LAND | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

87




88

BANGKOK LAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2022

3510

Leases - where the Group is the lessor

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset 1o a lessee is
classified as finance leases. As al the commencement date, an asset held under a finance lease is recognised as a receivable
al an amount equal to the net investment in the lease or the present value of the lease payments receivable and any
unguaranteed residual value. Subsequently, finance income is recognised over the lease term fo reflect a constant periodic

rate of retum on the net invesiment in the lease.

A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to a lessee, Lease receivables from operating leases is recognised as income in profit or
Imnnamlghl-lhtb&siswcrlht;Ims:tﬁ'mlniliﬂldh'aﬁmﬂshwwudhﬂohainimmminglmmaﬂbdtdllhe
mnﬁngmﬂnfﬂmuﬂadyhmmwmmhdasmmmwmmIew:humumh:wnu basis as (he lease
income.

Income tax

Income lax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit

or loss cxeept to the extent that they relate to a business combinalion, or items recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.
Cumrent fax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the laxable income or loss for the year, using tax vates enacted

or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes, Deferred lax is mot recognized for the
following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or liabilitics in a
(ransaction that is notl a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and
differences refating to investments in subsidiaries entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

Defierred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse,

using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain tax
positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Group believes that its acervals for lax liabilitics
arc adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including interpretations of tax law and
prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a serics of judgments about
future everts. Mew information may become available that causes the Group to change its judgment regarding the
adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilitics will impact tax expense in the period that such a

determination is made.

Deforved tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assels, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entily, or on different tax
entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be
realized simultancously. A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assels are reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Foreign curvency translation

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates. Monelary assels
and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies at the statement of financial position date including assets and liabilities
of a foreign subsidiary which is identified as a part of the Company’s operation are translated into Baht at the exchange
rates ruling at that date. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such (ransactions and from the translation of
monelary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.

Financial instruments :

The Group initially measures financial assets at its fair value plus, in the case of financial assets that are not measured
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. However, trade receivables, that do nol contain a significant

financing component are measured at the transaction price as disclosed in the accounting policy relating to trade

receivables.

Financial assets are classified, at inifial recognition, as to be subsequently measurcd at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"), and fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"). The classification
of financial assets at initial recognition is driven by the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets

and the contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial assets.
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Fiiarial ——

The Group measures financial assets al amortised cost if the financial asset is held in order to collect contractual cash flows
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount oulstanding.

Financial assets af amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (“EIR™) method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired,

Finaneinl assats al FYTEL

mead—EndFmdaﬂduhmhtmmnndanWmeﬁndhﬂmmmarﬁmnm position ol fair value with

niet changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Except for derivative liabilities, at initial recognition the Group's financial liabilitics are recognised ot fair value net of
{ransaction costs and classified as liabilities 1o be subsequently measured at amoriised cost using he EIR method. Gains and
lasses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amorisation process.
In determining amortised cost, the Company takes into account any fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR

armorfisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
i nelal
Af-mmhlmahpﬁnmihrduumnhudvdmﬂuﬂghﬁhmﬁmmhﬂmﬂmm the asset have expired or have been

:rmsﬁ:‘r:dmddrhu*lluCmmhumrnmlmwlhlh'ﬂllherﬁwmﬂmnﬁuf&:mﬂ.w&mﬂwhﬂ
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has iransfemed control of the asseL.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires, When an
existing financial linbility is replaced by another From the same lender on substantially different terms, or the ierms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the originl
liability and the recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the

statement of profil or loss.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group measures expected credit losses (ECLs) that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-
months. For those eredit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for eredit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure (a lifetime
ECL)

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. It is based on its historical credit
loss experience and adjusted for forward - looking factors specific to the debtors and the economie environment.

Impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss under the account. "Administrative expenses”

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Offietiinig of finansial i
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to selile on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past evens, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can
be made.

Employee benefits

Short - lerm employee benefits

The Group are recognized salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund as expenscs when incurred.
Post - employment benefils

® Defined contribution plans

The Group and their employees have jointly established a provident fund, The fund is monthly contributed by
employees and by the Group. The fund’s assels are held in a separate trust fund and the Group contributions are

recognized as expenses when incurred.

@ Defined benefit plans

The Group have obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make (o employees upon relivement under
labor law. The treat these severance payment obligations as a defined benefit plan,
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The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professionally qualified independent actuary based
on actuarial techniques, using the projecied unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post - employment benefits are recognized immediately in other comprehensive
income.

Past service costs are recognised in the income statement on the earlier of the date of the plan amendment or curtailment

and the date that (he Group recognises restructuring - related costs.

The defined benefit obligations are measured al the present value of estimated future cash flows using & discount rate that
is similar to the interest rate on govenment bond,

Impairment of non financial assets

The Group have determined the impairment of assels if there §s indicator that the camrying amount of asset exceeds its

recoverable amount.

In case thit the book value of an asset exceeds its net realizable value, the Group will recognize as impairment loss in
the statements of income for the period. The Group will reverse the impairment loss whenever there is an indication

that there is no longer impairment or reduction in impairment.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assct or paid to ransfer a liability in an orderly iransaclion
between buyer and seller (marke! participants) at the measurement date. The Group apply a quoted market price in an
active market to measure their assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial
reporting standards. Except in case of no active market of an identical asset or liability or when a quoted market price
is not available, the Group measure fair value using valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and
maximises the use of relevant observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair

value,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hicrarchy into three levels based on categorise of input to be used in fair value measurement as

follows:
Level 1 : Use of quoted markel prices in an observable active market for stich assels or liabilities.
Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or indirectly.

Level 3 ; Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows.
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At the end of each reporting period, the Group determine whether transfers have occurred between levels within the fair
value hierarchy for assels and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on

a recurring basis.

Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles al times requircs
management 1o make subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain, These judgments
and estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures and actual results could differ, The significant accounting judgments
and estimates are as follows :

Impairment of assets

The Group performs impairment reviews in respect of assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
an asset may be impaired. The Group determines the devaluation of such assels based on net realizable value. The

determination of what is devaluation requires the management o ¢xercise judgment.
o (i

The Group treals investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value

below their cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists, The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged" requires judgment,

Depreciation

In calculating depreciation of plant and equipment, the management estimates useful lives and salvage values of the
plant and equipment and reviews estimated useful lives and salvage values if there are any changes.

The post - employment benefits and other long - term employee benefit liabilities are determined using actuarial
valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions such as discount rates, future salary increases,

mortality rates and stafl tunover rates. Duc to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject o

significant uncertainty,

In determining an allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables, the management needs to make judgement
and estimates based upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the
forecast economic condition for groupings of various customer segments with similar credit risks. The Group’s
historical eredit loss experience and forecast economic conditions may also not be representative of whether a

customer will actually default in the future.
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5.1

Liliga
The Company has contingent liabilities as a result of litigation. The Group’s management has used judgement to assess
the results of the litigation and believes that the provision made would be sufficient, However, aciual results could
differ from the estimates,

All other estimates are furlher detailed in the corresponding disclosures,

Transactions with related parties

Significant transactions with related parties

Portion of revenues and expenses arose from transactions with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2022 and

2021 are summarized as follows :
{Unit : Million Baht)

Consolidated Separate
Pricing financial statcments financial siaiements
Policy 2022 2021 2022 2021
Income
Interest income : in
Bangkok Airport Industry Company Limited - - 10 40
Rental and service imcome : (2)
lmpact Exhibition Management Company
Limited - - 2 1
Dividend income : 4)
Bangkok Land Agency Company Limited - - 9 iz
Expense
Rental and service expense (3
Bangkok Airport Indusiry Company Linited " - 84 107
Sinpornchai Company Limited 2 = . 1
o = &4 108
Management fee : (2)
Impact Exhibition Management Company
Limited - “ 34 9
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Pricing palicy
{1} Fixed depasit inferest rates of fimancial insitutions
(2} Actsal paid
(3) Price of arca
{4} Right to receive dividend
5.2 Advances and sther receivables fram related parties - net

The halamces of advance and receivables. from related partics as al March 31, 2022 and 2021, arc as follows @

{Lnix : Millson Baki)

Consolidated Separale
financial stmemenis financial stalements
2022 2021 222 2021
Accrued meome ;
Bamgkak Airport Industry Company Limited - y 4 6
Advames deposii and other recelvables ©
Bangkok Airport Industry Comgpany Limited = ¥ 215 125
Bangkok Land {Cayman Islands) Company Limited i - ] I
- = 23 X2
Iterest receivablis
Bangkok Airport Industry Company Limited . 2,584 2574
Sinpomchal Company Limbsed - 203 L]
Muang Thong Building Services Company Limited = ¥ | 1
- = 1788 2,718
Total advances ord receivables from related
partics, et - = 008 3,030
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Investment in loans
(Uit = Million Bk}

Consolidatced Separate
financial siajements financial stwlements
2022 2021 0 2021
Bangkok Airport Industry Company Limited - = 475 475

Investment in loans comprised of :
{Unix : Million Bahi)

Receivahle per original agreement Lt
Deferred income (49}
Irvesiment in loans 475

As at February 20, 2009, n subsidiary owed Baht 965 million (divided into principal of Baht 444 million and accrued
imberest of Baht 521 million} 1o & financial institution. On the same date, the Company acquired the rights of claim on
this debt from the financial institulion at a price of Balt 475 million. The Company expects bo recover the total full
from the subsidiary.

Shart - term loans to related parties - net

Short - term boans to relnted parties as at March 31, 2022 and 2021, are as follows -
(Uit : Million Bakith

Consolidated Separate

financial stalements financial siaicments

Ml 2021 2022 0zl
Banglkok Airport Industry Company Limited - - 3413 3,563
Sinpomchai Company Limited ] = e 166
- = 35 an

Loans to related parties camy interest ot fixed deposit interest rates of financial institutions. The loans arc ursecured
and have no fixed repayment dases.
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25

On August 17, 2021, the Company entered into an agreement with a debtor of & subsidiary = Bangkok Adrport Industry
Cuo., Lid, The subsidiary receivable has cutstanding debls as of June 30, 2021 consisting of accrued service charges of
Baht 25.76 million, deposits received in advance of Balt 225,16 million, and debis including acerved interest of Bahil
T,12.81 millien, total all debis amount Balt 7,363.73 million (Note 5.2, 5.3 and 5.4). Requires that the subsidiary
receivable has 1o pay annually in the amount of not less than Babi 150 million per vear, If the economie situation in
the fulure docs not cause liquidity, both parties agree (o enter inlo an agreement to reduce the amount as agreed
upoa by both partics, Including the Compary has agreed 1o stop calculating new interest from the outstanding pringipal
ammoumit of Baht 4,006.93 million since July 1, 2021,

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities to related parties
(Uit = Million Baht)

Separate financial siatements

2022 2021
Right-of-use assets :
Bongkok Airport Industry Company Limited :
Net book value as al April 1, 7 8
Add Inerease and Lease modification = 1
Less Depreciation for the year (3) (2)
Met book value as al March 31, 4 7
Lease labilities :
Bangkok Alrpon Indusiry Company Limited :
Lease Habilities 5 7
Less Deferred interest expense () =
Total 4 7
Less Current portion (2} {2)
Lease Habilities — net 2 5

s at Mareh 31, 2022, the Company has contracts affecting to record right of use assets as follows :

The company has an office rental lease with a related company. The coniract has a period beginning April 1, 2021 to
expire on March 31, 2024, Monthly rent is Babi 0.20 million per month.
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5.6 Payabiles to related parties

The bulances of payables o related partics as at March 31, 2022 and 2021, are as follows :
{Unit : Million Baht)

Consolidated Separaie
financial statemenis financial stalcments
2022 2021 2022 2021
Arerned management fee :
Banghkok Adrport Industry Company Limited . T 555 475
Impact Exhibition Management Company Limited - = 1 -
550 475
Advanee and payables :
Sinpomehal Company Limmited - = 1 1
Impact Exbibition Management Company Limited + - 2 3
Bangkok Land (Cayman Istands) Company Limited - - 122 122
Muang Thong Services and Munagement
Company Limited - - 4 4
Muang Thong Building Services Company Lirmiled - - 3 4
. - 132 134
= = GHH 605

5.7 Laong - term loans from related parties

Long - term loans from reiated parties as at March 31, 2022 and 2021, comprise of :
{Unit : Million Baht)

Separate financial sialements

Loans from 2022 2021
Sinpomehni Company Limited 6,650 B,050

The Company established a wholly - owned subsidiary, Bangkok Land (Cayman [slands) Company Limited (BL
Cayman), in October 1992 wilh a registercd capital of USD 10,000, BL Cayman issued exchangeable notes in
foreign capital markets, guaraniced by the Company and the entire procecds of the notes were lent to the

Company on equivalent financial terms.
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The Company entered into a loan agreement with BL Cayman on October 13, 1993, whereas in the event that the
Company should have failed to meet ils payment obligation which would have caused BL Cayman not able to make
its payment to the note holders, the Company agreed lo pay BL Cayman a penalty interest of 1% above the normal
interest rale per annum on the amount due by the Company. However, no claim has been made against the

Company. The Company therefore has not accounted for the penalty interest in its financial statements.

On March 28, 2016, the Company entered into agreement with BL Cayman that both parties agreed to acknowledge
the debt and amend the terms and conditions. Outstanding debt as at December 31, 2015 was Baht 14,189 million
(comprise of principal of Baht 4,619 million and acerued interest of Baht 9,570 million) which the BL Cayman
agreed lo waive accrued interest of Baht 189 million and the remaining amount of Baht 14,000 million was changed
to be a principal with no interest charging since January 1, 2016 onwards. The Company recognized a gain on debt
forgiveness as other income in the statement of comprehensive income for the year end March 31, 2016.

On March 30, 2016, the BL Cayman entered into agreement with Sinpornchai Company Limited that BL Cayman
agreed to sell debt with BLAND amounting to Baht 14,000 million to Sinpornchai Company Limited at the price of
Baht 200 million.

On March 31, 2017, the Company entered into a debt restructuring agreement with Sinpornchai Company Limited.
The Company agreed to pay the unpaid amount of Baht 14,000 million to Sinpornchai Company Limited by
offsetting the total amount of Baht 600 million (consisting of a principal of Baht 400 million and accrued interest of
Baht 200 million, the Company has ceased to charge interest on the outstanding principal of Baht 400 million since
April 1,2017). Subsequently, make a deduction from the outstanding interest. Details are as follows :
{Unit : Million Baht)
Debt that the subsidiary

Year Principle Interest Taotal Company gave up
2017 i5 - 13 335
2018 60 £ 60 1,340
2019 60 - 60 1,340
2020 6 ? 60 1,340
2021 )] T a0 1,340
2022 60 = 60 1,340
2023 60 . 6l 1,340
2024 25 is G0 1,340
2025 g 60 G0 1,340
2026 5 60 G0 1,340
2027 = 45 45 1,005
400 200 600 13,400
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The Company has recognized the gain from debt repayment of Baht 1,340 million to other income in the statement
af income for the year ended March 31, 2022,

Maturity of long - term loans from related parties are as follows ©
{Unit : Million Baht)

Separate financial statements

2022 a0
Within 1 year 1,400 1,400
Ower | years 5,250 6,650
Total 6,650 8,050

. Trade and other current receivables - net

Trade receivable and other current receivable as at March 31, 2022 and 2021, are as follows

{Unit : Million Baht)

Consolidaied Separale
financial stalemenls financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021

Trade reccivables 218 275 33 34
Less Expected credit loss {152) {153} 27 (27
Trade receivables - net il &2 6 T
Advances and other receivables from related

parties (Note 5.2) - - 3,018 3,030
Investment in loans to related parties (Note 5.3) - - 475 475
Prepaid expenses 23 22 7 4
Revenue depariment receivables 13 21 5 -
Accrued income 4 [ - -
Othier current receivables - net 36 is 2 s
Total trade and other current receivables = net 142 207 3,513 3,521
The aging of trade receivables are as follows
Mot over 3 months A0 1o 5 6
3 - 6 moniths 12 7 - 1
6~ |2 months 4 7 1 1
Ower 12 months 152 151 27 26
Total 218 275 i3 34
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7 Inventories

Inventories as at March 31, 2022 and 2021, comprises :

{Unit ; Million Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Land 15,296 15,295 14,636 14,636
Ceonstruction in progress 19,044 19,039 8,731 8,731
Infrasiructure cosi - arcas for sale 1,605 1,605 1,529 1,529
= public areas L 2,127 2,127 2,127
Project management fee 493 994 483 483
Borowing costs 3,969 3969 1,346 1,346
Other related costs 1,333 1,332 213 912
Transfer to investment property 363 $ = 5
44,730 44,361 29,765 29,764
Less: Transfer (o cost of sales to date
- Cost of sales (39,117) (38,963) (26,204) {26,050)
- Accumulated depreciation of public
area infrastruciure (1,649) (1,573) {1,6459) (1,573}
= Allowanee for net realizable value
Diseounts {2,187} (2,187) (503) (503)
Todal Real estate development costs - net L 1,638 1,409 1,638
Less: Real estate development cost
classificd as current assels (914) (720} (546) (720)
MNet (Mote 13) B63 218 63 918

Part of the land and condominium units kave been morigaged with banks as collateral for letter of guarantes for the Group
and have been pledged as collateral with the Courts. The morigaged land and condominium units, as a percentage of

the ioinl land arcas/telal units, is as follows

Percentage of land mongaged
Percentage of condominium unils mortgaged

Consolidated Separate
[inancial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021

= 0.09 = 0.09
1.90 100 2.02 3.00
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8. Other current fMinancial assels
(Unit : Million Baht)
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Debt instruments at amortised cost
Fixed deposits with maturity date
due more than 3 months 527 1,068 S04 500
Debt instruments measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Investment of open 557 453 | 1
Total 1,084 1,521 505 501
2 Investment in subsidiaries
As gt March 31, 2022 and 2021, invesiment in subsidiaries comprise of :
Separnte financial stalements
Million Hali Million Baht Million Bahy
Paid = up share capilal  Percentage of holding At cost Diividend for the year
2032 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 20210
vestment in subsidiarics
Impact Exhibition Management
Company Limited 12953 12951 1go 100 9,548 08458 - .
Sinpomehai Company Limited 1180 1180 104 100 1,180 I, 180 = -
Muang Thong Bailding
Services Company Limited 12 12 97 97 15 15 - -
Muang Thong Services and
Management Company Linited 25 25 a o 10 o - =
Bangkok Land Agency
Company Limited 100 100 " 55 8l 8l 19 a2
Banghok Airpont Indusiry
Company Limited 5,320 5,320 60 (i) 3 3 . =
Banglkok Land (Cayman Iskands) LS UsD
Comnpany Limited .01 0. 100 1 - . = *
Spaaner Limited = . 100 100 - - . -
Total J1,137 11,137 19 7]

102

BANGKOK LAND | ANNUAL REPORT 2022




BANGKOK LAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2022

Dhetails of non - wholly owned subsidiaries which have material non - controlling interests as af March 31, 2022 and
2021 are as follows

(Uit ; Millicn Bah)
Proportion of squity Accumulated balanceof  Profitloss allocated be non -
interest held by mon - comdrolling comtrolling imlerests during.  Dividend paid 1o tan - controlling
noi - conirolling Inferests: inleresle the year infercils during the year
022 2021
Company s mme {Percentage) (Percentage) 022 2021 2022 021 022 2021
Tinpact Growih Real
Estaie Investnwenl Trust SO0 S0.00 BT 8003 L1 124 i} T4

“The summarized financial information before intragroup eliminations of each non-wholly owned subsidiary which has
material non = controlling interests, arc as follows :
{Linit : Million Baht)

Impact Growih Real Estate Investment Trust

2022 2021

Statement of financial position

Total assels 20372 20272

Total liabilities {4,279) (4,267)

Met assels G093 16,005

Carrylng amount of non - controlling interest 8047 8,003
Statement of comprehensive income

Total Revenues i1 1,109

Met profit for the years 161 447

Gain alloeated 1o non = controlling interest for the year gl 224
Statement of cash flows

Dividends paid to non - controlling interests »w 274

Cash Nows provided by operating aclivities 22 250

Cash flows provided by financing activities (195) (672)

Met increase (decrease) in cash flows 27 (422)
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I Investment property

During the years ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 the movenents of investment property ane as follows;
{Unit : Million Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021

Appraised value

Beginning balance 39,468 38,308 713 11,125
[nerease 4 B2 = L
Transfer to properiy, plant and equipment (102) - (102} &
Transfer to real estate cost (363} z = -
Gain on revaluation [B-{LY 1,084 B4 53
Disposal from invesiment properly - (12) = (12)
Ending balance 40,826 10,468 12,458 11,712

Investment property is stated at fair value based on the latest appraised value (market approach) of independent valsers
e.g. the land and buildings of the exhibition center (Hall 5 - 12) and IMPACT Convention Center and building for rent
were valued by income approach (level 3) and the land and land held for project for rent were valued by market approach
{level 2}

The Exceutive board meeting on November 15, 2021, has approved to classify the land and buildings of a subsidiary as
inventory because of the project development plan 1o dispose. The Group transfer investment property inta the mveniory
account with fair value. and approved to classify the Company's tand as Property, plant, and equipment because of the
project development plan to a cooking school. The Group transfer investment propeny into the property, plant and
equipment account with fair value.
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1. Property, planis and equipment - net

Disring the year ended March 31, 2022, the Group have the movements of property, plants and equipment are as

fiollows :
Consalidibed financial sialensens (In Million Baht)
Buildings  Topact Hall  Impaci Fuamiiure
anil odher inacriar Hall Baildings anil Motor  Canstruction
Land - constroction  systems svucture  improvements - fictores vebicles.  mprogress Todl
ALcos]
A ot belarch 31, 2020 (s (1) I 4,635 15m s 1,765 15 il 11,866
Increase g . B ¢ . n . (3 158
Biegroses : . . - . (19 - - (19}
Tranafer in (Transfer out) 102 {151} 128 {124} 158 . . & 1
As it March 31, 2002 1, )ik 11 A, THE 3450 a3 L 135 166 1107
Accunwlaicd deprecinkion
As at March 31, 2021 : 123 1009 w2 25 1,404 l0d = 5127
Ingrease . 4 27 E o ) [z 3 . 464
Deerease - - - T e {19) T = (RE ]
‘Transfier in (Transfer outh ] (6} ) (91 & x
As ot Mareh 31, 2022 . 126 1136 a3l %6 1497 106 . 6,172
Differences on revaluation of st
As at March 31, 2021 5,244 41 1508 1310 - + . = 9,195
Drecrense - . - . . - 2 %
Transfer in (Tramsier out # n r + . - . -
As at March 31, 2022 3,244 43 1598 2310 = z : : 9,105
Accumulaied depreginlion-dilferences
onneviluation of mszis

Axab March 31, 2021 - 33 T 161 . 2 e 2 660
Increase . 3 33 5 . E E - 1|
Transfee i (Tressfer outh : ‘ : : 2 . -
Aus it March 31, M2 = 13 o] 417 - . . . T4l
et bk vihug
As at March 31, 2021 62 206 1,058 4,395 134 365 12 60 T4ET
As ai March 31, 2022 6,246 55 1 R68 4,412 57 275 9 166 14,389
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Asg at March 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group have portion of property with historical costs of Baht 1,560 million and Baht
1,566 million, respectively, are in use but fully depreciated (Separate : Baht 101 million and Baht 61 million, respectively).

As at March 31, 2022 and 2021, a certain parcel of land and building with amount of Baht 17,959 million of a

subsidiary have been morigaged as collateral for long - term loan (Note 16).

As at March 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group have reclassified the depreciation of buildings and equipment during the
temporary shutdown in accordance with surveillance measures and the prevention of the spread of the Covid - 19 virus.

It was administrative expenses in the amount of Baht 24.71 million and Baht 39.95 million, respectively.

Separate financial statements (In Million Baht}

Building Fumnilure Motor Work in

Land improvements  and fixtures vehicles process Total
At cost
As at March 31, 2021 C 163 21 15 5 204
Increase N I | - 56 58
Decrease = - - - - -
Transfer in (Transfer out) 102 6 ' (6 102
As at March 31, 2022 102 170 22 15 55 364
\ lited -
As at March 31, 2021 = 79 20 14 = 113
Increase o 13 I 1 = 15
Decrease - - - - - =
Transfer in (Transfer out) . - = # = -
As at March 31, 2022 = 92 21 15 - 128
Met book value
As at March 31, 2021 a 84 1 1 5 a1
As at March 31, 2022 102 78 I z 55 236
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12 Right-of-use assets
Movements of the right-of-use assets account during the year ended March 31, 2022, are summarized below,

{Unit : Million Bahi)

Consolidated financial statements
2022 2021
Net book value beginning 24 2
Adjustmenis of right-of-use assets due to TFRS16 adoption - 29
Additions 58 |
Depreciation during the year {9 (&)
Net book value as at ending 73 24

13. Other non - current assets

The balances of other non - current assels as at March 31, 2022 and 2021, are as follows :
(Linit : Million Baht)

Consolidated Separale
financial statements financial statcments
2022 2021 2022 2021
Real estate development cost (Note 7) 863 918 B63 918
Deposits pledged as collateral 72 71 47 50
Mon - current tax assets 92 115 = -
Others 312 385 136 346
Total 1,399 1,489 1,246 1,314

14. Trade and other current payables

The balances of trade and other current payables as at March 31, 2022 and 2021, are as follows :
(Unit : Million Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial stalements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Payables with related companies (Note 5.6) - - 6a8 609
Trade payables 131 49 10 +
Advance received 206 336 &4 132
Accrued expenses 176 157 14 8
Other payables 196 209 28 28
Total T4 751 824 777
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15. Oriher corrent linbilities

The balances of other current liabilitics as at March 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows

{Unit : Million Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial siaiemenis
2022 2021 2022 2021
Deposit 140 135 B3 4
Security deposit 108 13 27 26
Relentions 7 11 3 2
Others 5 18 - 2
Total 280 207 113 114

16. Long - term loans

{Linit ; Million Baht)
Consolidated financial statements

1. A long - term credit facility amounting to Baht 1,900 million carry

interest at floating rates not exceeding MLR - 1.50% per annum, with
interest payable every month - end and principal repayment for 72

mionthly instaliments on monthly basis as from Apnl 2016

2. A long - lerm credit facility amounting 1o Baht 2,000 million carry
interes! indicated in loan agreement plus fixed interest rate wilh

interest payable monthly and principal to be paid in full within 2024

Total

Less = deferred amortization on front end fee

Total
Less ; current portion of long - term loans

Long - term loans = net of current portion

All long - term loans are secured by morigage of land and buildings, including utility systems and equipment of
IMPACT Muang Thong Thani in which the subsidiary has invested, including the conditional assignment of rights

2022 2021

1,872 1,876
2,000 2,000
3872 1,876

(1 (n

1,871 3,875
{1,872) (5)
1,999 3,870

under insurance policies, right under related contracts and rights over bank accounts of the subsidiary.

The loan agreemenis contain covenants, which, among other things, require the subsidiary to maintain certain financial

ratios such a5 loan-to-iotal assels and intorest coverage ratios.,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2022

17,

As at March 31, 2022, the subsidiary has unutilized credit facilities with two (inangial instinstion amounting 1o Bahi

280 million. (As at March 31, 2021 : Baht 280 million)

Maturity of loans from financial institution are as follows

(Unit ; Million Baht)

Consolidated financial siatements
2022 2021
Within in 1 year 1,872 5
Over | - 5 years 1,999 3,870
Tatal 3ET 1,875
Deferved tax

Deferred tax as al March 31, 2022 and 2021 comprises ©

{Unit : Million Baht)

Consolidated Separale
financial statements finnncial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Dieferred tax assels 340 340 - -
Deeferred tax liabilities (4, 164} (3,832) (719) (554)

The components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities were as follows :

{Unit : Million Baht}

Consolidaied Separate
lnancial statements financial siatements
2022 2021 2022 2021

Deferred tax assets

Expected credit loss " 1 - -
Pravision for leng = term employee benefils 1 [ - -
Gain on sale of assels - related pariy ik 328 - -
Total deferved fax assets - nel 340 340 = -
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Deferred tax linbilities

Revaluntion of property, plant and cquipment

Invesiment property

Income recognition of real estate business

Expected credil loss

Prowvision for lang = tenm employes benefiis

Provision for loss on pending from tnwsuits

Assels (lease) under lease agroement

Apcumulale: |oss nol excoed five acoounting
Perionds

Cither

‘Total deferred tax labilities - net

I8 Provisions Tor employee benefit

{Uimit : Million Baht)

Consolidased Separale
Mnancial staiemenis linancial stalements
2022 2021 22 2021
{936) [943) - -
{3,506) {3,080} {930) (753)
- | = 1
5 16 i &
7 0 & i
199 182 199 182
o - o =
138 74 - .
(1000 {100y - -
(4,164} (3.832) {719 {558)

An administrative departnvent sctuary carried oul an evaluation of the Company’s obligations for employees® long -
term benefils using the projected unit credit method. The Company and subsidiary have provided the provision for

employees” long - term benefits for the year end March 31, 2022 and 2021, as follows :

Current provisions for employes benefit

Mon - current provisions for employee benefit

Taowal provisions for employee benefit
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BANGKOK LAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2022
{Linit : Million Balv)
Consolidated Separie
2021 20M) 2021 2020
Employee benefil obligations — beginning of year 48 128 2 32
Employee benefit expenscs
Currenl service cosls ) 20 1 =
Inkercst on obligation 4 3 . =
Actuarial (gain) loss from employee benefit (18) 11 " >
Less liabilities from employee retirement (i (14} {1 *
Employee benefit obligations — ending of year 142 148 a2 n

Principal actuarial assumplions #t the reporting date {Actuarial basis) are summarized below :
{UInit © Million Baht)

Consolidated Scparnte
2022 2021 222 2021
Discount mie (%) 1.47-3.51 1.77 - 2.80 2.13 213
Future salary increase rate (%) 4.00 - 6.00 4.00 - 6.00 4,00 4.00
Retirement age (years old) 1] 60 Lt &0

The resull of sensitivily analysis for significant assumptions that affect the present value of the long = term employee
benefit obligation as at March 31, 2022 and 2021 are summarised below :

{Unit : Million Baht}

As at March 31, 2022
Consolidated Separate
Assumplions that affect Increase rale Decrease rale  Increnserate  Ddecrense rale
Dscount rate {1.00%) (%) L1 (1) i
Future salary increase rate (1.00%) 10 (% 1 (n
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{Umik : Million Baki)
As al March 31, 2021
Consolidated Separale
Assumptions that affect Increase raie Decrease rate Increase mie Decrease mie
Discount rate (1.00%5) (1m) 2 {1 |
Fuiure salary increase rate (1.00%) i {10} I (1

18, Liease linbilities

Asg al Murch 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group have lease liabilities as follows |
{Unit : Million Baht)

Consolidaicd
2365 2564
Lease linbilities 75 24
Less Deferred interest expense n (3)
Taotal 68 21
Less Current portion (12 6
Lease linbilities - net 56 15

i, Treasury stock

The Board of Direclors' meeting on March 14, 2018, the Board of Dircctors passed a resolution upproving the share
repurchase program for the third financial management in the amount ol exceeding Baht 3,719 million, representing &
repurchase nol exceeding |1,859,621,824 shares with a par value of Baht 1, the share price 1o be repurchased is ned more
than 10% of the total paid - up shares and the repurchase period is 6 months from the date of share repurchase for a
period not o exceed | year (ended September 28, 2019).

On October 2, 2019, Board of Directors® mesting No. 6/2019, passed a resolution approving the reduction of the paid -
up capital from Baht 18,596 569,754 10 be Baht 17,374,401,054 by deduction of the share capital, the repurchase ul the
amount of 1,222, 168,700 shares under share repurchase praject 3, The Company registered the reduciion of paid - up
capital to the Minisiry of Commerce on October 11, 2019. The Company reversed all the appropriated retained
carnings for ireasury shares after decreasing paid - up share capital by writing ofT the treasury shares s sialed above.
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2l

23

The Board of Dircetors' meeting on March 4, 2020, the Board of Directors passed a resolution approving the share
repurchase program for the fourth financial management in the amount not exceeding Balt 2,085 million, representing
a repurchase not exceeding 1,737,440,108 shares with a par value of Baht 1, the share price 1o be repurchased is not
maore than 10% of the wial paid - up shares and the repurchass period is 6 months from the date of share repurchase for
a peniod not to exceed 3 year (ended Sepiember 18, 2023),

According to letter No. Gor Lor Tor, Cher Sor. (Vor) 2/2005 of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission,
dated February 14, 2005, conceming the acquisition of Ircasury shares, a public limited company may purchase back
treasury shares in an amounl not exceeding the amount of its retained earnings and is to appropriate an equal amouni
of refained camings to a reserve for (reasury shares, which must be maintained uniil the Company either sells the
treasury shares or reduces its paid-up share capital by an amount equal to the value of the treasury shares which it could
not sell.

The Company appropriated the full required amount of retained eamings 10 a reserve for the treasury shires,

As al March 31,2022, the Company has 21,775,900 repurchased shares or equal 1o 0.13% of paid - up share capital
which is Baht 19 million,

Dividend payment

The Board of Directors’ meeting held on July 22, 2021, passed the resolution to approve the dividend payment at the
rate of Baht 0,03 per share, totaling Baht 521 million. The payment of this dividend deducted from treasury stock paid
to shareholders. The payment of this dividend shell be paid on August 2021.

The ordinary shareholders® meeting held on July 23, 2020, passed the resolution to approve the dividend payment for
the year ended March 31, 2020, at the rate of Baht 0.06 per share 1o the sharcholders. The Company has already paid
the interim dividend at the rate of Balt 0.04 per share (o the shareholders on March 13, 2020, totaling Baht 695 million,
Therefore, the Company pay the remaining dividend at the rate of Baht 0.02 per share to the shareholders, totaling Baht 347
million. The payment of this dividend shell be paid on August 2020,

Legal reserve

According 1o the Public Limited Companies Act, the Company has appropriated ifs reserve as a legal reserve in the sum
of 5% of the annual net profit less the total accumulated deficit brought forward, until the legal reserve reaches of 10%
of the registered authorized capital. Such the legal reserve is not available for dividend disiribution.
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23. Other revenues

Other revenues for the years ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 comprise :

Inferest income

Gain on debt forgiveness from subsidiary (Note 5.7)
Unrealized gain on valuation of current investment
Gain on disposal fixed assels

Oithers

Tatal

4. Expenses classified by naiure of expenses

{ Uinit : Million Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial stalements limancial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021

12 20 " 4%

' ¥ 1,340 1,340

2 7 - c

. 4 s 4

93 1o 4 41

108 141 1,361 1,434

Significant expenses by nature for the years ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows :

Salary and wages and other employee benefits
Depreciation and amortization

Professional lee

Advertising expense

Oither charges

Commission

Rental and service expense

Loss from litigation

Repair expenses

Litilities expenses
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Consolidated Scparate
financial stalements nancial statemenis
2022 2021 2022 2021
733 816 7 29
G 639 102 102
40 i 48 B2
5 3 1 2
44 T4 9 8
= 17 = 17
43 18 a4 107
83 1,032 §3 910
95 & 3 2!
141 197 a6 9
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5. Income tnx
Income tax recogndced in profit or loss

For the years ended Manch 31, 2022 and 2021, income tax expenses are as follows :

(Ui : Million Baht}

Consolidated Separale
financial statements finincial statements
2022 2021 2022 ozl
Corporale incone tax
Corporate income tax for the years 263 275 215 225
Deferred income taxes :
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 327 52 151 (58)
Income tax in statements of comprehensive income 590 327 376 167
B i C affecti
{Unir ; Million Baht}
Consalidated financial sislements
Rate (%) 2022 Rate (%) 02
Profit (Joss} belore income tax expense 1,232 (2300
Imcome tax using the Thai corperation lax mic 20 244 0 (50}
Tax effect of income and expenses that are not taxible income
or nol deductible in determining taxable profit - net 17 315
Total 263 275
(Unit - Million Baht)
Separate financial statements
Rare {36) 022 Rate (¥a) 2021
Profit {loss) before income tax expense 1,854 BGE
Incorme tax using the Thai corporation tax rale 20 k¥ 20 174
Tax effect of incopme and expenses that ere not txable income
or nat deductible in determining taxable profit - net (164) 51
Total 215 225
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26.

7.

BANGKOK LAND

Management benefit expenses

Management benefit expenses represent bencfit expenses that managemen! obtained from the Company such as

compensation paid in cash and other benefits as stocks, debentures or other privileges including employee stocks option

plan or any incentive, ete. For the listed company, management represents the management team as described according

to the Securitics and Exchange Law.

Management benelit expenses for the years ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows :

(Unit : Million Baht)

Consalidated Separate
financial statements financial statemenis
2022 2021 2022 2021
Management benefit expenses presented in cosis
of sales # 11 = 5
Management benefit expenses presented in
administrative expense 4 L 18 18
Total g2 90 1% 18
Segment information
Consolidated financial statements (Million Baht)
For the year ended March 31, 2022
Real
estate Retail Exhihbition Other
business  business center business  service Total  Elimination Total
Segmenl revenue 659 306 1,436 121 2.522 {532) 1,990
Segment profil (loss) 343 7% (547) 66 (59) {45) (104)
Corporale expenses (289) . (289)
Interes! income 23 (10 13
Dividend income 135 (1315) %
Loss on pending lawsuit (83) 5 (83)
Gain on debt forgiveness
from subsidiary 1,380 (1,380) -
Gain on revaluation of
investment property 1,819 : 1,819
Finance costs (126) i2 (114)
Income fax gxpense (58T) 7 (590)
220 (1,551) 652

Met profit (loss) of year
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Consolidated financial statements (Million Baht)
For the year ended March 31, 2021
Real
catate Retail Exhibation Orther
busingsa  business center business  service Total Elimination Total
Scgment revenue 1,410 46 1,855 14% 159 (642) 3117
Sepment profi (loss) 401 87 ] L 627 {504) 123
Corporale Cxpenses (33a) % (336)
Inlerest incarme 1) (35} 20
Dividend income 416 (426) -
Loss on pending kawsuit (1,032) # (1,032)
Cinin on debt forgiveness
from subsidiary 1,380 {1,380) -
Gain on revaluation of
investmenl property (Ri20 1,090
Finange costs {157 42 {115)
Income fax expense {334) b (328)
5723 (2,301) [(5T8)

281

Mei prafit (loss) of year

Financial instruments

Financial risk management and policies

The Group is exposed to o variety of financial risks, incloding credit risk, market risk {inchading interesi rate risk) and

liquidity risk, The Group's averall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of finansial markels and secks o

minimise poteniial adverse effects on the Group's financial performance, The Group uses derivative insiruments 1o

hedge certain exposures.

Credit risk

Credit risk i the Ask of financisl losses (' customer or the counterparty fails 1o meet its obligations. However, fhe Group
have o policy to enter into financial instruments with eredit worthy counterpartics, therefore the Group do not
anticipate materfal losses from their debt collection. The Group adequately provided expected credit loss.
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk incurs from the fulure interest rate instability, which may affect the Group aperating result and cash

Aow. The Group also incurs interest rate risk (rom investment in financial institutes, bank overdraft, loan from banks,

andd promissary nede - financial instinle

Since the financial assets and lisbilitics are held primarily in short ~ term and have fixed inscrest mies in relation with
the current marke! interes) rale, the Group has not used Mnancial desivative i prodect against such risk,

As ol March 31, 2022 and 2021, significant imlerest ~ bearing financinl assets and Habilitbes clnssified by iype of
infcrest rale are summarised in the table below, with those linancial assets and linbilities that carry fixed interest rates
further classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this oceurs before the maturity date.

{Linit : Million Bahi)
Consolidsted lnancial statemems
As ot March 31, 2022
Fined inberesd rales
Mon -
Within Ower Floating inberest
| year years  Sycars  inicrest e bearing Toknl Interest e
(% per annum)
Fhnanckal Asseis
Cash and cash equivalents 353 - - 3,805 67 425 0.05-090
Duher current financinl asscts 527 - = 557 1,084 015 -0.30
Chher non = carmenl assels
= Deposits pledged as collatcral 2 : 61 7 4 72 0.05-0.20
HEO - &1 3812 628 5381
Finnnelal Rebilities
Current portien of long = term Mok exceeding
[z = " 1.872 = I.ET2  MLR-1.50
Long - term loans T - - | 995 - 1,999 L
- - - 3,871 - 1,87

*not excecding MLR - 1.50% and interest indicaied in loan agreement plus fixed inderest rate.
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{Unit : Million Baht)
Consolidated financial statemenis
As at March 31, 2021
Fixed interest rales
N'm'l o=
Within 1-5 Over Floaling inlerest
I year years  Syears  interest rale bearing Total Interest rate
(%6 per annum)

Financial Asseis
Cash and cash equivalents 3 - - 4,285 38 4326  0.05-025
Other current financial assets 1,069 = I = 453 1,522 0.25 - 0,80
Oibver non - curment assels

- Deposits pledged as collateral ¥ i 64 7 = T 005-090

1,072 = 64 4,292 491 5,919

Financial liabilities
Curreni portion of long - térm Mot exceeding

linbilities -~ ® o 5 = L MLR - 150
Long - term loans - - - 3,870 - 3,870 *

- - - 3875 = 3. K75

*nal exceeding MLR - 1.50% and interest indicated in loan agreement plus fixed interest rate.

{Linii 7 Million Baht)

Separate financial statements

As gt March 31, 2022

Fixed interest rales

Mon -
Within 1-5 Owver Floating inlerest

| year years 5 years  inlerest rate bearing Total Interest rale
(% per annum}

Financial Assets
Cash and cash cquivalenis 1 - - 2011 22 2,034 0D05-0.13
Other current financial asscis 504 - & - 1 505 015
Short = term loans 1o related partics

- nit 31532 - E - - 1,532 1.00
Other non - current assels

- Deposits pledged as collateral = = 47 - 5 47 013-0.15

4,037 = 47 2,011 23 6,118
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{Unit : Million Baht)
Separale financial stalements
As at March 31, 2021
Fixed interest rates
Mon -
Within 1-5 Over Floating interest
Iyear  wears  5years  inierestrate bearing Total Interest rate
(% per annum)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2 % - 2,557 17 2576 005-0.13
Other current financial assels 500 - - 4 1 501 0.25
Short - term loans to relaled parties
= nel 3,729 = =s 5 = 3,729 1.00
Other non - current assels
- Depaosits pledged as collateral . . 50 2 3 50 0.25
4,231 - 50 2,357 1% 6,856

282

Currency risks

Currency risk is the risk that the value of the financial insirument will Mluctuate due to changes in currency exchange
rates,

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk or funding risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising fund to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments. Ligquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly or

close to ils fair value,

Fair value of financial instruments

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial
and non - financial assets and liabilitics. The fair value is the price at which an orderly transaction to sell an asset o 10
transfer a liability would take place between markel participants at the measurement date. Fair values have been
determined for measurement and/or diselosure purposes based on the following methods.

® The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other accounts receivable, short - term loans, other
current assets, bank overdrafis, short - term borrowings, trade and other accounts payable and other current
liakilitics is taken to approximate the carrying value.

*  Fair value of investments in equity securitics - trading securitics according to the offering price, the date.

® The fair value of long - term borrowings is taken to approximate the carrying value because most of these
financial instruments bear interest at market rates.
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Book value of the above financial assets and Habilities is mensured a1 amortized cost, except for the itens that will be
mendioned as Tollows.

Fabr values of financial assets and liabilitics, together with the carrying values shown in the siatement of financial
position as a1 March 31, 2022 were as fodlows 1
{Limir : belilicn Baki}

Consolidnied lirancial satemerils

Axal March 31, 202

Fimnncinl nesets measured st (ir valoe
Heeld for rade investmenis® = 557 . 557
Financial assets for which nir value are
dlisat ot
Ivesiment properiics . 26,521 14209 40,826
® Lewel 2 - The Eiir value determined by using the net axset value as published by the Asset Management
(Linibt = Millfom Baht)

Coessolidated linanciad siatements

Asai March 31, 2021

Lewel | Lewel 2 Lewel 3 Tokal
Finamcial assets measared af Ealr valae
Held fir trade Evesiments® = 453 = 453
Fimanelal sssets for which falr valse are
disclosed
Investment propertacs z 24,643 14,825 39,468

* Level 2 - The falr valuse delermined by using the net nsset vabue as published by the Assel Maragement

BANGKOK LAND | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

121




BANGKOK LAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2022

{Uint : Million Baht}

Separale financis stabements
As ot Murch 31, 2022

Level | Lenvel 2 Level 3 Tolal
Finanvchs] nsocts measured al Eir valie
Held for trade Ivestmenis* . i : i
Fimnneial assels for wiich fair value are
iisclosed
Investment properics . 11544 514 I 2458

# Ll 2 - Thee fair valee determined by using the nel assel value as pubslished by the Asset Managemen

{Unit : Milliom Baht)
Separate financial statements
As 1 March 31, 2021
Lierved 1 Lewel 2 Lewel 3 Total
Fimanelnl ssscls measured af fabr value
Heeld fior il investments® 1 |
Financial assets for which Eair valee sre
disclosed

Irresimend propertics - 11,185 58 1,713

# Lovel 2 - The e vabos deicrmined by using the net ssset value ns published by the Asset Managemenl
19, Earmings {loss) per share
Basle carnings (loss) per share

Basic enmings {loss) per share is caloulmed by dividing the net profil (loss) aliribuiahle b sharcholders by the weighted
avernge numbser of ondinary shares held by third pariies in issue during the yoar.
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30. Pending lawsuits

As at March 31, 2022, the Company has pending lawsuils as summarized below

a)

b)

c)

On January 16, 2015, the Company was sue that the Company had breached the reciprocal agreement, The plaintiffs
claimed that the Company sold certain piece of land without the approval and consent of the plaintiffs who were the
sole agent. Then, the plaintiffs sued the Company 1o transfer the land to the plaintiffs. IF not, the Company has o pay
compensation to the plaintiffs. The Company had submitted a statement to the Court on May 15, 2015 and the Court
has judged to dismiss the case on August 25, 2016. The plaintiff has appialed to the Court on September 23, 2016,
The Company has filed an defense, Subsequently, on July 27, 2017, the Court of Appeal has dismissed the judgment.
The plaintif¥ filed the petition and the Company filed the petition. Subsequently, on July 18, 2019, the Supreme Court
dismissed the case, therefor, the case is final judgment.

On January 31, 2017, seven holders of exchangeable notes in Swiss Francs term have jointly filed a petition for the
winding up of Bangkok Land (Cayman Islands) Company Limited to the Grand Court of Cayman Islands claiming
that Bangkok Land (Cayman Islands) Company Limited is insolvent and unable to pay principal and interest on the of
exchangeable notes in Swiss Francs term, and on May 3, 2017, the Cayman Islands Court has issued an order to

dismiiss the company’s winding up petition of the seven plaintifTs.

On February 9, 2017, Deutsche Trustee Co., Ltd., Trustee of the 4.5% p.a. USD 150,000,000 exchangeable bonds due
2003 (“the Exchangeable Bonds"), filed a plaint in its own name and on behalf of the holdersof the Exchangeable
Bonds against Bangkok Land (Cayman Islands) Company Limited as the issuer of the Exchangeable Bonds and
Bangkok Land Public Company Limited as the guarantor of the Exchangeable Bonds in the Commercial Court in
London, England requiring the group company to repay the indebtedness under the Exchangeable Bonds and related
indebtedness in the total amount of USD 34.208,463.12 and interest calculated on a daily basis of USD 2,328.22 a
day.

Bangkok Land (Cayman Islands) Company Limited and Bangkok Land Public Company Limited have filed their
defence and counterclaim on March 30, 2017, requesting the Court to enforce the plaintiff to retumn all the dividends
that the Trustee has paid for the interest arrears and fees and expenses of the Trustee. The amount of debt claiming by
the plaintiff was overrated. The Court was also requested to enforce the plaintiff to retum a total of 212,096,990
shares pledged to Bangkok Land (Cayman Islands) Company Limited. On March 19, 2019, the Commercial Court of
England sentenced Bangkok Land Public Company Limited and Bangkok Land (Cayman Islands) Limited to repay
debt in US Dollars bonds, including interest as money number 28,201,848.12 US Dollars and the cost of such
litigation is 1,761,838.84 Pounds sterling and the Company's lawyer commented that the judgment of the English
courl will not be in force in Thailand but the Deutsche Trustee Co.,Lid must bring the case to the court in Thailand in
order to the court in Thailand 1o have a judgment 1o force the Company (as the guarantor) to pay the such USD
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currency debt and the English court judgment can only be used as evidence in the case of Thailand. However, the
Company has been sued for debt repayment in US Dollars in Thailand and on October 1, 2012, the Central
Intellectual Property and International Trade Court has a verdict in decided case No. Kor Kor. 2002009, decided case
No. Kor Kor. 202/2012, the judge dismissed the plaintiff’ because of precluded by prescription. Subsequently, on
December 4, 2014, the Supreme Court of Intellectual Property and International Trade Litigation Division with the
judgment of Mo. 15979/2014 by the confirmation of the judgment for the plaintiff under the Central Intellectual
Property and Intemational Trade Court which the case has final judgment.

In July 2018, Trustee has filed a petition to the Commercial Court, England requesting for issuance of the court’s
order for the interim anti - suil injunction to restrain Bangkok Land Public Company Limited and Bangkok Land
{Cayman Islands) Company Limited from commencing and cease any proceeding in relation to the Trust Deed,
the exchangeable bonds in US Dollar term or the shares pledged of Bangkok Land Public Company Limited, as
well as discontinue any relevant case (if it already commenced), whether in Thailand or in any other jurisdiction.
On July 27, 2018, the Commercial Court, England has issued an order as requested by the Trustee to restrain
Bangkok Land Public Company Limited and Bangkok Land (Cayman Islands) Company Limited (including their
dircciors, officers, or agents) from commencing and cease any proceeding in relation lo the Trust Deed, the
exchangeable bonds in US Dollar term or the shares pledgd of Banghkok Land Public Company Limited, as well as
discontinue any relevant case (if it already commenced), whether in Thailand or in any other jurisdiction, and to

pay the Trustee the damages in the sum of GBP 40,712.16 (as at March 31, 2022 : Baht 1.30 million).

The legal advisor of the Company has the opinion that although the plaintiff won the case abroad, the plaintiff
must file a lawsuit against Bangkok Land Public Company Limited as a guarantor in Thailand as a new case. The
foreign judgment could not be applicable and enforceable in Thailand. Therefore, the Company did not make such
provision.

The lawyers of the group company have the opinion that all lawsuits in relation to the exchangeable notes in
Swiss Franes term and the exchangeable bonds in US Dollar term have been cited that the status of limitations has
expired. All holders were not the actual holders due to wrongful acquisition in accordance with the securilies

transfer under the laws of Switzerland and England (as the case may be).

On July 23, 2018, The Company filed a lawsuit against Deutsche Trustee Co.,Ltd and its partisans o prosecute in a
court of Thailand, a civil lawsuit was filed against the Central Intellectual Property and International Trade, claiming
damages of Baht 625,61 million. On February 5, 2021, the Court has rendered 2 judgment for the Company to repay
the outstanding amount incurred under the USD Bonds, including interests, in the amount of USD 28,360,689.46 and
the default interest at the rate of 4.5 percentage per annum calculated from the principle amount of USD 13,379,000
as from the date of the Trustee's counter - claim until the date of the completion of the payment. In addition, the Company
shall also make payment of the expenses incurred from the operation as a lrustee and other expenses of the Trustee,
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d)

)

including interests, in the amount of GBP 1,868,885,65 together with the default interest at the rate of 2 percentage
higher than the interest rate-of West Bank calculated from the principle amount of GBP 1,798,034.17 as from ithe dale
of the Truste’s counler - claim until the date of the completion of the payment and the Company has already recorded
provision for loss on pending kawsuits in the financial statements for the year, However, the aforementioned case is
not final and the Company had exercised s right 1w appeal in accordance with the law. On May 25, 2022, the
Company has entered into a guarantee agreement with the Court and used securities as land and condominium litle
deeds of the Company and its subsidiaries as collateral for suspension of enforcement during the consideration of the
Court of Appeal for Specialized Cases. The Court set the date for the consideration of collateral for stay of execution
during the appeal on June 10, 2022,

On April 18, 2019, the Comparty was sued by a person in a criminal case, offense according to the Securities and
Exchange Acl, and fraud, and also on May 8, 2019, the Company was also sued by such person in the civil case,
offenses under the offense of the Securities and Exchange Act, infringement by claiming damages Baht 100 million.
The criminal case is scheduled for an appointment for investigation on April 25, 2022 on that day, the plainiff's
lawyer submitted a request to postpone the case claiming that the plaintiff had an accident during rehabilitation and
physical therapy, and unable to come to court. The court therefore ardered to postpone the date of appointment fora
data inquiry to June 20, 2022. As for the civil case, the court considered to tempararily dispose of civil cases until the
such criminal case is finalized, when the criminal case has an outcome on the verdict, then the parties of the court to
bring up the civil case for further consideration. Therefore, the civil case is currently temporarily discharged in order
to-wail for the result of the criminal trial,

The lawyer of the Company has an opinion that the civil case being filed as a civil case related to the criminal case,
therefore, has to wait for the results of the appointment for investigation of the criminal case and also the Company is
not the offender or violated the plaintill's claim,

A subsidiary was sued for breach of contract. - canecled the contract and demanded a refund plus damages amounting to
Baht 10.01 million. The Count of First Instance made an appointment to take the witnesses on October 26 - 28, 2022,

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Company’s and ifs subsidiarics’ capital management are to maintain their abilitics 1o

continue as a going concern and to maintain an appropriate capital structure.

As at March 31, 2022, debt to equily ratio in the consolidated financial stalements is 0.20 : 1.00 (Separate : debl to equity

ratio is 0.37 ; 1.00}
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35,

Commitments and contingent liabilities

a)

b}

cl

d)

As al March 31, 2022, the Companys and its subsidiarics had eapital commitmenis to the principal building
contracior for the construetion of real estate agreements amounting to approximately Baht 167 million (Separate :

Baht 130 million).

As at Mareh 31, 2022, the Company’s and its subsidiaries had contingent liabilities in respect of bank guarantees
issued by the banks on behalf of the Company and its subsidiaries in the normal course of business amounting to

approximately Baht 95 million (Separate : Baht 36 million).

As at March 31, 2022, and 2021, the subsidiary has a commitment in respect of payments in accordance with

the rental and service agreement as follows
{ Uit : Million Baht)

2022 2021

Payable :
Within | year 20 95
Inover | and up to 5 years 67 124
Over 5 years 1 2

The Company has a commitment in respect of payment in accordance with (he agreement with BTS Group
Holdings Public Company Limited (“BTS”) to support the Pink Line Exiension to Muang Thong Thani,
Chaengwattana Rd. In this regards, the Company shall be responsible not over Baht 1,250 million, to cooperation
on the construction cost of rail system of the Extension of the Pink Line and the 2 train stations at the Company's
land of IMPACT Challenger and Muang Thong Thani's Lake, along with Baht 10 million per year for the
operation and maintenance of the Extension throughout 30 years,

Events after the reporting period

Al the Board of Dircctors Meeting No, 4/2022 of the REIT Manager held on May 19, 2022, the Board of Directors

approved the appropriation of interim distribution of Baht 0.05 per unit, tolaling amounting to Baht 74.10 million. Such

interim distribution will be paid to its unitholders in June 2022,

Reelassifieation

Centain amounis in the financial stalements for the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company's and its subsidiarics have been
reclassified to conform to the current period, which no effect on net income or sharcholders” equity previously reported.

Approval of financial statements

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 30, 2022.
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Attachment

Attachment 1

Profiles of directors, executives, controlling persons, appointed person to be directly responsible for

accounting supervision and company secretary

Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas B.Sc.
Age 49

Chairman / Executive Director / Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas is an elder brother of Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas. He has been the director of the
Company since 2001 and the First Vice Chairman of the Company since 2019. He was appointed the
Chairman of the Company on 15 February 2021. He was graduated from Hong Kong and the United
Kingdom.

Professional Training by Thai Institute of Directors (Thai-lIOD)
Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 166/2019

% of Shareholding as 14-Jun-2022
0.09

Working experience for the past 5 years
Listed Company
None

Non-Listed company

1999 - Present Director Impact Exhibition Management Co., Ltd.
2019 - Present Director Bangkok Airport Industry Co., Ltd.

2019 - Present Director Sinpornchai Co., Ltd.

2012 - Present Director Bangkok Land Agency Co., Ltd.

2012 - Present Director Muang Thong Building Services Co., Ltd.

2012 - Present Director Muang Thong Services and Management Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas B.A.
Age 47
Chief Executive Officer / Vice Chairman / Nomination and Remuneration Committee Director /

Risk Management Committee Director

Mr. Shui Pang Kanjanapas is a younger brother of Mr. Sui Hung Kanjanapas. He has been the director of the
Company since 2003 and the Second Vice Chairman of the Company since 2019. He was appointed the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company in 15 February 2021. He was educated in Hong Kong and the United
Kingdom.

Professional Training by Thai Institute of Directors (Thai-lIOD)
Directors Certification Program (DCP) 230/2016

% of Shareholding as 14-Jun-2022
223

Working experience for the past 5 years
Listed Company
None

Non-Listed company

2003 - Present Managing Director Impact Exhibition Management Co., Ltd.
2003 - Present Director Bangkok Airport Industry Co., Ltd.

2003 - Present Director Sinpornchai Co., Ltd.

2012 - Present Director Muang Thong Building Services Company Co., Ltd.
2012 - Present Director Muang Thong Services and Management Co., Ltd.

2012 - Present Director Bangkok Land Agency Co., Ltd.

Mr. Burin Wongsanguan B.Arch.
Age 86

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Burin Wongsanguan was appointed director of the Company in 1993. He was educated in Thailand and

the United States of America. He has had significant experience in real estate business.

Professional Training by Thai Institute of Directors (Thai-lIOD)

None

% of Shareholding as 14-Jun-2022

None

Working experience for the past 5 years
Listed Company

None

Non-Listed company

1992 - Present Director Bangkok Airport Industry Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Prasan Hokchoon B.Acc. P
Age 66 g

Independent Non-executive Director / Chairman of the Audit Committee

Mr. Prasan Hokchoon was appointed director of the Company on 27 January 2016. He was educated in

Thailand, certified public accountant and has had significant experience in management and corporate finance.

Professional Training by Thai Institute of Directors (Thai-lIOD)
Directors Accreditation Program (DAP) 164/2019

% of Shareholding as 14-Jun-2022

None

Working experience for the past 5 years
Listed Company
None

Non-Listed company

2001 - Present Vice Rector Rattana Bundit University

Mr. Supavat Saicheua M.A.
Age 64

Independent Non-executive Director / Audit Committee Director / Risk Management Committee Director

Mr. Supavat Saicheua was appointed director of the Company on 9 August 2010. He was educated in
Thailand and the United States of America. He has had significant experience in capital markets, securities

trading and company research.

Professional Training by Thai Institute of Directors (Thai-lIOD)
Risk Management Program for Corporate Leaders (DAP) 166/2019
Advance Audit Committee Program Advance (ACP) 4/2010
Monitoring the Quality of Financial Reporting (MFR) 11/2010
Monitoring Fraud Risk Management (MFM) 3/2010

Monitoring the Internal Audit Function (MIA) 8/2010

Audit Committee Program (ACP) 31/2009

Director s Certification Program (DCP) 126/2009

Financial Statements Demystified for Director (FDD) 1/2009

% of Shareholding as 14-Jun-2022

None

Working experience for the past 5 years
Listed Company
None

Non-Listed company

Present Executive Director Governance Matter (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Present Director and Managing Director Akanak Krabi Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Siriwat Likitnuruk M.A.
Age 69

Independent Non-executive Director / Audit Committee Director

Mr. Siriwat Likitnuruk was appointed director of the Company on 19 October 2010. He was educated

in Thailand and the United Kingdom. He has had significant experience in finance, management and banking.

Professional Training by Thai Institute of Directors (Thai-lOD)
Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 40/2005

% of Shareholding as 14-Jun-2022

None

Working experience for the past 5 years
Listed Company
None

Non-Listed company

None

Mr. Panya Boonyapiwat PhD
Age 59

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Panya Boonyapiwat was appointed director of the Company on 19 October 2010. He was educated
in Thailand and the United States of America. He has had significant experience in information technology

and management.

Professional Training by Thai Institute of Directors (Thai-lIOD)
Role of The Chaiman (RCP) 39/2016
Directors Certification Program DCP 94/2007

% of Shareholding as 14-Jun-2022

None

Working experience for the past 5 years
Listed Company
Present Chairman, Dimet (Siam) Public Company Limited

Non-Listed company

Present Consultants, Strategic plan for the development of energy storage systems project in
Thailand, Ministry of Energy

Present Consultants, Legal Commission Justice and Human Rights
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Mr. Jakapan Panomouppatham M.B.A. :'
Age 49 -‘r' >

Independent Non-executive Director / Nomination and Remuneration Committee Director /

Chairman of the Risk Management Committee

Mr. Jakkapan Panomouppatham was appointed director of the Company on 25 July 2019. He was educated
in Thailand and the United States of America. He has had significant experience in finance, management,

banking and marketing.

Professional Training by Thai Institute of Directors (Thai-lIOD)
Risk Management Program for Corporate Leaders RCL 21/2020
Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 166/2019

% of Shareholding as 14-Jun-2022
0.02

Working experience for the past 5 years
Listed Company
None

Non-Listed company

Present Adviser to Managing Director Charoen Marine Co., Ltd.
Mr. Chamras Hongpaisan B.Acc.
Age 58

Appointed person to be directly responsible for accounting supervision

Mr. Chamars Hongpaisan was appointed person to be directly responsible for accounting supervision on

27 March 1995. He was educated in Thailand. He has had significant experience in accounting.

History of Continuous Accounting Development in the Past Year

Course on Tools in Accounting using the RPA, Al, and OCR Technologies amounting 3 hours

Course on Tips and Tricks to improve Accounting transaction as well as closing the account at the end of the
period amounting 3 hours

Course on income subjecting to the standards of the financial report no.15 and NPAEs chapter 18 amounting

6 hours

% of Shareholding as 14-Jun-2022

None

Working experience for the past 5 years
Listed Company
None

Non-Listed company

None
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Mr. Prawet lamsamut LL.B.
Age 65

Company Secretary

Mr. Prawet lamsamut was an appointed company secretary on 17 March 2003. He was educated in Thailand.

He has had significant experience in legal and secretary.

History of education on the role and duty and fundamental knowledge of a Secretary of the Company
in the past year

None

% of Shareholding as 14-Jun-2022

None

Working experience for the past 5 years
Listed Company
None

Non-Listed company

None
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Attachment 2

Details of the chief of an internal audit unit and the chief of compliance
1.

Details of the chief of an internal audit unit
External Advisor
Pro-Act Services Company Limited which was established in 2001 for auditing service and internal

audit; and

Personnels

Internal Audit Controller

Mr. Udom Tangmanaskul

Bachelor’s degree B.B.A. Rangsit University

Certified Public Accountant

1994 - 2001 Audit Manager PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Ltd.

2001- Present Managing Director Pro-Act Services Company Limited

Chief of an Internal Audit Unit

Mrs. Petchmanee Thonpub

Bachelor’s degree B.B.A. Ramkhamhaeng University

1994 - 2001 Audit Assistant Manager Consultants Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Jaiyos Audit Co, Ltd.

2002 - 2008  Accounting Systems and Internal Audit Systems Consultants Adamas Incorporation
Public Company Limited

2004 - 2009  Account Manager of various companies

2010 - Present Internal Audit Consultants Pro-Act Services Company Limited

Details of the chief of compliance

Miss Ampornprapa Wongsaroj

Bachelor’s degree LL.B. Ramkhamhaeng University

2011 - 2021 Ownership Transfer Manager Bangkok Land Public Company Limited.
2022 - Present Legal and Compliance Manager Bangkok Land Public Company Limited.

Responsible for legal work, ownership transfer and land management of the company.
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Attachment 3

Report of Audit Committee

Dear Shareholders,

The Audit Committee of Bangkok Land Public Company Limited has three members. On 30 May 2022

as this report is being prepared, the Chairman is Mr. Prasan Hokchoon, and other members are Mr. Supavat

Saicheua and Mr. Siriwat Likitnuruk.

The Audit Committee has duties assigned by the Board of Directors. These duties are set by the

Directors in accordance with the guidelines recommended by the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee has met 4 times totally. The attendance

record of each member is set out below:-

Committee member Meetings attended/Total
Mr. Prasan Hokchoon 4/4
Mr. Supavat Saicheua 4/4
Mr. Siriwat Likitnuruk 4/4

Major works performed by the Audit Committee are summarized next.

1)
2)

3)

4)

5)

Review the accuracy and adequacy of the Company’s financial reports.

Review the Company’s internal control system and internal audit system to ensure that they are
suitable and efficient as well as support the internal audit unit’s independence where the Audit
Committee has the authority to approve the appointment, transfer, and dismissal of the chief of an
internal audit unit or any unit being responsible for the Company’s internal audit.

Review compliance with the Securities and Exchange Acts, regulation of the SET, and any other
relevant law.

Consider, select, and nominate the Company’s auditor and propose such person’s remuneration as well
as attend a non-management meeting with the auditor at least 1 time per annum. Such meeting in the
previous year was met 4 times totally.

Review and scrutinize connected transactions, or transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests to
ensure that the Company complies with all related rules.

Prepare and disclose in the Company’s annual report an audit committee’s report which must be

signed by the Audit Committee’s Chairman and consists of at least the following information:

a. an opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the Company’s financial report;
b. an opinion on the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system;
C. an opinion on the compliance with SEC’s and SET’s laws and regulation and other laws relevant

to the Company’s business;

d. an opinion on the suitability of an auditor;
e. an opinion on transactions that may lead to conflicts of interest;
f. the number of audit committee meetings and the attendance of such meetings by each

committee member;
g. an opinion or overview comment on issues that have arisen as the audit committee performed

its duties as defined in the committee’s charter; and
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h. any other matters which should be made available to shareholders and general investors within

the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned by the Company’s Board of Directors.

7) Together with other Board of Directors, set up the anti-corruption policy of the Company and its W
subsidiaries.
8) Perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors of the Company with the consent of the

Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee also has proposed for a re-appointment, Karin Audit Company Limited as the
Company’s external auditor for the year ending 31st March 2023. The proposed audit fee is not exceeding
Baht 7,000,000 which is not exceeding Baht 170,000 lower than the previous year due to the decrease in
transaction volume of the Company and some subsidiaries from previous year. Nomination shall be submitted
to the Board before seeking the approval of shareholders at the 2022 Annual General Meeting.

The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the Company operates its business with good corporate
governance. Based on the review of the Company’s operation, the Audit Committee is confident that the
Company has employed appropriate internal control as well as risk management procedures and there were
no material problems on internal control, financial reporting and regulatory compliance in the year under

review.

®4———7

Prasan Hokchoon
Chairman of Audit Committee
30 May 2022
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